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FIVE YEARS GROUP FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
Key Financial Information  

For the Financial Year Ended 

30 April (RM’ million) 

 

2016 

 

2017 

 

2018 

 

2019 

 

2020 

 

Revenue 133.51 178.78 207.42 219.57 210.48 

Interest Income 0.03 0.05 0.05 0.07 0.08 

Interest Expenses (0.48) (0.73) (1.61) (5.58) (4.86) 

Taxation  (5.56) (3.60) (2.73) (3.43) 1.40 

Depreciation (6.11) (8.40) (11.19) (14.70) (14.80) 

Earnings before Interest, Tax,   

Depreciation and Amortisation 

(“EBITDA”)    

32.32 35.68 31.88 18.52 35.46 

Profit/(Loss) before Tax  25.76 26.60 19.13 (1.69) 15.88 

Profit/(Loss) after Tax/Net Profit/(Loss) 

attributable to Equity Holders 

20.20 23.00 16.40 (5.12) 17.28 

Total Dividend Paid 

 

13.2 11.1 11.6 5.3 3.9 

Total Assets 130.52 228.11 304.78 309.55 298.54 

Total Equity 110.97 164.80 167.31 156.89 170.15 

Total Borrowings 6.12 29.72 84.40 115.96 95.41 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

8.08 12.75 4.35 8.28 4.87 

Key Financial Analysis      

Return on Average Total Assets (%) 18.3 12.8 6.2 (1.7) 5.7 

Return on Average Equity (%) 21.9 16.7 9.9 (3.2) 10.6 

Gearing Ratio (Net of Cash) (times) (0.02) 0.10 0.48 0.69 0.53 

Net Asset per Share (RM)^  0.84 1.13 0.87 0.81 0.88 

Basic Earnings per Share (sen)^ 16.16 17.12 9.08 (2.66) 8.97 

Net Dividend per Share (sen)#  6.9 5.8 6.0 2.7 2.0 

Dividend Payout Ratio (%) 65.3 48.3 70.7 (103.5) 22.6 

Number of ordinary shares issued 

(million) 

132.0 145.2 192.8 192.8 192.6 

Weighted average number of ordinary 

shares in issue (million) 

124.9 134.4 180.7 192.8 192.6 

Geographical Segmentation      

Local (RM’ million) 70.61 110.39 136.10 147.08 136.66 

Export (RM’ million) 62.90 68.39 71.32 72.49 73.82 

TOTAL (RM’ million) 

 

133.51 178.78 207.42 219.57 210.48 

Local (%) 52.9 61.7 65.6 67.0 64.9 

Export (%) 

 

47.1 38.3 34.4 33.0 35.1 

Customer Segmentation      

Food and Beverage (RM’ million) 97.5 145.4 165.7 177.1 169.0 

Extrusion (RM’ million) 19.8 21.2 25.7 29.2 27.3 

Electronics, Medical and Others  

   (RM’ million)  

16.2 12.2 16.0 13.3 14.2 

TOTAL (RM’ million) 

 

133.5 178.8 207.4 219.6 210.5 

Food and Beverage (%) 73.0 81.3 79.9 80.6 80.3 

Extrusion (%) 14.8 11.9 12.4 13.3 13.0 

Electronics, Medical and Others (%)  12.2 6.8 7.7 6.1 6.7 

 
^  Adjusted for corporate exercises and treasury shares held by the Company. 
#  Adjusted for enlarged total number of 192.6 million shares (excluding 1,038,600 shares bought back and retained  as treasury shares 

from the total number of issued shares of 193,599,641 as at 30 April 2020). 
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

For the Financial Year Ended  

30 April 2020 (FY2020) 

(RM’million) 

 

 

1Q20 

 

2Q20 

 

3Q20 

 

4Q20 

 

FY2020 

Quarterly Revenue 55.7 53.5 51.6 49.7 210.5 

Quarterly Profit Before Tax 2.2 4.2 3.6 5.9 15.9 

Quarterly Profit After Tax  2.2 4.0 4.2 6.9 17.3 

      

Quarterly Geographical Segmentation  

Local 38.0 35.2 32.0 31.5 136.7 

Export 17.7 18.3 19.6 18.2 73.8 

      

Customer Segmentation       

Food & Beverage 45.6 42.8 42.2 38.4 169.0 

Extrusion 7.3 7.9 7.0 5.1 27.3 

Electronic, Medical and Others 2.8 2.8 2.4 6.2 14.2 
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INVESTOR RELATIONS 

For the period of 1 May 2019 to 30 April 2020, SCGM maintained its Investor Relations efforts to 

keep the investing community informed of operational highlights and corporate updates, en route to 

achieving its growth targets.  

 

Given the evolving overall landscape in light of the economic slowdown followed by the impact of 

COVID-19, a majority of SCGM’s corporate updates to investors focused on the Group’s strategies 

to enhance its product mix, increase its product range and improve production efficiency.  

 

On 9 December 2019, the Group announced that it had signed a two-year contract with an Australia-

based food and beverage (F&B) packaging company to supply customised packaging such as meal 

trays and salad bowls. This was part of the Group’s strategy to place greater emphasis on designing 

and producing customised packaging, instead of standardised products.  

 

In tandem with this strategy, the Group reduced its manufacturing capacity for standard items such 

as lunchboxes and ceased the operations of its rented plant in Telok Panglima Garang, Selangor in 

March 2020. The capacity was instead consolidated to the Group’s Kulai plant as part of its product 

streamlining effort.  

 

Furthermore, in endeavouring to cater to increasing demand for personal protective equipment due 

to COVID-19, SCGM ventured into producing face shields in February 2020 and face masks in May 

2020.  

 

Altogether, it is heartening that these efforts culminated in SCGM being recognised as one of the 

Top 20 Malaysia Small Cap Companies Jewels 2020 by RHB Investment Bank Berhad in May 2020.  

 

Investor briefings, meetings and site visits 

 

SCGM continued to proactively organise regular investor meetings and/or briefings in the year under 

review to report to institutional shareholders the various operational highlights, financial 

performance review, industry outlook and growth strategies to be implemented. These were done 

through investor briefings shortly after the announcement of quarterly results.  

 

Notably, even though the enforcement of the Movement Control Order (MCO) came into effect in 

March 2020, the Group maintained its disclosure commitment to institutional fund managers and 

analysts through virtual means, both through briefings and one-on-one meetings. Altogether, the 

Group met with 200 fund managers and analysts in person and on the virtual platforms.  
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INVESTOR RELATIONS (CONT’D) 
 

Investor briefings, meetings and site visits (cont’d) 

 
26 September 2019 - First Quarter FY2020 Corporate Update and Unaudited Financial Results 

10 December 2019 - Second Quarter FY2020 Corporate Update and Unaudited Financial Results 

31 March 2020 - Third Quarter FY2020 Corporate Update and Unaudited Financial Results 

30 June 2020 - Fourth Quarter FY2020 Corporate Update and Unaudited Financial Results 

 

Announcements of unaudited financial results, investor presentations and press releases were sent 

to interested parties upon receipt of their request and made available on the Group’s Investor 

Relations website. 

 

Annual General Meeting 

 

SCGM held its Twelfth Annual General Meeting (“12th AGM”) on 24 September 2019. During the 

meeting, the Chairman presented the audited financial reports for the financial year ended 30 April 

2019 and elaborated on the Group’s business strategies in steering the Group back to profitability in 

FY2020. The Board of Directors and senior management noted the shareholders’ feedback and 

addressed their queries on both the financial performance and operational strategies. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

[The rest of this page is intentionally left blank] 
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COMMITMENT TO  

SERVICE QUALITY AND EXCELLENCE 
 

Since inception, SCGM has always placed customer satisfaction at the centre of our business 

activities. As a result, our fundamental core value is being customer-centric. We endeavour to cater 

to the specific needs and requirements of all our customers. As such, we provide customised 

packaging solutions by understanding their needs, and providing value-added products to set 

ourselves apart. 

Moreover, we value and strive to achieve a high-performance culture, which is also key to us meeting 

the needs and requirements of our clients. In order to maintain our quality to better serve our 

customers, we recognise our personnel on their individual contributions, while still aligning them to 

the Group’s performance as a whole. 

Due to the different requirements for varying clientele, we have established different teams for 

customer relationship management, based on product requirements. Additionally, these teams also 

have the opportunity to cross-sell other products from different teams if the need arises, in order to 

meet client demand. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[The rest of this page is intentionally left blank] 
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Economic and Sector Review  

 

Over the past 12 months, trade tensions and demand slowdowns in major economies created negative 

spillover effects in South East Asia (SEA) and led to the region’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) 

growth moderating to 4.4%1 in 2019, versus 5.1%1 in 2018.  

 

The Malaysian economy mirrored regional sentiment, as 2019’s annual GDP growth of 4.3%2 

compared to 4.7%2 in 2018 was the lowest level since the global financial crisis in 2009. This was 

the result of weaker total exports, disruptions in cross-border supply chains and declining private 

investments amid low business confidence. That said, the adverse effects of the trade slowdown 

were partially offset by the Government’s proactive actions in stimulating the economy via monetary 

and fiscal policy. 

 

Still, the first quarter of 2020 brought with it the widespread adverse effects of the coronavirus 

disease (COVID-19), where corporations and individuals took safeguard measures by halting 

business operations and altering community lifestyles to contain the spread of the pandemic. 

 

All things considered, the dampened economic landscape in the year under review necessitated a 

shift in strategy, in order to enhance the intrinsic strength of our business.  

 

We adopted a twin-pronged approach to this effect. Firstly, we placed greater emphasis on higher-

margin customised food and beverage (F&B) packaging for local and export markets. Secondly, 

leveraging on our extrusion capabilities, we added a new line of medical personal protective 

equipment (PPE) products to cater to demand stemming from COVID-19.  

 

While more details will be provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis, it suffices to 

mention that this strategic repositioning played a crucial role in our resounding turnaround in the 

year under review. Not only that, this accomplishment was made all the sweeter as it was achieved 

just a year after the Group had moved into its new, larger premises in April 2019.  

 

  
 

1 Source: Asian Development Bank 
2 Source: Bank Negara Malaysia  

Dear Shareholders, 

 

We are delighted to announce that SCGM Bhd (SCGM or 

the Group) reported a convincing turnaround in financial 

performance in the financial year ended 30 April 2020 

(FY2020), despite the tumultuous external environment on 

a global and local scale. 

 

This FY2020 annual report and audited financial 

statements, presented on behalf of the Board of Directors 

of SCGM, will demonstrate the Group’s agility and 

inherent commitment to continue our growth journey for 

the long term.  

 



11 

 

Annual Report 2020  

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONT’D) 
 

Future Prospects 

 

Having endured broad demand declines in key economic areas of consumption, investment and trade 

due to COVID-19, SEA’s GDP is projected to decelerate sharply by 2.7%3 in 2020, before recording 

a rebound to 5.2% growth in 2021.  

 

In line with bleak regional estimations, Bank Negara Malaysia estimated for Malaysia’s GDP to be 

between -2.0% and 0.5% in 2020, as the nation’s economy finds its footing amidst the impending 

economic effects of COVID-19 on the supply chain and consumer sentiment, on top of prevailing 

weakness in global demand.  

 

While we charted our strong turnaround in FY2020, SCGM remains mindful in navigating through 

this unprecedented period in the regional and domestic markets. Nevertheless, we remain cautiously 

optimistic of our prospects based on the strong demand for F&B packaging due to the changing 

consumer trend of take-away and ready-to-eat meals.  

 

Additionally, we are hopeful that our PPE venture would adequately complement the Group’s F&B 

packaging segment, as the ‘new normal’ environment results in new lifestyle habits for all. The 

Malaysian Government’s enforcement on making face masks mandatory in public areas starting 1 

August 2020 cements the prospects of steady demand going forward.  

 

Corporate Social Responsibility 

 

SCGM continues to place a high priority on upholding the wellbeing of both our stakeholders and 

the environment. This remains an important aspect of our overall operations, and we will always 

explore ways to contribute in greater measure towards the enhancement of this facet. The 

undertakings by the Group are reported in the Sustainability Report.  

 

Appreciation 

 

The Group endeavours to continue honing our expertise in these resilient sectors and expand our 

footprint further, particularly in reiterating our strong position in the region’s F&B packaging sector.  

 

I would like to express my gratitude to the Board of Directors, management team and staff of SCGM 

for their unwavering efforts in driving the Group forward to reach greater heights. 

 

Moreover, I would also like to thank our customers, business associates and shareholders for their 

continued belief in SCGM. Together, SCGM would surely strengthen our foundations and hope to 

deliver greater returns in the coming years. 

 

Thank you. 

 

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Seng 

Executive Chairman of SCGM Bhd 

 

 

  

 
3 Source: https://www.adb.org/sites/default/files/publication/612261/ado-supplement-june-2020.pdf  

https://www.adb.org/sites/default/files/publication/612261/ado-supplement-june-2020.pdf
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

I am heartened to note that the challenging macroeconomic climate in the year under review – in 

addition to heavier operating expenditure base from larger premises - did not deter SCGM from 

delivering a convincing turnaround in FY2020.  

 

In fact, the larger production floor space and the management’s strategic pivot made SCGM well 

poised to not only mitigate this unprecedented operating environment stemming from the COVID-

19 pandemic, but also grow our footprint in the upcoming financial year. 

 

Operations Highlights 

 

i) Strategic shift in focusing on higher margin customised F&B packaging segment 

 

Throughout FY2020, the Group remained steadfastly committed in enhancing our product 

mix by reducing our concentration on high-volume non-customised general products, and 

instead emphasise on designing and manufacturing customised products for local and export 

markets.  

 

This strategic shift within the F&B packaging segment proved to be a key cornerstone in 

establishing a more favourable product mix. 

 

Leveraging on increasing consumer trend of take-away and ready-to-eat meals, we aim to 

grow our customised F&B packaging line, by providing tailored product design, tamper-

proof packaging and eco-friendly solutions for food manufacturers and retailers. 

 

ii) Expanded medical product portfolio by producing PPE 

 

Backed by our plastic extrusion capabilities, we expanded our product portfolio to include 

manufacturing face shields in February 2020, and subsequently face masks in May 2020. 

This expansion into PPE products is both timely and necessary to urgently provide frontliners 

with essential equipment to combat the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

The Group repurposed an existing production line and purchased four new units of ultrasonic 

sealing machines to produce face shields, with daily production capacity up to 21,000 units 

per day.  

 

SCGM also acquired new machinery to produce face masks, with production capacity of 

1,200,000 pieces per month. SCGM’s face masks have also been certified by TUV SUD 

Singapore, a global leader in the field of testing, inspection, management system certification 

and product certification. Additionally, SCGM has also started producing complementary 

products, for instance face mask holders in various colours. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT’D) 
 

iii) Fully consolidated production with new Kulai plant 

 

In line with the Group’s strategy to reduce reliance on lower-margin products, we ceased to 

rent the premises in Telok Panglima Garang, Selangor and fully consolidated our operations 

in the new headquarters in Kulai, Johor.  

 

With over 600,000 square feet built-up area in the new premises (an increase from 264,000 

square feet in its previous location), SCGM’s main plant houses 31 units thermoforming 

machines and 15 units of extrusion machines, with extrusion capacity of 67.6 million kg per 

year. 

 

iv) Enlarged export customer base 

 

In FY2020, SCGM strengthened our export marketing team to secure new customers and 

distributors in key export markets. These efforts bore fruit, as the Group added 40 new 

international customers, including an Australian F&B packaging company to whom SCGM 

would supply customised meal trays and salad bowls. 

 

v) Adjusted manufacturing hours due to the Movement Control Order (MCO)  

 

To contain the spread of COVID-19 in the country, the Malaysian Government declared and 

enforced MCO from 18 March 2020 to 3 May 2020, followed by the Conditional MCO 

(CMCO) from 4 May 2020 to 9 June 2020, and Recovery MCO (RMCO) from 10 June 2020 

to 31 August 2020.  

 

Nonetheless, to ensure that important and critical products remained in sufficient supply 

during the MCO, the Ministry of International Trade and Industry (MITI) had allowed 

selected essential services and key economic sectors to operate during the MCO period, 

subject to approval and adherence to health and safety protocols. These included F&B, 

household products, personal protection devices, pharmaceutical, packaging and printing, 

medical device and implant, and oil and gas sectors.  

 

In addition, MITI enforced a 50% manpower reduction requirement, on top of measures 

including daily temperature checks, availability of hand sanitisers and face masks for all 

workers, maintenance of social distancing practices, and regular sanitisation of business 

premises.  

 

As SCGM produces products that support the essential F&B sector, our operations were 

allowed to operate at 50% workforce in March 2020, and thereafter at full workforce from 

May 2020 onwards during the CMCO. At the same time, the Group pivoted its business 

model to produce personal protective equipment (PPE) of face shields in February 2020 and 

face masks in May 2020. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT’D) 
 

Financial Review 

 
Resulting from the Group’s strategic shift to focus on higher margin customised food and beverage 
(F&B) packaging instead of standardised F&B packaging, SCGM’s revenue was largely maintained 
at RM210.5 million in FY2020 from RM219.6 million previously.  
 
Local sales accounted for 65% revenue contribution in FY2020, despite a 7.1% contraction to 
RM136.7 million in FY2020, compared to RM147.1 million in the previous year. The Group’s 
exports which contributed 35% of FY2020 topline noted marginal increase of 1.8% to RM73.8 
million, versus RM72.5 million a year ago. 
 
Despite reduced sales, the Group’s EBITDA jumped 91.9% to RM35.5 millon in FY2020 from 
RM18.5 million in the previous financial year. This is driven by the improved sales mix stemming 
from the reduced concentration on non-customised packaging as well as lower price of resin, caused 
by significant fall of crude oil prices. 
 
The Group’s other income also increased by 87.5% in FY2020 to RM1.5 million from RM0.8 
million last year due to higher recovery of debts previously provided with allowance for doubtful 
debts and gain on disposal of plant and equipment. 
 
As such, SCGM returned to the black with net profit of RM17.3 million in FY2020 from net loss of 
RM5.1 million in FY2019.  
 
The improved bottom line in FY2020 was driven by the optimised sales mix, lower resin costs, lower 
interest expense and partial utilisation of previously unrecognised reinvestment allowance brought 
forward from prior year, and partial recognition of deferred tax asset on unabsorbed reinvestment 
allowance previously not recognised.  
 
As at 30 April 2020, the Group’s total assets marginally dipped to RM298.5 million, from RM309.5 
million a year ago, as book value of property, plant and equipment decreased with the provision of 
depreciation in line with its accounting policies. This offset the increase in inventories and 
receivables, on the back of the Group’s higher holding of inventory and slower collection of payment 
in light of the MCO. 
 
At the same date, SCGM’s cash and bank balances were RM4.9 million, lower than last year’s 
RM8.3 million due to repayment of borrowings. Notably, the Group’s total borrowings were pared 
down by 17.8% to RM95.4 million, as compared to RM116.0 million in the previous year. 
 
Therefore, the Group’s net gearing declined from 0.69 times to 0.53 times. We wish to maintain our 
gearing at a manageable level in the future. 
 
Dividend 
 
The Group paid four interim dividends in respect of FY2020: 0.25 sen, 1.00 sen, 0.50 sen and 1.50 
sen in the first, second, third and fourth quarters respectively. The total dividend of 3.25 sen per 
share translates to dividend payout of RM6.3 million. 
 

The Group will also continue our dividend commitment to reward our shareholders for the upcoming 

financial year despite the tough economic headwinds in both, domestic and regional fronts. 

 



15 

 

Annual Report 2020  

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT’D) 
 

Challenges 

 

As SCGM looks to continue its growth trajectory, the Group is mindful of the various challenges 

that may materially impact our operations, performance, financial condition and liquidity. 

 

For one thing, we anticipate future volatility in the price of resin in light of uncertain crude oil price 

outlook in the near term, taking into account demand contraction globally due to COVID-19 impact. 

In the event of any significant resin price increase, the Group will monitor closely and make 

adjustments where necessary such improving operational efficiency and economies of scale.  

 

To mitigate this, instead of competing purely on price, we will choose to add value to customers by 

introducing new products and/or designs, as well as pioneering environmentally friendly sustainable 

solutions. 

 

Besides this, there is also growing negative sentiment towards plastic products due to its impact 

towards the plastic waste to the environment and climate change. This stigma has led towards 

curtailment of single-use plastic products, particularly plastic carrier bags and plastic straws. In 

Malaysia, the Government intends to curb the usage of single-use plastic products completely by 

2030. 

 

In anticipation towards the Government’s environmental concerns, the Group has developed eco-

friendly plastic packaging offerings under our “Benxon” and “Ecoplas” brands. Not only does these 

packaging solutions promote environmental sustainability, but it also provides the Group with a 

major advantage in attracting brand owners and suppliers to adopt our products especially in 

developed countries. 

 

On top of that, one of the main components for a smooth and efficient production planning is 

adequate and effective labour force. As such, the Group aims to continue upholding the welfare of 

its workers to alleviate issues such as labour shortage. In addition, the new Kulai plant which possess 

higher automation would ensure the Group’s reliance on human capital would continue to decrease 

going forward. 

 

Lastly, SCGM is mindful towards the economic and health risk arising from the COVID-19 

pandemic. The Group complies with Standard Operating Procedures pertaining to daily temperature 

checks, provision of hand sanitisers and face masks for all workers, maintenance of social distancing 

practices, and regular sanitisation of business premises to ensure the safety of all workers.  
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT’D) 
 

Growth Prospects 

 

SCGM’s two business segments, F&B packaging and medical PPE supplies, are both recession-

proof businesses which bode well for sustainable earnings in the long term. 

 

Our F&B packaging business is anticipated to ride the positive demand for take-away and ready-to-

eat meals, as has been demonstrated in strong orders for our packaging products such as bento lunch 

boxes in the fourth quarter ended 30 April 2020 (4Q20). 

 

On top of that, we will continue strengthening our marketing efforts to expand our international 

footprint in key targeted exports markets. Our target markets are Southeast Asian countries, Middle 

East and the United Kingdom. Coupled with our competitive edge of integrated manufacturing 

capabilities from extrusion to packaging and delivery, we believe that SCGM has a distinct 

advantage to compete locally and globally in terms of pricing, quality and product customisation. 

 

For our PPE segment, we believe there is continuing demand for PPE as people adjust their lifestyles 

in the ‘new normal’ environment in light of global public usage of PPE despite lockdowns being 

lifted. This is further validated by the announcement of Malaysian Government making it 

compulsory, with effect from 1 August 2020, to wear face masks inside public transportation, 

crowded public spaces and areas where social distancing is impossible.   

 

In a bid to grow our PPE segment, the Group intends to supply the domestic public health sector and 

expand our supply of PPE to regional key markets by exporting to existing overseas clientele. With 

our products certified by internationally accredited bodies, and developing new items such as face 

mask holders, we believe our PPE products will remain competitive. 

 

Overall, we at SCGM hold an optimistic outlook of our prospects, and will continue executing our 

expansion plans to propel SCGM into a leading regional packaging player. 

 

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Chai 

Managing Director of SCGM Bhd 

  

 

  



17 

 

Annual Report 2020  

REPORTS AND  

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2020 
 

 
SHARE INFORMATION 

 
Company Name  

SCGM Bhd 

 
Stock Name 

SCGM 

 
Stock Code 

7247 

(Bursa Malaysia) 

 
Ticket Code 

Bloomberg : SCGM:MK 

Reuters : SCGB.KL 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

The Directors of SCGM Bhd hereby submit their report together with the audited financial 

statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 30 April 2020. 

 

 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 

 

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding.  

 

The principal activities of the subsidiary are disclosed in Note 8 to the Financial Statements. 

 

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities of the Company and its 

subsidiary during the financial year other than the subsidiary has commenced the manufacturing and 

trading of personal protective equipment. 

 

 

RESULTS 

 

 Group  Company 

 RM  RM 

    

Profit for the financial year 17,276,606  4,050,504 

    

Attributable to:-    

 Owners of the Company 17,276,606  4,050,504 

 

 

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS 

 

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other 

than those disclosed in the financial statements. 

 

 

DIVIDENDS 

 

The amount of dividends paid and declared since the end of the last financial year were as follows:- 

 RM 

  

In respect of financial year ended 30 April 2019:-  

Fourth interim single tier dividend of 0.25 sen per ordinary share and paid 

on 26 July 2019. 

 

481,403 
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DIVIDENDS (CONT’D) 

 

The amount of dividends paid and declared since the end of the last financial year were as follows 

(cont’d):- 

 
 RM  

Cont’d  

In respect of financial year ended 30 April 2020:-  

First interim single tier dividend of 0.25 sen per ordinary share and paid 

on 23 October 2019. 

 

481,403 

  

Second interim single tier dividend of 1.00 sen per ordinary share and 

paid on 10 January 2020. 

  

1,925,610 

  

Third interim single tier dividend of 0.50 sen per ordinary share and paid 

on 30 April 2020. 

 

962,806 

  

 3,851,222 

 

The Directors declared fourth interim single tier dividend in respect of the financial year ended 30 

April 2020 of 1.50 sen per ordinary share and paid on 29 July 2020 to members registered on 14 

July 2020. The financial statements for the current financial year do not reflect this dividend. Such 

dividend will be accounted for in equity as appropriation of unappropriated profit in the financial 

year ending 30 April 2021. 

 

The Directors also proposed a final single tier dividend of 0.35 sen per ordinary share, in respect of 

the current financial year. The proposed single tier dividend if payable in respect of all ordinary 

shares in issue as at the date of the financial statements would amount to RM673,964 and has not 

been included as a liability in the financial statements. The dividend is subject to approval by the 

shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company and the date of entitlement 

to the dividend has yet to be determined as at the date of these financial statements. 

 

DIRECTORS 

 

The Directors who held office during the financial year and up to the date of this report are as 

follows:- 

 

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Seng (Executive Chairman)* 

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Chai (Managing Director)* 

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Guan (Deputy Managing Director)* 

Lee Hock Meng (Executive Director)* 

Lee Yee Ling (Independent Non-Executive Director) (Appointed on 16 August 2019) 

Lim Peng Peng (Independent Non-Executive Director) (Appointed on 16 August 2019) 

Patricia Rangene Packium (Independent Non-Executive Director) (Appointed on 16 August 

   2019) 

 

  



20 

 

Annual Report 2020  

DIRECTORS (CONT’D) 

 

The Directors who held office during the financial year and up to the date of this report are as follows 

(cont’d):- 

 

Amrik Singh Harcharan Singh (Independent Non-Executive Director) (Resigned on 16 

   August 2019) 

Tang Nai Soon (Independent Non-Executive Director) (Resigned on 16 August 2019) 

Wong Tun Boon (Independent Non-Executive Director) (Resigned on 16 August 2019) 

 

* Directors of the Company and its subsidiary. 

 

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS  

 

According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings, the beneficial interests of those who were 

Directors at the end of the financial year in shares and warrants of the Company are as follows:- 

 

 Number of ordinary shares  

 As at 

1.5.2019 

 

Bought 

 

(Sold) 

As at 

30.4.2020 

     

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Seng     

 - direct interest 17,635,748 150,000 - 17,785,748 

 - indirect interest* 30,615,333 - - 30,615,333 

     

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Chai     

 - direct interest 12,671,238 150,000 - 12,821,238 

 - indirect interest* 30,615,333 - - 30,615,333 

     

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Guan     

 - direct interest 12,671,244 150,000 - 12,821,244 

 - indirect interest* 30,615,333 - - 30,615,333 

     

Lee Hock Meng     

 - direct interest 11,857,905 - - 11,857,905 

 - indirect interest* 30,615,333 - - 30,615,333 
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONT’D) 

 

According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings, the beneficial interests of those who were 

Directors at the end of the financial year in shares and warrants of the Company are as follows 

(cont’d):- 
 

 Number of Warrant (2017/2020) 

      

  As at   As at 

  1.5.2019  (Exercised) 30.4.2020 

      

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Seng      

 - direct interest  1,748,574  - 1,748,574 

- indirect interest*  3,061,533  - 3,061,533 

      

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Chai      

 - direct interest  1,247,123  - 1,247,123 

- indirect interest*  3,061,533  - 3,061,533 

      

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Guan      

 - direct interest  1,247,124  - 1,247,124 

- indirect interest*  3,061,533  - 3,061,533 

      

Lee Hock Meng      

 - direct interest  1,185,790  - 1,185,790 

- indirect interest*  3,061,533  - 3,061,533 

 

* Deemed interest via his direct interest in SCGM Lee Sdn. Bhd. 

 

None of the other Directors in office at the end of the financial year had any interest in shares in the 

Company or its related corporations during the financial year. 

 

By virtue of Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Seng, Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Chai, Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Guan and Mr. 

Lee Hock Meng’s direct and indirect interest in the Company, they are also deemed to have interest 

in shares of the subsidiary to the extent that the Company has an interest under Section 8 of the 

Companies Act 2016. 
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DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS 
 

During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangement subsisted to which the Company is a 

party, with the object or objects of enabling the Directors of the Company to acquire any benefits 

by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate. 
 

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become entitled to receive 

any benefit (other than as disclosed in Note 28 to the Financial Statements) by reason of a contract 

made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of which he is a 

member, or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest. 
 

 

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION  
 

The Directors’ remuneration is disclosed in Notes 24 and 27 to the Financial Statements. 
 

There was no indemnity coverage and insurance premium paid for Directors and Officers of the 

Company during the financial year.  
 

 

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES 
 

There were no changes in the issued and paid-up capital of the Company during the financial year. 

 

There were no issuance of debentures during the financial year. 
 

 

TREASURY SHARES 
 

During the financial year, the Company repurchased 200,000 ordinary shares of its issued share 

capital from the open market. The average price paid for the repurchased shares was RM0.85 per 

share. The repurchased transactions were financed by internally generated funds. These repurchased 

shares were held as treasury shares and treated in accordance with the requirements of Section 127(6) 

of the Companies Act 2016. 

 

As at 30 April 2020, the number of ordinary shares issued and fully paid-up after deducting treasury 

shares against equity is 192,561,041 ordinary shares. 

 

 

WARRANT 

 

The salient features of the Warrant are disclosed in Note 15 to the Financial Statements. 

 

Details of the Warrant issued to the Directors are disclosed in the Directors’ Interests section of this 

report. 
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION 
 

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took 

reasonable steps:- 
 

(a) to ascertain that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the 

making of provision for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had 

been written off and adequate provision had been made for doubtful debts; and  
 

(b) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their values in the ordinary 

course of business as shown in the accounting records had been written down to an amount 

which they might be expected so to realise. 
 

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:- 
 

(a) which would render the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the provision for 

doubtful debts in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company inadequate to 

any substantial extent; or 
 

(b) which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the 

Group and of the Company misleading; or 
 

(c)  which have arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of 

assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate; or 
 

(d)  not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements of the Group and of the 

Company which would render any amount stated in the financial statements of the Group 

and of the Company misleading. 

 

At the date of this report, there does not exist:- 

 

(a) any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of 

the financial year which secures the liability of any other person; or 

 

(b) any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of 

the financial year. 

 

In the opinion of the Directors:-  

 

(a) no contingent liability or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become 

enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in 

the opinion of the Directors, will or may affect the ability of the Group and of the Company 

to meet their obligations as and when they fall due; 
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (CONT’D) 

 

In the opinion of the Directors (cont’d):- 

 

(b) the results of operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not 

substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature; and 

 

(c) there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this 

report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely to affect 

substantially the results of operations of the Group and of the Company for the current 

financial year in which this report is made. 

 

 

AUDITORS REMUNERATION 

 

The total amount fees paid to or receivable by the Auditors, Messrs Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT, 

as remuneration for their services as Auditors of the Company and its subsidiary for the financial 

year ended 30 April 2020 amounted to RM10,000 and RM59,000 respectively. 

 

To the extent permitted by law, the Company has agreed to indemnify its auditor, Messrs Grant 

Thornton Malaysia PLT, as part of the terms of its audit engagement against claims by third parties 

arising from the audit (for an unspecified amount). No payment has been made to indemnify Messrs 

Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT for the financial year ended 30 April 2020. 

 

 

AUDITORS 

 

The Auditors, Messrs Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT, have expressed their willingness to continue 

in office. 
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS 

 

The significant events are disclosed in Note 31 to the Financial Statements. 

 

 

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

............................................................... ) 

DATO’ SRI LEE HOCK SENG  ) 

                  ) 

              ) 

            ) 

) 

) 

) DIRECTORS 

) 

)    

                    ) 

             ) 

              ) 

............................................................... ) 

DATO’ SRI LEE HOCK CHAI  ) 

 

 

 

 

Johor Bahru 

18 August 2020 
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS 
 

In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 32 to 105 are drawn up in 

accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting 

Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair 

view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 30 April 2020 and of their 

financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

 

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors. 

 

 

 

                                                                             

                                 

...................................................................          ……........................................................... 

        DATO’ SRI LEE HOCK SENG                        DATO’ SRI LEE HOCK CHAI                 

 

 

Johor Bahru 

18 August 2020 

 

STATUTORY DECLARATION 
 

I, Ng Chye Huat, being the Officer primarily responsible for the financial management of SCGM 

Bhd, do solemnly and sincerely declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the financial 

statements set out on pages 32 to 105 are correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously 

believing the same to be true and by virtue of the Statutory Declarations Act 1960. 

 

Subscribed and solemnly declared by ) 

the abovenamed at Johor Bahru in the ) 

State    of     Johor     this     day     of )    

18 August 2020                       )       .................................................................. 

                                                                          NG CHYE HUAT    

                                      (MIA No. 14186) 

                       

                        Before me: 

 

              Commissioner for Oaths 

 
             VASANTHI A/P VADIVELOO 

             
           J258 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  

TO THE MEMBERS OF 

 

SCGM BHD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

Company No: 200701021012 (779028 H) 
 

 

 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 

Opinion 

 

We have audited the financial statements of SCGM Bhd (“the Company”), which comprise the statements of 

financial position as at 30 April 2020 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss 

and other comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group 

and of the Company for the financial year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 

summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 32 to 105. 

 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of 

the Group and of the Company as at 30 April 2020, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the 

financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), 

International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in 

Malaysia. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International 

Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities 

 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and 

Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards Board 

for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International 

Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit 

of the financial statements of the Group for the current financial year. These matters were addressed in the 

context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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Company No: 200701021012 (779028 H) 
 

 

Key Audit Matters (cont’d) 
 

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables 
 

The risk 

Refer to Note 33(c) to the Financial Statements. We focused on this area because the Group has trade 

receivables that are past due but not impaired. The key associate risk was the recoverability of billed trade 

receivables as management judgement is required in estimating the expected credit losses. The Group applies 

a simplified approach in calculating provision for expected credit losses. Therefore, the Group does not track 

changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss provision based on lifetime ECLs at the reporting date. 

The Group considers amongst others, its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors 

specific to the debtors and the economic environment. 
 

 

Our response 

We have obtained an understanding of the Group’s policy on impairment of trade receivables and evaluated 

management’s judgement in calculating the expected credit losses for impairment of trade receivables. This 

includes reviewing the ageing of receivables and testing the integrity of ageing by calculating the due date for 

a sample of invoices. We also checked the recoverability of outstanding receivables through examination of 

subsequent cash receipts and tested the operating effectiveness of the relevant control procedures that 

management has in place. 

 

The basis of management’s judgement over the recoverability of billed trade receivables are disclosed in Note 

3.10.1.5 and 33(c) to the Financial Statements. 
 

 

Inventory valuation 
 

The risk 

Refer to Note 9 to the Financial Statements. The Group’s inventories is subject to a risk that the inventories 

become slow-moving or obsolete and rendering it not saleable or can only be sold for selling prices that are 

less than the carrying value. There is inherent subjectivity and estimation involved in determining the accuracy 

of inventory obsolescence provision and in making an assessment of its adequacy due to risks of inventory 

prices not valid and inventory not stated at the lower of cost or market. 

 

Our response 

We have obtained an understanding on the Group’s accounting policy in making the accounting estimates for 

inventories write-down which is in line with its business environment. We have also attended the year-end 

physical inventories count to validate counts performed by the Group. Besides that, we also tested a sample 

of inventories to ensure that they were held at the lower of cost and net realisable value. We have also 

evaluated management judgement and Group’s accounting policy with regards to the application of provision 

to the inventories. 

 

We have determined that there are no key audit matter to communicate in our report in relation to our audit 

of the financial statements of the Company. 
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Company No: 200701021012 (779028 H) 
 

 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 

 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 

information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of 

the Company and our auditors’ report thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company do not cover the other information 

and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility 

is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 

inconsistent with the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the 

audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements 

 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of 

the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with MFRSs, IFRSs and the requirements of the 

Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors 

determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company 

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for 

assessing the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 

matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either 

intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do 

so.  

 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of 

the Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and ISAs 

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
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Company No: 200701021012 (779028 H) 

 
 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d) 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and ISAs, we exercise 

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:- 

 

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of 

the Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

override of internal control. 

 

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the Group’s and of the Company’s internal control. 

 

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors. 

 

- Conclude on the appropriateness of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 

that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going 

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 

auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may 

cause the Group or the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of 

the Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the 

Company represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 

business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We 

are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely 

responsible for our audit opinion. 
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Company No: 200701021012 (779028 H) 
 

 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d) 

 

We communicated with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 

during our audit. 

 

We also provided the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats 

or safeguards applied. 

 

From the matters communicated with Directors, we determined those matters that were of most significance 

in the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current financial year and 

are therefore the key audit matters. We described these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation 

precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 

matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Other Matters 

 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the 

Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other 

person for the content of this report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GRANT THORNTON MALAYSIA PLT  MOHAMAD HEIZRIN BIN SUKIMAN 

(201906003682 & LLP0022494-LCA)  (NO: 03046/05/2021 J) 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS (AF 0737)  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT 

   

Johor Bahru   

18 August 2020   
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Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

RM RM RM RM

ASSETS

Non-current assets

 Property, plant and equipment 5 203,996,761  213,434,702  -                     -                     

 Capital work-in-progress 6 -                     1,305,358      -                     -                     

 Prepaid land lease payments 7 -                     159,875         -                     -                     

 Investment in a subsidiary 8 -                     -                     134,693,256  134,693,256  

 Total non-current assets 203,996,761  214,899,935  134,693,256  134,693,256  

Current assets

 Inventories 9 40,156,188    33,216,486    -                     -                     

 Trade receivables 10 45,898,344    42,478,488    -                     -                     

 Other receivables 11 3,493,385      4,381,667      21,093           26,667           

 Tax recoverable 123,304         6,289,493      -                     -                     

 Cash and bank balances 12 4,869,665      8,282,082      172,306         148,187         

 Total current assets 94,540,886    94,648,216    193,399         174,854         

Total assets 298,537,647  309,548,151  134,886,655  134,868,110  

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

 Share capital 13 134,739,820  134,739,820  132,439,820  132,439,820  

 Treasury shares 14 (2,309,671)     (2,140,087)     (2,309,671)     (2,140,087)     

 Warrant reserve 15 7,937,451      7,937,451      7,937,451      7,937,451      

 Discount on shares (7,937,451)     (7,937,451)     (7,937,451)     (7,937,451)     

 Reverse acquisition reserve 16 (28,227,000)   (28,227,000)   -                     -                     

 Unappropriated profit 65,942,315    52,516,931    4,698,189      4,498,907      

Total equity 170,145,464  156,889,664  134,828,338  134,798,640  

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

 Deferred tax liabilities 17 9,320,000      11,720,000    -                     -                     

 Finance lease creditors 18 -                     4,696,714      -                     -                     

 Lease liabilities 19 3,396,474      -                     -                     -                     

 Borrowings 20 47,168,914    54,898,192    -                     -                     

 Total non-current liabilities 59,885,388    71,314,906    -                     -                     

Current liabilities

 Trade payables 21 10,109,611    7,271,128      -                     -                     

 Other payables 22 13,555,246    17,703,659    58,317           69,470           

 Finance lease creditors 18 -                     2,856,300      -                     -                     

 Lease liabilities 19 2,057,640      -                     -                     -                     

 Borrowings 20 42,784,298    53,512,494    -                     -                     

 Total current liabilities 68,506,795    81,343,581    58,317           69,470           

Total liabilities 128,392,183  152,658,487  58,317           69,470           

Total equity and liabilities 298,537,647  309,548,151  134,886,655  134,868,110  

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 APRIL 2020

Group Company
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Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

RM RM RM RM

Revenue 23 210,482,830   219,569,286    4,300,000      5,400,000      

Cost of sales (170,404,257)  (195,302,049)   -                     -                     

Gross profit 40,078,573     24,267,237      4,300,000      5,400,000      

Other income 1,480,264       772,978           -                     -                     

Selling and distribution expenses (9,303,678)      (9,918,460)       -                     -                     

Administration expenses (10,513,395)    (10,404,067)     (249,496)        (263,306)        

Other expenses (1,006,199)      (820,468)          -                     -                     

Finance costs (4,855,511)      (5,583,904)       -                     -                     

Profit/(Loss) before tax 24 15,880,054     (1,686,684)       4,050,504      5,136,694      

Tax income/(expense) 25 1,396,552       (3,432,994)       -                     -                     

Profit/(Loss) for the financial year 17,276,606     (5,119,678)       4,050,504      5,136,694      

Other comprehensive income, net of tax 

Items that will be/will not be reclassified subsequently

 to profit or loss -                      -                       -                     -                     

Other comprehensive income for the financial year,

  net of tax -                      -                       -                     -                     

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the financial year 17,276,606     (5,119,678)       4,050,504      5,136,694      

Profit/(Loss) attributable to:-

 Owners of the Company 17,276,606     (5,119,678)       4,050,504      5,136,694      

Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to:-

 Owners of the Company 17,276,606     (5,119,678)       4,050,504      5,136,694      

Earnings per share attributable to owners of the

  Company

Earnings/(Loss) per ordinary share

 - Basic (sen) 26 8.97                (2.66)                

 - Diluted (sen) 26 -                      -                       

Group

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Company
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Distributable

Reverse

Share Treasury Warrant Discount on acquisition Unappropriated Total

capital shares reserve shares reserve profit equity

 RM RM RM RM RM RM RM

Group

Balance at 1 May 2018 134,739,820   (2,140,087)  7,937,451    (7,937,451)     (28,227,000)        62,937,542         167,310,275      

Transactions with owners:

For the financial year ended 30 April 2018

- Fourth interim single tier dividend of 1.50 sen

    per ordinary share and paid on 25 July 2018 -                     -                  -                   -                     -                         (2,891,418)         (2,891,418)         

For the financial year ended 30 April 2019

- First interim single tier dividend of 0.50 sen

    per ordinary share and paid on 25 October 2018 -                     -                  -                   -                     -                         (963,806)            (963,806)           

- Second interim single tier dividend of 0.50 sen

    per ordinary share and paid on 18 January 2019 -                     -                  -                   -                     -                         (963,806)            (963,806)           

- Third interim single tier dividend of 0.25 sen

    per ordinary share and paid on 26 April 2019 -                     -                  -                   -                     -                         (481,903)            (481,903)           

Total transactions with owners -                     -                  -                   -                     -                         (5,300,933)         (5,300,933)         

Loss for the financial year -                     -                  -                   -                     -                         (5,119,678)         (5,119,678)         

Other comprehensive income for the 

  financial year -                     -                  -                   -                     -                         -                         -                        

Total comprehensive loss for the

  financial year -                     -                  -                   -                     -                         (5,119,678)         (5,119,678)         

Balance at 30 April 2019 134,739,820   (2,140,087)  7,937,451    (7,937,451)     (28,227,000)        52,516,931         156,889,664      

Transactions with owners:

For the financial year ended 30 April 2019

- Fourth interim single tier dividend of 0.25 sen

    per ordinary share and paid on 26 July 2019 -                     -                  -                   -                     -                         (481,403)            (481,403)           

For the financial year ended 30 April 2020

- First interim single tier dividend of 0.25 sen

    per ordinary share and paid on 23 October 2019 -                     -                  -                   -                     -                         (481,403)            (481,403)           

- Second interim single tier dividend of 1.00 sen 

    per ordinary share and paid on 10 January 2020 -                     -                  -                   -                     -                         (1,925,610)         (1,925,610)         

- Third interim single tier dividend of 0.50 sen

    per ordinary share and paid on 30 April 2020 -                     -                  -                   -                     -                         (962,806)            (962,806)           

Acquisition of treasury shares -                     (169,584)     -                   -                     -                         -                         (169,584)           

Total transactions with owners -                     (169,584)     -                   -                     -                         (3,851,222)         (4,020,806)         

Profit for the financial year -                     -                  -                   -                     -                         17,276,606         17,276,606        

Other comprehensive income for the 

  financial year -                     -                  -                   -                     -                         -                         -                        

Total comprehensive income for the

  financial year -                     -                  -                   -                     -                         17,276,606         17,276,606        

Balance at 30 April 2020 134,739,820   (2,309,671)  7,937,451    (7,937,451)     (28,227,000)        65,942,315         170,145,464      

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020

Non-distributable

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
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Distributable

Share Treasury Warrant Discount on Unappropriated Total

capital shares reserve shares profit equity

 RM RM RM RM RM RM

Company

Balance at 1 May 2018 132,439,820   (2,140,087)  7,937,451     (7,937,451)    4,663,146         134,962,879     

Transactions with owners:

For the financial year ended 30 April 2018

- Fourth interim single tier dividend of 1.50 sen per ordinary share 

and paid on 25 July 2018 -                     -                  -                   -                   (2,891,418)        (2,891,418)        

For the financial year ended 30 April 2019

- First interim single tier dividend of 0.50 sen per ordinary share

and paid on 25 October 2018 -                     -                  -                   -                   (963,806)           (963,806)           

- Second interim single tier dividend of 0.50 sen per ordinary share 

and paid on 18 January 2019 -                     -                  -                   -                   (963,806)           (963,806)           

- Third interim single tier dividend of 0.25 sen per ordinary share 

and paid on 26 April 2019 -                     -                  -                   -                   (481,903)           (481,903)           

Total transactions with owners -                     -                  -                   -                   (5,300,933)        (5,300,933)        

Profit for the financial year -                     -                  -                   -                   5,136,694         5,136,694         

Other comprehensive income for the financial year -                     -                  -                   -                   -                       -                       

Total comprehensive income for the financial year -                     -                  -                   -                   5,136,694         5,136,694         

Balance at 30 April 2019 132,439,820   (2,140,087)  7,937,451     (7,937,451)    4,498,907         134,798,640     

Transactions with owners:

For the financial year ended 30 April 2019

- Fourth interim single tier dividend of 0.25 sen per ordinary share 

and paid on 26 July 2019 -                     -                  -                   -                   (481,403)           (481,403)           

For the financial year ended 30 April 2020

- First interim single tier dividend of 0.25 sen per ordinary share 

and paid on 23 October 2019 -                     -                  -                   -                   (481,403)           (481,403)           

- Second interim single tier dividend of 1.00 sen per ordinary share 

and paid on 10 January 2020 -                     -                  -                   -                   (1,925,610)        (1,925,610)        

- Third interim single tier dividend of 0.50 sen per ordinary share 

and paid on 30 April 2020 -                     -                  -                   -                   (962,806)           (962,806)           

Acquisition of treasury shares -                     (169,584)     -                   -                   -                       (169,584)           

Total transactions with owners -                     (169,584)     -                   -                   (3,851,222)        (4,020,806)        

Profit for the financial year -                     -                  -                   -                   4,050,504         4,050,504         

Other comprehensive income for the financial year -                     -                  -                   -                   -                       -                       

Total comprehensive income for the financial year -                     -                  -                   -                   4,050,504         4,050,504         

Balance at 30 April 2020 132,439,820   (2,309,671)  7,937,451     (7,937,451)    4,698,189         134,828,338     

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020 (CONT’D)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Non-distributable

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
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Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

RM RM RM RM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit/(Loss) before tax 15,880,054     (1,686,684)      4,050,504       5,136,694       

Adjustments for:-
 Allowance for impairment of receivables 1,005,682       711,445          -                      -                      
 Reversal for impairment of receivables (404,666)         (9,932)             -                      -                      
 Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments -                      2,186              -                      -                      
 Depreciation of right-of-use assets 1,182,071       -                      -                      -                      
 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13,621,780     14,702,248     -                      -                      
 Dividend income -                      -                      (4,300,000)      (5,400,000)      
 Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (450,859)         (68,500)           -                      -                      
 Interest expense 4,855,511       5,583,904       -                      -                      
 Interest income (77,591)           (69,094)           -                      -                      
 Inventories written down 742,759          897,322          -                      -                      
 Property, plant and equipment written off 430                 -                      -                      -                      
 Reversal of inventories written down (897,322)         (716,007)         -                      -                      
 Unrealised gain on foreign exchange (27,864)           (146,831)         -                      -                      

Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 35,429,985     19,200,057     (249,496)         (263,306)         

Changes in working capital:-
 Inventories (6,785,139)      (2,864,167)      -                      -                      
 Receivables (2,936,319)      2,577,245       5,574              (26,667)           
 Payables (2,139,579)      (21,202,934)    (11,153)           (5,018)             

 Cash flows generated from/(used in) operations 23,568,948     (2,289,799)      (255,075)         (294,991)         

 Tax paid (730,960)         (936,953)         -                      -                      
 Tax refunded 5,893,701       -                      -                      -                      

 Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities 28,731,689     (3,226,752)      (255,075)         (294,991)         

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

 Dividend received -                      -                      4,300,000       5,400,000       
 Interest received 77,591            69,094            -                      -                      
 Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,692,502       68,500            -                      -                      
 Capital work-in-progress incurred A (139,470)         (150,303)         -                      -                      
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment B (4,118,514)      (13,874,536)    -                      -                      

 Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities (2,487,891)      (13,887,245)    4,300,000       5,400,000       

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

 Dividend paid (3,851,222)      (5,300,933)      (3,851,222)      (5,300,933)      
 Drawdown of short term borrowings 6,033,278       36,561,028     -                      -                      
 Drawdown of term loans -                      20,761,611     -                      -                      
 Lease interest payment (351,990)         -                      -                      -                      
 Interest paid (4,165,643)      (5,314,902)      -                      -                      
 Refinance of property, plant and equipment -                      6,442,808       -                      -                      
 Repayment of principal portion of finance lease creditors -                      (3,180,101)      -                      -                      
 Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities (2,655,036)      -                      -                      -                      
 Repayment of short term borrowings (17,035,412)    (23,255,264)    -                      -                      
 Repayment of term loans (7,455,340)      (5,763,955)      -                      -                      
 Purchase of treasury shares (169,584)         -                      (169,584)         -                      

 Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities (29,650,949)    20,950,292     (4,020,806)      (5,300,933)      

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 Net changes (3,407,151)      3,836,295       24,119            (195,924)         

 Effect of exchange rate changes (5,266)             93,139            -                      -                      

 At beginning of financial year 8,282,082       4,352,648       148,187          344,111          

 At end of financial year 4,869,665       8,282,082       172,306          148,187          

Group

 STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020

Company
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NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

A.  CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS INCURRED

2020 2019

RM RM

Cash payments, represents total capital work-in-progress incurred 139,470          150,303             

B. PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the financial year, property, plant and equipment were acquired by the following means:-

2020 2019

RM RM

Cash payments 4,118,514       13,874,536        

Addition to right-of-use in exchange for increased lease liabilities 519,715          -                        

Outstanding in payables 328,630          971,702             

Total purchase of property, plant and equipment 4,966,859       14,846,238        

C. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Group Finance lease Lease Term Short-term
creditors liabilities loans borrowings Total

RM RM RM RM RM

At 1 May 2018 4,290,307       -                      47,414,385     32,692,881     84,397,573        

Addition 6,442,808       -                      20,761,611     36,561,028     63,765,447        

Repayment (3,180,101)      -                      (5,763,955)      (23,255,264)    (32,199,320)      

At 30 April 2019 7,553,014       -                      62,412,041     45,998,645     115,963,700      

Effect of adopting of MFRS 16  (7,553,014) 7,589,435       -                      -                      36,421               

At 1 May 2019 -                      7,589,435       62,412,041     45,998,645     116,000,121      

Addition -                      519,715          -                      6,033,278       6,552,993          

Repayment -                      (2,655,036)      (7,455,340)      (17,035,412)    (27,145,788)      

At 30 April 2020 -                      5,454,114       54,956,701     34,996,511     95,407,326        

Group

Group

 STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020 (CONT’D)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 30 APRIL 2020 
 

 

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding. 

 

The principal activities of the subsidiary are disclosed in Note 8 to the Financial Statements. 
 

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities of the Company and 

its subsidiary company during the financial year. 
 

 The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia 

and listed on the Main Market of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The registered office 

of the Company is located at Level 15-2, Bangunan Faber Imperial Court, Jalan Sultan 

Ismail, 50250 Kuala Lumpur. The principal place of business of the Company is located at 

PTD 109444, Jalan Sengkang, Kawasan Perusahaan Sri Sengkang, 81000 Kulai, Johor.  

 

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance 

with a resolution of the Directors on 18 August 2020. 

 

 

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

  2.1 Statement of compliance 
 

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in 

accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International 

Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and the requirements of the Companies Act 

2016 in Malaysia.  
  

2.2 Basis of measurement 

 

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company are prepared under 

historical cost convention, unless otherwise indicated in the summary of significant 

accounting policies. 

 

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in 

exchange for goods and services. 
 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 

liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 

date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to 

sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the 

asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous 

market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must 

be accessible to by the Group and the Company. 
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2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D) 

 

2.2 Basis of measurement (cont’d) 

 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 

participants act in their economic best interest.  

 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial market takes into account a market 

participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest 

and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in 

its highest and best use.  

 

The Group and the Company use valuation techniques that are appropriate in the 

circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 

maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 

unobservable inputs. 

 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 

statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based 

on the lowest level input that is significant to their fair value measurement as a 

whole:- 

 

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets 

or liabilities. 

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 

to their fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 

to their fair value measurement is unobservable. 

 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring 

basis, the Group and the Company determine whether transfers have occurred 

between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest 

level input that is significant to their fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of 

each reporting period. 

 

The Group and the Company have established control framework in respect of 

measurement of fair values of financial instruments. The Board of Directors have 

overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements. The 

Board of Directors regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation 

adjustments.  

 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group and the Company have 

determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics 

and risks of the asset or liability and the level of fair value hierarchy as explained 

above. 
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2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D) 

 

2.3 Functional and presentation currency  

 

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”) which is the 

Company’s functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest RM except 

when otherwise stated. 

 

2.4 MFRSs 

 

2.4.1 Adoption of new or revised MFRSs 

 

The Group and the Company have applied the following standards, amendments to 

published standards and IC Interpretations approved by Malaysian Accounting 

Standards Board (“MASB”) for the first time for the financial year beginning on 1 

May 2019: 

 

• MFRS 16 – Leases 

• Amendments to MFRS 9 – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 

• Amendments to MFRS 119 – Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement 

• Amendments to MFRS 128 – Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint 

Ventures 

• Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle 

• IC Interpretation 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 

 

The adoption of the above MFRSs, amendments to published standards and IC 

Interpretations did not have any material impact on the current and prior year 

financial statements of the Group and of the Company except for those explanations 

as disclosed in Note 4 to the Financial Statements. 

 

2.4.2 Standards issued but not yet effective 
 

The following are MFRSs, Amendments to MFRSs and IC Interpretations with 

effective date on or after 1 January 2020 issued by MASB and they have not been 

early adopted by the Group and the Company. The Group and the Company intend 

to adopt these MFRSs, amendments to the published standards and interpretations, if 

applicable, when they become effective in the respective financial period. 
 

(a) Amendments effective for financial period beginning on or after 1 January 

2020 

 

• Amendments to MFRS 2 – Share-based Payment 

• Amendments to MFRS 3 – Business Combinations 

• Amendments to MFRS 6 – Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral 

Resources 

• Amendments to MFRS 7 – Financial Instruments: Disclosures 

• Amendments to MFRS 9 – Financial Instruments 

• Amendments to MFRS 14 – Regulatory Deferral Accounts 

• Amendments to MFRS 101 – Presentation of Financial Statements 

• Amendments to MFRS 108 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 

Estimates and Errors 
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2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D) 

 

2.4 MFRSs (cont’d) 

 

2.4.2 Standards issued but not yet effective (cont’d) 

 

(a) Amendments effective for financial period beginning on or after 1 January 

2020 (cont’d) 

 

• Amendments to MFRS 134 – Interim Financial Reporting 

• Amendments to MFRS 137 – Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 

Contingent Assets 

• Amendments to MFRS 138 – Intangible Assets 

• Amendments to MFRS 139 – Financial Instruments: Recognition and 

Measurement 

• Amendments to IC Interpretation 12 – Service Concession Arrangements 

• Amendments to IC Interpretation 19 – Extinguishing Financial Liabilities 

with Equity Instruments 

• Amendments to IC Interpretation 20 – Stripping Costs in the Production 

Phase of a Surface Mine 

• Amendments to IC Interpretation 22 – Foreign Currency Transactions and 

Advance Consideration 

• Amendments to IC Interpretation 132 – Intangible Assets – Web Site Costs 

 

(b) Amendments effective for financial period beginning on or after 1 June 2020 

• Amendments to MFRS 16 – Leases for Covid 19-Related Rent Concessions  

 

(c) Amendments effective for financial period beginning on or after 1 January 

2022 
 

• Amendments to MFRSs contained in the document entitled – Annual 

improvements to MFRS Standards 2018 – 2020  

• Amendments to MFRS 3 - Business Combinations  

• Amendments to MFRS 116 – Property, Plant and Equipment Proceeds before 

Intended Use  

• Amendments to MFRS 137 – Provision, Contingent Liabilities and 

Contingent Assets for Onerous Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 

 

(d) MFRS and amendments effective for financial period beginning on or after 

1 January 2023 

• MFRS 17 – Insurance Contracts 

• Amendments to MFRS 17 – Insurance Contracts 

• Amendment to MFRS 101 – Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-

current 
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2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D) 

 

2.4 MFRSs (cont’d) 

 

2.4.2 Standards issued but not yet effective (cont’d) 

 

(e) Amendments effective for a date yet to be confirmed 

 

• Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128 – Sale or Contribution of Assets 

between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture 

• The existing MFRS 4 and Amendments to MFRS 4 will be withdrawn upon 

the adoption of the new MFRS 17 which will take effect on or after 1 January 

2023. 

 

The initial application of the above MFRSs, amendments to the published standards 

and interpretations is not expected to have any material impact on the financial 

statements of the Group and of the Company. 

 

2.5 Significant accounting estimates and judgements  
 

Estimates, assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made in the 

preparation of the financial statements. They affect the application of the Company’s 

accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, 

and disclosures made. Estimates and underlying assumptions are assessed on an on-

going basis and are based on experience and relevant factors, including expectations 

of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The actual 

results may differ from the judgements, estimates and assumptions made by 

management, and will seldom equal the estimated results. 
 

2.5.1 Estimation uncertainty 

 

 Information about significant estimates and assumptions that have the most 

significant effect on recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and 

expenses are discussed below. 

 

Provision for expected credit losses (“ECL”) for trade receivables 

 

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The 

provision rates are based on days past due for grouping of various customer segments 

that have similar loss patterns such as customer type and rating and other forms of 

credit insurance. 

 

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default 

rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss 

experience with forward-looking information on each quarterly reporting date, 

whereby the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-

looking estimates are analysed. 
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2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D) 
 

2.5 Significant accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d) 
 

2.5.1 Estimation uncertainty (cont’d) 

 

Provision for expected credit losses (“ECL”) for trade receivables (cont’d) 

 

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed rates, forecast of 

economic conditions and ECL is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is 

sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast of economic conditions. The 

historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may not be 

representative of customers’ actual default rate in the future. The information about 

the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in Note 10 to the Financial 

Statements. 

 

Impairment of inventories 

 

The management reviews inventories to identify damaged, obsolete and  

slow-moving inventories which require judgement and changes in such estimates 

could result in revision to valuation of inventories. 
 

The carrying amount of the Group’s inventories at the end of the reporting period is 

disclosed in Note 9 to the Financial Statements. 

 

Useful lives of depreciable assets other than right-of-use assets 
 

The management estimates the useful lives of the property, plant and equipment other 

than right-of-use assets to be within 5 to 50 years and reviews the useful lives of 

depreciable assets at each reporting date. At 30 April 2020, the management assesses 

that the useful lives represent the expected utility of the assets to the Group. The 

carrying amounts are analysed in Note 5 to the Financial Statements. Actual results, 

however, may vary due to change in the expected level of usage and technological 

developments, which result in adjustment to the Group’s assets. 

 

Impairment of property, plant and equipment including right-of-use assets  

 

The Group carries out impairment tests based on a variety of estimation including 

value-in-use of cash-generating unit to which the property, plant and equipment 

including right-of-use assets are allocated. Estimating the value-in-use requires the 

Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from cash-generating 

unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value of 

those cash flows. 

 

Income taxes/Deferred tax liabilities 
 

Significant judgement is involved in determining the Group-wide provision for 

income taxes. There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate 

tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.  
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2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D) 
 

2.5 Significant accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d) 
 

2.5.1 Estimation uncertainty (cont’d) 

 

Income taxes/Deferred tax liabilities (cont’d) 
 

The Group and the Company recognise tax liabilities based on estimates of whether 

additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome is different from the 

amounts that were initially recognised, such difference will impact the income tax 

and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made. 

 

Deferred tax assets 
 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unutilised 

tax losses, unabsorbed capital allowances and unused tax credits to the extent that it 

is probable that taxable profit will be available against which all the deductible 

temporary differences, unutilised tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances can 

be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount 

of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level 

of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 
 

Assumptions about generation of future taxable profits depend on management’s 

estimates of future cash flows. These depend on estimates of future production and 

sales volume, operating costs, capital expenditure, dividends and other capital 

management transactions. Judgement is also required about application of income tax 

legislation. These judgements and assumptions are subject to risks and uncertainty, 

hence there is a possibility that changes in circumstances will alter expectations, 

which may impact the amount of deferred tax assets recognised in the statements of 

financial position and the amount of unrecognised tax losses and unrecognised 

temporary differences. 

 

Leases – Estimating the incremental borrowing rate 

 

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, 

it uses its incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is 

the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, 

and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value 

to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore 

reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no 

observable rates are available (such as for Group that do not enter into financing 

transactions) or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of 
the lease (for example, when leases are not in the Group’s functional currency). The 

Group estimate the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when 

available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the weight 

applied on those observation inputs). 
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2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D) 

 

2.5 Significant accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d) 

 

2.5.2 Significant management judgement 

 

The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting 

policies of the Group that have the most significant effect on the financial statements. 

 

  Deferred tax assets  

 

The assessment of the probability of future taxable income in which deferred tax 

assets can be utilised is based on the Group’s latest approved budget forecast, which 

is adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits to the 

use of any unused tax loss or credit.  The tax rules in the numerous jurisdictions in 

which the Group operates are also carefully taken into consideration. If a positive 

forecast of taxable income indicates the probable use of a deferred tax asset, 

especially when it can be utilised without a time limit, that deferred tax asset is usually 

recognised in full. The recognition of deferred tax assets that are subject to certain 

legal or economic limits or uncertainties is assessed individually by management 

based on the specific facts and circumstances. 

 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

The Group and the Company apply the significant accounting policies, as summarised below, 

consistently throughout all periods presented in the financial statements. 

 

3.1 Consolidation 

 

3.1.1 Subsidiary  

 

Subsidiary is entity, including structured entities, controlled by the Company. Control 

exists when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its 

involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its 

power over the entity. Potential voting rights are considered when assessing control 

only when such rights are substantive. Besides, the Group considers it has de facto 

power over an investee when, despite not having the majority of voting rights, it has 

the current ability to direct the activities of the investee that significantly affect the 

investee’s return. 

 

Investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost in the Company’s statement of financial 

position. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the 

subsidiary is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. 

 

Upon the disposal of investment in a subsidiary, the difference between the net 

disposal proceeds and its carrying amount is included in profit or loss. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

3.1 Consolidation (cont’d) 

 

3.1.2 Basis of consolidation 

 

The Group’s financial statements consolidate the audited financial statements of the 

Company and its subsidiary, which have been prepared in accordance with the 

Group’s accounting policies. Amounts reported in the financial statements of 

subsidiary have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the 

accounting policies adopted by the Group. The financial statements of the Company 

and its subsidiary are all drawn up to the same reporting period. 

 

All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses 

resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the 

consolidated financial statements. 

 

The subsidiary is consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the 

Group and is no longer consolidated from the date that control ceases. 

 

Changes in the Company owners’ ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result 

in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. In such circumstances, 

the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted to 

reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary company. Any 

difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and 

the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity 

and attributed to owners of the Company. 

 

3.1.3 Business combinations and goodwill 

 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of 

an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured 

at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the 

acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether it measures the 

non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate 

share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs incurred are expensed 

and included in administrative expenses. 

 

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities 

assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the 

contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the 

acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host 

contracts by the acquiree. 

 

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of 

the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair 

value at the acquisition date through profit or loss. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

3.1 Consolidation (cont’d) 

 

3.1.3 Business combinations and goodwill (cont’d) 

 

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at 

fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes in the fair value of the 

contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognised 

in accordance with MFRS 9 either in profit or loss or as a change to other 

comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it will 

not be remeasured. Subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. In instances 

where the contingent consideration does not fall within the scope of MFRS 9, it is 

measured in accordance with the appropriate MFRS. 

 

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the 

consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interest over 

the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is 

lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is 

recognised in profit or loss. 

 

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated 

impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a 

business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s 

cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective 

of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. 

 

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within 

that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is 

included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss 

on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured 

based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-

generating unit retained. 

 

3.1.4 Loss of control 

 

Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets and 

liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other components 

of the equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of 

control is recognised in profit or loss. 

 

If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is 

measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for 

as an equity accounted investee or as an available-for-sale financial asset depending 

on the level of influence retained. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 

3.2 Property, plant and equipment other than right-of-use assets 

 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated 

depreciation and any impairment losses. Depreciation is provided on the straight-line 

method in order to write-off the cost of each asset over its estimated useful life. 

Capital work-in-progress is not depreciated until it is completed and ready for 

commercial utilisation. No depreciation is provided on freehold land.    

 

The principal annual depreciation rates used are as follows:- 

 

  Buildings               50 years 

  Equipment, plant and machinery 10 – 15 years 

  Motor vehicles 5 years 

  Furniture, fittings and others 5 – 10 years 

 

Included in equipment, plant and machinery is plant and machinery, factory 

equipment, electrical installation, mould and fire extinguisher. 

 

Included in furniture, fittings and others is renovation and electrical installation, 

signboard, mobile phone, furniture and fittings, office equipment, air conditioner and 

computer system. 

 

Restoration cost relating to an item of property, plant and equipment is capitalised 

only if such expenditure is expected to increase the future benefits from the existing 

property, plant and equipment beyond its previously assessed standard of 

performance. 

 

Property, plant and equipment are written down to recoverable amount if, in the 

opinion of the Directors, it is less than their carrying value. Recoverable amount is 

the net selling price of the property, plant and equipment i.e. the amount obtainable 

from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, 

willing parties, less the costs of disposal. 

 

The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each 

financial year end to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are 

consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the 

future economic benefits embodied in the items of property, plant and equipment. 

 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no 

future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss 
arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the profit or loss in the financial 

year in which the asset is derecognised.  
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

3.3 Capital work-in-progress 

 

 Capital work-in-progress consists of factory building and software systems for 

intended use as production facilities. The amount is stated at cost and not depreciated 

until it is completed and ready for their intended use. 

 

3.4 Asset acquired under lease agreements 

 

The Group as lessee 

 

Accounting policies applied until 30 April 2019 

 

Leasehold land at cost 

 

Leasehold land that normally has an indefinite economic life and title is not expected 

to pass to the Group by the end of the lease term is treated as operating lease. The 

payment made on entering into or acquiring a leasehold land is accounted for as 

prepaid land lease payment and is amortised over the lease term of 99 years. 

 

Finance leases  

 

Lease of property, plant and equipment acquired under hire purchase and finance 

lease arrangements which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 

to the Group are capitalised. The depreciation policy on these assets is similar to that 

of the Group’s property, plant and equipment depreciation policy. 

 

Outstanding obligation due under hire purchase and finance lease arrangements after 

deducting finance expenses are included as liabilities in the financial statements. 

Finance charges on hire purchase and finance lease arrangements are allocated to 

profit or loss over the period of the respective agreements. 

 

Operating leases 

 

Leased payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risk and benefits 

remain with the lessor, are charged as expenses in the period in which they are 

incurred. 

 

Accounting policies applied from 1 May 2019 

 

For any new contracts entered into on or after 1 May 2019, the Group considers 

whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of 

a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of 

time in exchange for consideration’. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 

3.4 Asset acquired under lease agreements (cont’d) 
 

The Group as lessee (cont’d) 
 

Accounting policies applied from 1 May 2019 (cont’d)  

 

To apply this definition the Group assesses whether the contract meets three key 

evaluations which are whether:- 

 

• The contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified 

in the contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset 

is made available to the Group. 

 

• The Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits 

from use of the identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its 

rights within the defined scope of the contract. 

 

• The Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the 

period of use. The Group assesses whether it has the right to direct ‘how and 

for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of use. 

 

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee  

  

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease 

liability on the statement of financial position. The right-of-use asset is measured at 

cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial 

direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove 

the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease 

commencement date (net of any incentives received). 

 

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease 

commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset 

or the end of the lease term. If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at 

the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, 

depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The Group also 

assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist. 

 

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present 

value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate 

implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Group’s incremental 

borrowing rate. 

 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of 

fixed payments (including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index 

or rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and 

payments arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

3.4 Asset acquired under lease agreements (cont’d) 

 

The Group as lessee (cont’d) 
 

Accounting policies applied from 1 May 2019 (cont’d) 

 

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee (cont’d) 

 

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made 

and increased for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or 

modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. 

 

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in 

the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to 

zero. 

 

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and lease 

liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expense in profit or 

loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

 

On the statement of financial position, right-of-use assets have been included in 

property, plant and equipment. 

 

The Group as lessor 

 

The accounting policy under MFRS 16 has not changed from the previous accounting 

policy under MFRS 17 for lessor accounting.  

 

Where the Group acts as lessor in an operating lease arrangement, rental income from 

operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 

Lease incentives provided are recognised over the lease term on a straight-line basis. 

 

3.5 Inventories 
 

Inventories consist of raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods and are 

stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  
 

Cost of raw materials is determined on the first-in-first-out method which includes 

the original cost of purchase plus the incidental cost incurred in bringing the 

inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of work-in-progress and 

finished goods include cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion 

of production overheads.  

 

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 

business less selling and distribution costs and all other estimated costs to completion. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

3.6 Taxes 
 

3.6.1 Income tax 
 

Income tax on profit or loss for the financial year comprises current tax expense and 

deferred tax. Current tax expense is the expected amount of income taxes payable in 

respect of the taxable profit for the financial year and is measured using the tax rates 

that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 
 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are provided for under the liability method at the 

current tax rate in respect of all temporary differences at the reporting date between 

the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the statements of financial position and 

its tax base including unused tax losses and capital allowances.  
 

Deferred tax asset are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that taxable 

profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be 

utilised. The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting 

date. If it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow 

the benefit of part or the entired deferred tax asset to be utilised, the carrying amount 

of the deferred tax asset will be reduced accordingly. When it becomes probable that 

sufficient taxable profit will be available, such reductions will be reversed to the 

extent of the taxable profit. 

 

Current tax expense and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when it 

arises from a transaction which is recognised directly in equity, in which case the 

deferred tax is also charged or credited directly in equity, or when it arises from a 

business combination that is an acquisition, in which case the deferred tax is included 

in the resulting goodwill. 

 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when 

the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted 

or substantively enacted by the reporting date.  

 

3.6.2 Indirect Taxes 
 

GST is a consumption tax based on value-added concept. GST is imposed on goods 

and services at every production and distribution stage in the supply chain including 

importation of goods and services, at the applicable tax rate of 6%. Input GST that 

the Group paid on purchases of business inputs can be deducted from output GST. 

 

The Malaysian Government has zero rated the GST effective from 1 June 2018. This 

means that the GST rate on the supplies of goods or services or on the importation of 

goods has been revised from 6% to 0%. 

 

The GST has been replaced with Sales and Services Tax (“SST”) effective from 1 

September 2018. The rate for sales tax is fixed at 5% or 10% while the rate for 

services tax is fixed at 6%. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

3.6 Taxes (cont’d) 

 

3.6.2 Indirect Taxes (cont’d) 
 

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST/SST except:- 
 

(i) where the GST/SST incurred in a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable 

from the authority, in which case the GST/SST is recognised as part of the cost 

of acquisition of the assets or as part of the expense item as applicable; and 
 

(ii) receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of GST/SST included. 
 

The net amount of GST/SST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority 

is included as part of receivables or payables in the statements of financial position. 

 

3.7 Foreign currency transactions and balances 
 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency 

rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. 
 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at 

the functional currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. 
 

All differences are taken to the profit or loss.  
 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency 

are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-

monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the 

exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising 

in translation of non-monetary items is recognised in line with the gain or loss of the 

item that gave rise to the translation difference (translation differences on items 

whose gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is 

also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss respectively). 

 

3.8 Dividends 
 

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the articles of 

association of the Company grant the Directors the authority to declare interim 

dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised directly as a liability when 

they are proposed and declared. 

 

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are not accounted for in shareholders’ 

equity as an appropriation of unappropriated profit, until they have been approved by 

the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by 

the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

3.9 Revenue recognition 

 

The Group and the Company apply five-step model revenue recognition under MFRS 

15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. 

 

The Group and the Company recognise revenue from contracts with customers for 

goods or services based on the five-step model as set out in this Standards:- 

 

i. Identify contracts with a customer. A contract is defined as an agreement between 

two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the 

criteria that must be met. 

ii. Identify performance obligations in the contract. A performance obligation is a 

promise in a contract with a customer to transfer goods or services to the customer 

that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the 

same and that have the same pattern of transfer to the customer. 

iii. Determine the transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of 

consideration to which the Group and the Company expect to be entitled in 

exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding 

amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

iv. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract. For 

a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group and the 

Company allocate transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount 

that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Group and the Company 

expect to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation. 

v. Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group and the Company satisfy a performance 

obligation. An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of the 

asset. 

 

The Group and the Company satisfy a performance obligation and recognise revenue 

over time if the Group’s and the Company’s performance:- 

 

i. Does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Company 

and have an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to-date; or 

ii. Create or enhance an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or 

enhanced; or 

iii. Provide benefits that the customer simultaneously receives and consumes as the 

Group and the Company perform. 

 

For performance obligations where none of the above conditions are met, revenue is 

recognised at a point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied. 

 

When the Group and the Company satisfy a performance obligation by delivering the 

promised goods or services, it creates a contract based on asset on the amount of 

consideration earned by the performance. Where the amount of consideration 

received from a customer exceeds the amount of revenue recognised, this give rise 

to a contract liability. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

3.9 Revenue recognition (cont’d) 

 

3.9.1  Sales of goods 

 

All revenue is recognised at a point in time, generally on delivery of goods. An asset 

is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of the asset. All the contracts 

are completed at the adoption date. The revenue is recognised net of any related 

rebates, discounts and tax. The Group and the Company shall disaggregate revenue 

recognised from contracts with customers into categories that depict how the nature, 

amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic 

factors. 

 

3.9.2  Revenue from other sources 

 

Interest income is recognised as it accrued using effective interest method in profit or 

loss except for interest income arising from temporary investment of borrowings 

taken specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualified asset which is accounted 

for in accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing costs. 

 

Rental income from property is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis 

over the term of the lease. 

 

3.9.3  Dividend income 

 

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive payments is 

established. 

 

3.10   Financial instruments 

 

3.10.1    Financial assets 

 

3.10.1.1 Classification 
 

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial 

asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s and the Company’s 

business model for managing them.  

 

The Group and the Company classify its financial assets in the following 

measurement categories: 

 

• Those to be measured at amortised cost; 

• Those to be measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”); and 

• Those to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 

(“FVOCI”). 

 

During the financial year, the Group and the Company do not have any financial 

assets categorised as FVTPL and FVOCI. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

3.10   Financial instruments (cont’d) 

3.10.1    Financial assets (cont’d) 
 

3.10.1.2 Recognition and derecognition 

  

A financial asset is recognised in the statement of financial position when, and only 

when, the Group and the Company become a party to the contractual provisions of 

the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised 

on trade-date, the date on which the Group and the Company commit to purchase 

or sell the asset.  

 

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the 

financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group and the 

Company have transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. On 

derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount 

(measured at the date of derecognition) and the consideration received (including 

any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or 

loss. 

 

3.10.1.3 Initial measurement 

  

With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing 

component or for which the Group and the Company have applied the practical 

expedient, the Group and the Company initially measure a financial asset at its fair 

value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss 

(“FVTPL”), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the 

financial asset. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing 

component or for which the Group and the Company have applied the practical 

expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under MFRS 15. 

 

3.10.1.4 Subsequent measurement 

  

Financial assets are subsequently classified into the following categories:- 

  

Amortised cost 

 

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows 

represent solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) are measured at 

amortised cost. 

 

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using effective interest 

method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or 

loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

3.10   Financial instruments (cont’d) 

 

3.10.1    Financial assets (cont’d) 

 

3.10.1.5 Impairment of financial assets 

 

The Group’s and the Company’s financial assets at amortised cost include trade 

receivables, most of the other receivables and cash and bank balances. 

 

The Group and the Company assess on a forward looking basis the expected credit 

losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at FVTPL. ECLs represent 

probability-weighted estimate of the difference between the contractual cash flows 

due in accordance with the contract and all cash flows that the Group and the 

Company expect to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective 

interest rate. The expected cash flows include cash flows from the sale of collateral 

held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. The 

impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant 

increase in credit risk. 

 

The measurement of ECL reflects: 

 

• an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating 

a range of possible outcomes; 

• the time value of money; and 

• reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or 

effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of 

future economic conditions. 

 

ECLs are measured on either of the following basis:- 

 

• 12-month ECLs: the portion of lifetime expected credit loss losses that result from 

possible default events on a financial instrument within the 12 months after the 

reporting date; and 

• Lifetime ECLs: the expected credit loss that result from all possible default events 

over the expected life of a financial instrument. 

 

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual 

period (including extension options) over which the Group and the Company are 

exposed to credit risk. 

 

For trade receivables, the Group and the Company apply a simplified approach in 

calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group and the Company do not track changes in 

credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each 

reporting date. The Group and the Company have established a provision matrix that 

is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward looking factors 

specific to the debtors and economic environment. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

3.10   Financial instruments (cont’d) 

 

3.10.1    Financial assets (cont’d) 

 

3.10.1.5 Impairment of financial assets (cont’d) 

 

The Group and the Company considers a trade receivable in default when fail to 

make contractual payments within 180 days past due and fail to engage with the 

Group and the Company on alternative payment arrangement, unless the Group and 

the Company have reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a 

more lagging default criterion is more appropriate. However, in certain cases, the 

Group and the Company may also consider a trade receivable to be in default when 

internal or external information indicates that the Group and the Company is 

unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into 

account any credit enhancements held by the Group and the Company. 

 

For all other financial instruments, the Group and the Company recognise a loss 

allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in 

credit risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss 

allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. 

  

ECLs are re-measured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial 

instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECLs amount is 

recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group and the 

Company recognise an impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments with a 

corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance 

account, except for investments in debt securities that are measured at fair value 

through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) (recycling), for which the loss 

allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair 

value reserve (recycling). 

 

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in 

full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the 

case when the Group and the Company determine that the debtor does not have any 

assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the 

amount subject to the write-off. 

 

3.10.2    Financial liabilities 

 

3.10.2.1 Classification  

The Group and the Company classify its financial liabilities in the following 

measurement categories:- 

 

• Those to be measured subsequently at FVTPL; and 

• Those to be measured at amortised cost 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

3.10   Financial instruments (cont’d) 

3.10.2    Financial liabilities (cont’d) 

3.10.2.2 Recognition and derecognition 

 

A financial liability is recognised in the statement of financial position when, and 

only when, the Group and the Company become a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument. 

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial 

position when, and only when, the obligation specified in the contract is discharged 

or cancelled or expires. A financial liability is also derecognised when its terms are 

modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in 

which case, a new financial liability based on modified terms is recognised at fair 

value. 

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount 

of the financial liability (or part of the financial liability) extinguished or transferred 

to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets 

transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss. 

 

3.10.2.3 Initial measurement 

The Group and the Company initially measure a financial liability at its fair value 

plus, in the case of a financial liability not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are 

directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial liability. 

 

3.10.2.4 Subsequent measurement 

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, 

as described below:- 

  

(i) FVTPL 

 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities that are derivatives 

(except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated 

and effective hedging instrument), contingent consideration in a business 

combination and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at 

FVTPL. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

3.10   Financial instruments (cont’d) 

 

3.10.2    Financial liabilities (cont’d) 

 

3.10.2.4 Subsequent measurement (cont’d) 

(i) FVTPL (cont’d) 
 

At initial recognition, the Group and the Company may irrevocably designate 

a financial liability that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at 

amortised cost as at fair value through profit or loss: 
 

• If doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch 

that would otherwise arise; 

• A group of financial liabilities or financial assets and financial liabilities 

is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in 

accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy, 

and information about the group is provided internally on that basis to 

the Group’s and the Company’s key management personnel. 
 

Derivative liabilities are initially measured at fair value and subsequently 

stated at fair value, with any resultant gains or losses recognised in profit or 

loss. Net gains or losses recognised on derivatives include exchange 

differences. 
 

For financial liability that is designated as at fair value through profit or loss 

upon initial recognition, the Group and the Company recognise the amount of 

change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes 

in the credit risk in other comprehensive income and the remaining amount 

of the change in the fair value in profit or loss, unless the treatment of the 

effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk would create or enlarge an 

accounting mismatch. 
 

The Group and the Company have not elected to designate any financial 

liability at FVTPL. 
 

(ii) Amortised cost 
 

Other financial liabilities not categorised as fair value through profit or loss 

are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 

method. 
 

Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the 

profit or loss. Any gains or losses on derecognition are also recognised in the 

profit or loss. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 

3.10    Financial instruments (cont’d) 

 

3.10.2     Financial liabilities (cont’d) 

 

3.10.2.4 Subsequent measurement (cont’d) 

(ii) Amortised cost (cont’d) 

 

The Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities at amortised cost include 

finance lease creditors, borrowings, trade and most of the other payables. 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group and the 

Company have unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at 

least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. 

 

3.10.3     Offsetting of financial instruments 

 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in 

the statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable 

legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a 

net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

 

3.11    Impairment of non-financial assets  

 

At each reporting date, the Group and the Company review the carrying amounts 

of non-financial assets to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.  

 

If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is 

required, the recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment loss is recognised 

whenever the recoverable amount of the asset or a cash-generating unit is less than 

its carrying amount. Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is 

the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.  

 

In assessing value in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted to present 

value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the 

time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses of 

continuing operations are recognised in profit or loss in those expense categories 

consistent with the function of the impaired asset.  

 

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication 

that previously recognised impairment losses for an asset other than goodwill may 

no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable 

amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if 

there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable 

amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would 

have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been 

recognised for the asset in prior years.  
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

3.11 Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont’d) 

 

All reversals of impairment losses are recognised as income immediately in profit or 

loss. After such a reversal, depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate 

the revised carrying amount of the asset, less any residual value, on a systematic basis 

over its remaining useful life.  

 

3.12 Interest-bearing borrowings 

 

Interest-bearing borrowings are recorded at the amount of proceeds received, net of 

transaction costs incurred. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in profit or 

loss in the period in which they are incurred. However, borrowing costs incurred to 

finance the construction of property, plant and equipment are capitalised as part of 

the cost of those assets during the period of time that is required to complete and 

prepare the assets for its intended use. 

 

3.13 Cash and cash equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank balances and short term 

demand deposits which are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which 

are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and cash equivalents 

restricted to be used to settle a liability of 12 months or more after the reporting date 

are classified as non-current asset. 

 

3.14 Contingent liabilities 

 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose 

existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 

uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a 

present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not 

probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of 

obligation cannot be measured reliably. 

 

3.15 Equity 

 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of 

the Group and the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are 

equity instruments. 

   

Unappropriated profits include all current and prior period profit/loss. 

 

All transactions with owners of the Company are recorded separately within equity. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

3.16    Provision 

 

 Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation that 

can be estimated reliably, as a result of a past event, when it is probable that an 

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 

obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 

 

Any reimbursement that the Group and the Company can be virtually certain to 

collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is recognised as a separate 

asset. However, this asset may not exceed the amount of the related provision. 

 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best 

estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be 

required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. Where the effect of the time 

value of money is material, provision are discounted using a current pre tax rate that 

reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is 

used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance 

cost. 

 

3.17 Employee benefits 

 

(i) Short term benefits 

 

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as 

an expense in the financial year in which the associated services are rendered 

by employees of the Group. Short term accumulating compensated absences 

such as paid annual leave are recognised when services are rendered by 

employees that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences, 

and short term non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave 

are recognised when the absences occur. 

 

(ii) Defined contribution plans 

  

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which 

the Group pays fixed contributions into separate entities or funds and will 

have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contribution if any of 

the funds do not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to 

employee services in the current and preceding financial years. 

 

Such contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as incurred. 

As required by law, the Group makes such contributions to the Employees 

Provident Fund (“EPF”).   
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

3.18 Inter-segment transfers 

 

Segment revenues, expenses and result include transfers between segments. The 

prices charged on inter-segment transactions are based on negotiation basis. These 

transfers are eliminated on consolidation.  

 

3.19 Financial guarantee contracts 

 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified 

payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails 

to make payment when due. 

 

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, net of 

transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial guarantee contracts are 

recognised as income in profit or loss over the period of the guarantee. If the debtor 

fails to make payment relating to financial guarantee contract when it is due and the 

Group, as the issuer, is required to reimburse the holder for the associated loss, the 

liability is measured at the higher of the best estimate of the expenditure required to 

settle the present obligation at the reporting date and the amount initially recognised 

less cumulative amortisation. 

 

3.20 Earnings per share 

 

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its ordinary 

shares.  

 

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary 

shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 

outstanding during the financial period.  

 

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary 

shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the 

effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which comprise of convertible notes.  

 

3.21 Related parties 

 

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its 

financial statements (“the reporting entity”). A related party transaction is a transfer 

of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity and its related party, 

regardless of whether a price is charged. 

 

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the reporting 

entity if that person:-  

 

(i) Has control or joint control over the reporting entity; 

(ii) Has significant influence over the reporting entity; or 

(iii) Is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

3.21 Related parties (Cont’d) 
 

(b)  An entity is related to the reporting entity if any of the following conditions 

applies:- 

 

(i)    The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group; 

(ii)   The entity is an associate or joint venture of the reporting entity; 

(iii)  Both the entity and the reporting entity are joint ventures of the same third 

party; 

(iv)   The entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the reporting entity is an 

associate of the same third entity;  

(v)   The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefits of employees 

of the reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity; 

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by a person identified in (a) 

above; 

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) above has significant influence over the entity 

or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity; or 

(viii) The entity or any member of a group of which it is a party, provides key 

management personnel services to the reporting entity. 
 

3.22 Treasury shares 

  

When issued share of the Company are repurchased, the consideration paid, including 

directly attributable costs is presented as a change in equity. Repurchased shares that 

have not been cancelled are classify as treasury shares and presented as a deduction 

from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the profit or loss on the sale, reissuance 

or cancellation of treasury shares. 

 

When treasury shares are distributed as share dividends, the cost of the treasury shares 

is applied in the reduction of the treasury shares account or distributable reserves, or 

both. 

 

When treasury shares are reissued by resale, the difference between the sale 

consideration net of directly attributable costs and the carrying amount of the treasury 

shares is shown as a movement in equity. 

 

3.23 Warrants 

 

Warrants are classified as equity instruments and its value is allocated based on the 

Black Scholes model upon issuance. The issuance of ordinary shares upon exercise 

of the warrants is treated as new subscription of ordinary shares for the consideration 

equivalent to the exercise price of the warrants. 

 

Upon exercise of warrants, the proceeds are credited to share capital. The warrants 

reserve in relation to the unexercised warrants at the expiry of the warrants will be 

reversed.  

 

  



66 

 

Annual Report 2020  

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

3.24 Operating segments 

 

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities 

from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenue and expenses 

that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. All operating 

segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision 

maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess 

its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available. 

 

4.         CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

4.1 MFRS 16 Leases 

 

The Group has adopted MFRS 16 on 1 May 2019. Upon the adoption of MFRS 16, 

the Group recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been 

classified as ‘operating leases’ under the principles of MFRS 117 Leases. These 

liabilities to be measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments that 

are not paid at 1 May 2019, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate 

as of 1 May 2019. The lessee’s weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied 

to the lease liabilities on 1 May 2019 was 5.13%. Subsequently, the lease liabilities 

are adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease 

modifications if any. 

 

4.1.1 Effect of initial application 

 

In summary, the adoption impact of MFRS 16 to the opening balances are as follows:- 

 

Statement of financial position 

  Impact of change in accounting policy 

 

Note 

30 April 

2019 

 MFRS 16 

adjustments 

 1 May  

2019 

  RM  RM  RM 

Assets       

Property, plant 

and equipment 

 

(a) (b) 213,434,702  196,296  213,630,998 

Prepaid land lease 

payments 

 

(a) 159,875  (159,875)  - 

       

Impact on assets  213,594,577  36,421  213,630,998 
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4.         CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

4.1 MFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d) 

 

4.1.1 Effect of initial application (cont’d) 

 

In summary, the adoption impact of MFRS 16 to the opening balances are as follows 

(cont’d):- 
 

 Statement of financial position (cont’d) 

  Impact of change in accounting policy 

 

Note 

30 April 

2019 

 MFRS 16 

adjustments 

 1 May  

2019 

  RM  RM  RM 

Liabilities       

Finance lease 

creditors – current 

 

2,856,300  (2,856,300)  - 

Finance lease 

creditors – non 

current  

 

 

4,696,714  

 

(4,696,714)  

 

- 

Lease liabilities – 

current 

 

-  2,892,721  2,892,721 

Lease liabilities – 

non current  

 

-  

 

4,696,714  

 

4,696,714 

       

Impact on liabilities (c) 7,553,014  36,421  7,589,435 

       
Note: 
 

(a) Prepaid land lease payments consist of leasehold lands, which were reclassified to 

property, plant and equipment upon the adoption of MFRS 16. Prepaid land lease 

payments were previously carried at cost and amortised over lease terms under 

MFRS 117. The requirements of MFRS 16 was adopted to these leases from 1 

May 2019. 

 

(b) Right-of-use assets have been included in property, plant and equipment. The 

right-of-use assets represent the right to use of the underlying asset during the lease 

term. The right-of-use assets are measured at the amount equal to the lease 

liabilities on the date of transition. Subsequent to initial recognition, the right-of-

use assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 

losses if any, and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability.  

 

The adjustment to property, plant and equipment related to right-of-use assets is 

as follows:- 
 

  RM 

Assets acquired under finance lease under MFRS 117 

previously recognised in Property, plant and equipment 

  

11,193,201 

Add: Operating lease of assets under MFRS 117 

recognised as right-of-use assets  

  

196,296 
   

Right-of-use assets recognised as at 1 May 2019   11,389,497 
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4.         CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

4.1 MFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d) 

 

4.1.1 Effect of initial application (cont’d) 
 

Note (cont’d):- 
 

(c) Leases previously classified as finance leases 

 

The Group did not change the initial carrying amounts of recognised assets and 

liabilities at the date of initial application for leases previously classified as 

finance leases (i.e., the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities equal the lease 

assets and liabilities recognised under MFRS 117). The requirements of MFRS 

16 was applied to these leases from 1 May 2019. 

 

The Group also applied the available practical expedients wherein it:  

 

• Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar 

characteristics  

• Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately before the date 

of initial application  

• Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 

12 months at the date of initial application  

• Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at 

the date of initial application  

• Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options 

to extend or terminate the lease 

 

The lease liabilities as at 1 May 2019 can be reconciled to the operating lease 

commitments as of 30 April 2019 as follows:- 

 

  RM 

Operating lease commitments as at 30 April 2019 as 

disclosed in the Group’s financial statements 

  

- 
   

  Other minor adjustments relating to commitment disclosures  38,400 

   

Operating lease liabilities before discounting  38,400 
   

  Discounted using incremental borrowing rate of 5.13%  

    at 1 May 2019 

  

(1,979) 

   

  Operating lease liabilities  36,421 

  Finance lease obligations (Note 18)  7,553,014 
  

 

Lease liability recognised under MFRS 16 as at 1 May 2019   7,589,435 
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 Group 

 

 

 

 

Land and 

buildings 

Equipment, 

plant and 

machinery 

 

Motor 

vehicles 

Furniture, 

fittings and 

others 

 

 

Total 

 RM RM RM RM RM 

Cost      

      

At 1 May 2018 139,868,236 119,863,026 6,324,946 2,816,745 268,872,953 

Additions 2,371,844 11,858,629 26,757 589,008 14,846,238 

Disposal - (177,289) (60,653) - (237,942) 

      

At 30 April 2019 142,240,080 131,544,366 6,291,050 3,405,753 283,481,249 

Effect of MFRS 16 leases 

   adoption 

 

252,846 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

252,846 

      

At 1 May 2019 142,492,926 131,544,366 6,291,050 3,405,753 283,734,095 

Additions 1,134,117 3,524,252 175,957 132,533 4,966,859 

Disposal - (1,769,757) (198,500) - (1,968,257) 

Written off - - - (3,226) (3,226) 

Transfer from capital work- 

   in-progress 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

1,444,828 

 

1,444,828 

      

At 30 April 2020 143,627,043 133,298,861 6,268,507 4,979,888 288,174,299 

      

Accumulated depreciation 

 

     

At 1 May 2018 3,658,654 45,374,354 4,479,444 2,069,789 55,582,241 

Charge for the financial year 2,453,797 11,352,054 664,362 232,035 14,702,248 

Disposal - (177,289) (60,653) - (237,942) 

      

At 30 April 2019 6,112,451 56,549,119 5,083,153 2,301,824 70,046,547 

Effect of MFRS 16 leases 

   adoption 

 

56,550 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

56,550 

      

At 1 May 2019 6,169,001 56,549,119 5,083,153 2,301,824 70,103,097 

Charge for the financial year 2,531,745 11,383,920 538,557 349,629 14,803,851 

Disposal - (529,156) (197,458) - (726,614) 

Written off - - - (2,796) (2,796) 

      

At 30 April 2020 8,700,746 67,403,883 5,424,252 2,648,657 84,177,538 

      

Net carrying amount      

      

30 April 2019 136,127,629 74,995,247 1,207,897 1,103,929 213,434,702 

      

30 April 2020 134,926,297 65,894,978 844,255 2,331,231 203,996,761 
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D) 

 

Analysis of land and buildings as at 30 April:- 
 

 Group 

 Freehold Leasehold   

 land land Buildings Total 

Cost RM RM RM RM 

     

At 1 May 2018 17,380,480 - 122,487,756 139,868,236 

Additions - - 2,371,844 2,371,844 

     

At 30 April 2019 17,380,480 - 124,859,600 142,240,080 

Effect of MFRS 16 leases 

   adoption 

 

- 

 

216,425 

 

36,421 

 

252,846 

     

At 1 May 2019 17,380,480 216,425 124,896,021 142,492,926 

Additions - - 1,134,117 1,134,117 

     

At 30 April 2020 17,380,480 216,425 126,030,138 143,627,043 

 

Accumulated depreciation       

     

At 1 May 2018 - - 3,658,654 3,658,654 

Charge for the financial year - - 2,453,797 2,453,797 

     

At 30 April 2019 - - 6,112,451 6,112,451 

Effect of MFRS 16 leases 

   adoption 

 

- 

 

56,550 

 

- 

 

56,550 

     

At 1 May 2019 - 56,550 6,112,451 6,169,001 

Charge for the financial year - 2,186 2,529,559 2,531,745 

     

At 30 April 2020 - 58,736 8,642,010 8,700,746 

     

Net carrying amount     

     

At 30 April 2019 17,380,480 - 118,747,149 136,127,629 

     

At 30 April 2020 17,380,480 157,689 117,388,128 134,926,297 

 

At 30 April 2019, the net carrying amount of property, plant and equipment which are 

acquired under finance lease arrangements amounted to RM11,193,201. 

 

Included in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are fully depreciated property, 

plant and equipment with a total cost of RM31,992,006 (2019: RM25,427,424) but still in 

use. 
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D) 

 

Included in the property, plant and equipment is right-of-use assets as follows:- 

 

 

Leasehold 

land 

 

Buildings 

Equipment, 

plant and 

machinery 

Motor 

vehicles 

 

Total 

 RM RM RM RM RM 

Net carrying amount      

At 1 May 2019 159,875 36,421 11,028,874 164,327 11,389,497 

Addition - 519,715 - - 519,715 

Depreciation charges (2,186) (39,865) (1,085,244) (54,776) (1,182,071) 

      

At 30 April 2020 157,689 516,271 9,943,630 109,551 10,727,141 

 

6. CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS 

 

   Group 

   Software 

systems 

   RM 

    

  At 1 May 2018   1,155,055 

Additions   150,303 

    

  At 30 April 2019   1,305,358 

Additions   139,470 

Transferred to property, plant and equipment  (1,444,828) 

    

  At 30 April 2020   - 

 

7. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 

 

 Group 

 2020 2019 

Leasehold land:- RM RM 

   

Cost   

   

At beginning of financial year 216,425 216,425 

Adjustment on initial application of MFRS 16 (216,425) - 

   

At beginning of financial year, restated/   

  At end of financial year - 216,425 
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7. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS (CONT’D) 

 

 Group 

 2020 2019 

Leasehold land (cont’d):- RM RM 
   

Accumulated amortisation   
   

At beginning of financial year 56,550 54,364 

Adjustment on initial application of MFRS 16 (56,550) - 
 

At beginning of financial year, restated - 54,364 

Charge for the financial year - 2,186 
   

At end of financial year - 56,550 
   

Net carrying amount - 159,875 

   

Amount to be amortised 
 

  

- Not later than one year - 2,186 

- Later than one year but not later than five years - 8,744 

- Later than five years - 148,945 

  

- 
 

159,875 

 

Before adoption of MFRS 16, the prepaid land lease payments are amortised over the 

leasehold period of 99 years. The prepaid land lease payments are now reclassified to 

right-of-use assets on 1 May 2019. 

 

8. SUBSIDIARY 

 

Investment in a subsidiary 
 

 Company 

 2020  2019 

 RM  RM 

Unquoted shares - At cost:-    
    

At 1 May and 30 April 134,693,256  134,693,256 

 

The particulars of the subsidiary are as follows:- 
 

 

Name of company 

Country of 

incorporation 

Effective equity 

interest 

 

Principal activities 

  2020 2019  

  % %  
     

Lee Soon Seng Plastic 

Industries Sdn. Bhd. 

(“LSSPI”) 

Malaysia 100 100 Manufacturing and 

trading of plastic 

products and medical 

protective equipment. 
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9. INVENTORIES 

 

 Group 

 2020  2019 

 RM  RM 

    

Raw materials 25,607,853  23,434,886 

Work-in-progress 653,419  1,535,027 

Finished goods 13,894,916  8,246,573 

    

Total inventories 40,156,188  33,216,486 

    

Recognised in profit or loss    

Inventories recognised in cost of sales 104,011,575  133,915,275 

Inventories written down 742,759  897,322 

Reversal of inventories written down (897,322)  (716,007) 

 

The reversal of inventories written down was made when the related inventories were 

subsequently sold above their carrying amounts and increased in net realisable value because 

of changed economic circumstances. 

 

10. TRADE RECEIVABLES 

 Group 

 2020  2019 

 RM  RM 

    

Amount due from a company connected with 

certain Directors  

 

937,383 

  

737,175 

Trade receivables 46,560,933  42,740,269 
    
 47,498,316  43,477,444 

Less: Allowance for impairment of trade 

receivables 

 

(1,599,972) 

  

(998,956) 
  

45,898,344 

  

42,478,488 

 

Movement in allowance for impairment of trade receivables:- 

 

 Group 

 2020  2019 

 RM  RM 

    

At 1 May (998,956)  (302,225) 

Charge for the financial year (1,005,682)  (711,445) 

Reversal of  impairment     

- payment received 404,666  9,932 

- written off -  4,782 

    

At 30 April (1,599,972)  (998,956) 
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10. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONT’D) 

The currency exposure profile of the trade receivables is as follows (foreign currency 

balances are unhedged):- 

 

 Group 

 2020  2019 

 RM  RM 

    

Malaysian Ringgit 30,260,516  30,014,739 

Australian Dollar 674,207  1,030,332 

Singapore Dollar 10,369,200  7,051,809 

United States Dollar 6,194,393  5,346,747 

Euro -  33,817 

    

 47,498,316  43,477,444 

 

Trade receivables comprise amounts receivable from sales of goods. The credit terms granted 

on sales of goods are generally ranged from 30 days to 90 days (2019: 30 days to 90 days). 

Certain customers are granted with longer credit term due to their good payment history and 

their credit worthiness is higher. Allowance has been made for estimated irrecoverable of 

trade receivables based on the default experience of the Group.  

 

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to 

measure ECLs. Information regarding the Group’s exposure to the credit risk and ECLs for 

trade receivables is disclosed in Note 33 (c) to the Financial Statements. 

 

11. OTHER RECEIVABLES 
 

 Group  Company 

 2020  2019  2020  2019 

 RM  RM  RM  RM 
        

Advance payment to 

suppliers 

 

578,883 

  

208,772 

  

- 

  

- 

Non-trade receivables 27,031  97,282  -  - 

Sundry deposits 1,060,827  1,066,803  -  - 

GST receivable 1,118,174  2,094,380  -  - 

Prepayments 708,470  914,430  21,093  26,667 
        

 3,493,385  4,381,667  21,093  26,667 
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11. OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D) 

 

The currency exposure profile of the other receivables is as follows (foreign currency 

balances are unhedged):- 
 

   Group  Company 

  2020  2019  2020  2019 

 RM  RM  RM  RM 
        

Malaysian Ringgit 3,472,562  4,213,998  21,093  26,667 

Singapore Dollar 20,823  -  -  - 

United States Dollar   -  167,669  -  - 
        

 3,493,385  4,381,667  21,093  26,667 

 

12. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

 

The currency exposure profile of the cash and bank balances is as follows (foreign currency 

balances are unhedged):- 

 

 Group  Company 

 2020  2019  2020  2019 

 RM  RM  RM  RM 
        

Malaysian Ringgit 3,334,160  5,875,885  172,306  148,187 

Australian Dollar 11,743  -  -  - 

Chinese Yuan 46  -  -  - 

Euro 4,450  8,942  -  - 

Singapore Dollar 508,168  1,981,638  -  - 

New Zealand Dollar 13  -  -  - 

United States Dollar 1,011,085  415,617  -  - 
        

 4,869,665  8,282,082  172,306  148,187 

 

13. SHARE CAPITAL  
 

                                                                                             2020 2019  2020 2019 

 Unit Unit  RM RM 

Group      

Issued and fully paid-up:-       

Ordinary shares      

At 1 May/30 April 193,599,641 193,599,641  134,739,820 134,739,820 

 

Company      
Issued and fully paid-up:-       

Ordinary shares      

At 1 May/30 April 193,599,641 193,599,641  132,439,820 132,439,820 

 

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the 

Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restrictions and rank equally 

with regards to the Company’s residual value. 
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14.  TREASURY SHARES 

 

Company 

 

During the financial year ended 30 April 2020, the Company repurchased 200,000 ordinary 

shares of its issued share capital from the open market. The average price paid for the 

repurchased shares was RM0.85 per share. The repurchased transactions were financed by 

internally generated funds. These repurchased shares were held as treasury shares and treated 

in accordance with the requirements of Section 127 of the Companies Act 2016. 

 

The shares purchased were retained as treasury shares. The Company has the right to re-issue 

these shares at a later date. As treasury shares, the rights attached as to voting, dividends and 

participation in other distribution are suspended. 

 

As at the financial year end, the Company held 1,038,600 (2019: 838,600) of the Company’s 

shares and the number of outstanding shares in issue after setting treasury shares off against 

equity are 192,561,041 (2019: 192,761,041). 

 

No treasury shares were sold during the current and previous financial year. 

 

15. WARRANT RESERVE 

 

 Group and Company  

 

 RM 

  

At 1 May 2019 and 30 April 2020 7,937,451 

 

Warrant 2017/2020  

 

On 3 August 2017, the Company issued 19,359,636 free warrants on the basis of two (2) 

warrants for every fifteen (15) existing ordinary shares of the Company held. 

 

The fair value of the warrants is estimated using the Black Scholes model, taking into account 

the terms and conditions upon which the warrants are acquired. The fair value of the warrants 

are measured on the issuance date and the assumptions are as follows:- 

 

Style Vanilla 

Exercise type American 

Tenure 3 years 

5-day volume weighted average price of 

   SCGM share at 2 August 2017 

 

RM3.22 

Conversion price RM3.96 

Volatility rate 24.782% 
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15. WARRANT RESERVE (CONT’D) 

 

Group and Company (cont’d) 

 

Each warrant entitles the registered holder of warrant to subscribe for one new ordinary share 

in the Company at any time on or after 3 August 2017 up to the date of expiry on 30 July 

2020, at an exercise price of RM3.96 per share or such adjusted price in accordance with the 

provisions in the Deed Poll. The warrants were listed on the Bursa Malaysia Securities 

Berhad on 9 August 2017. 

 

During the current and previous financial years, there is no conversion of warrants to ordinary 

shares. 

 

As at the reporting date, 19,359,636 (2019: 19,359,636) warrants remained unexercised. 

 

As at the date the financial statements are authorised for issue, these warrants remained 

unexercised but expired. Pursuant to that, warrants reserve in relation to the unexercised 

warrants will be reversed in the next financial year. 

 

16. REVERSE ACQUISITION RESERVE 

 

Reverse acquisition reserve arising from the reverse acquisition of the Company by LSSPI 

is as follows:- 

 

 Group   

 2020  2019 

 RM  RM 

    

Paid-up share capital of the Company immediately 

prior to the reverse acquisition 

 

1,000 

  

1,000 

Shares issued by the Company to acquire LSSPI  30,427,000  30,427,000 

Reversal of LSSPI’s paid-up share capital pursuant 

to reverse acquisition 

 

(2,200,000) 

  

(2,200,000) 

Equity instruments deemed issued to the owner of 

the legal parent 

 

(1,000) 

  

(1,000) 

    

 28,227,000  28,227,000 

 

17. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 

 

 Group 

 2020  2019 

 RM  RM 

    

At beginning of financial year 11,720,000  8,302,000 

Transferred (to)/from profit or loss (Note 25) (2,400,000)  3,418,000 

    

At end of financial year 9,320,000  11,720,000 
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17. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (CONT’D) 

 

The deferred tax liabilities are made up of temporary differences arising from:- 

 

 Group 

 2020  2019 

 RM  RM 

    

Carrying amount of qualifying property, plant and 

equipment in excess of their tax base 

 

11,075,000 

  

12,140,000 

Inventories written down (178,000)  (215,000) 

Allowance for impairment of receivables (384,000)  (240,000) 

Unrealised foreign exchange differences 7,000  35,000 

Unabsorbed reinvestment allowance (1,200,000)  - 

    

 9,320,000  11,720,000 

 

Deferred tax assets 

 

The estimated amount of deferred tax assets of the Group which has not been recognised in 

the financial statements is as follows:- 

 

 Group 

 2020  2019 

 RM  RM 

    

Unabsorbed reinvestment allowance (gross amount) 15,451,000  29,672,957 

Unabsorbed capital allowance (gross amount) -  84,300 

  

15,451,000 

  

29,757,257 

 

The above potential deferred tax assets are not recognised in the financial statements as it is 

anticipated that the tax effect of such deferral will not reverse in the foreseeable future due 

to the Company’s subsidiary may not have sufficient taxable profit to be used to offset in the 

foreseeable future. 
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18. FINANCE LEASE CREDITORS 
 

 Group 

 2020  2019 

 RM  RM 

Minimum lease payment    

- within 1 year -  3,226,910 

- after 1 year but not later than 5 years -  5,068,335 
    

 -  8,295,245 

Less: Interest-in-suspense -  (742,231) 
    
 -  7,553,014 
    

Total principal sum payable    

- within 1 year  -  2,856,300 

- after 1 year but not later than 5 years -  4,696,714 
    

 -  7,553,014 

 

The interest rates on the lease previously recognised as finance lease before the adoption of 

MFRS 16 is ranged from 2.70% to 3.20% per annum. The finance lease are now reclassified 

to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities on 1 May 2019. 

 

19. LEASE LIABILITIES 

 

19.1 Group as lessee 

 

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land, properties, motor vehicles and other 

equipment used in its operations. Leases of properties generally have lease terms of 2 to 4 

years with extension options of 1 to 2 years, plant and equipment generally have lease terms 

of 3 to 4 years, prepaid land lease payments has lease term of 99 years while motor vehicles 

generally have lease terms of 3 years. There are several lease contracts that include extension 

and termination options and variable lease payments, which are further discussed below. 

 

The Group also has certain leases of factory and office equipment with lease terms of 12 

months or less. The Group applies the ‘short-term lease’ recognition exemptions for these 

leases. 

 

19.1.1 Lease liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:- 

 

 2020 

 RM 

  

Current 2,057,640 

Non-current 3,396,474 

 
5,454,114 
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19. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONT’D) 

 

19.1 Group as lessee (cont’d) 

 

19.1.2 Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the 

period:- 

 

   RM 

    

At 1 May 2019   7,589,435 

Addition   519,715 

Accretion of interest   351,990 

Payments   (3,007,026) 

At 30 April 2020   5,454,114 

 

19.1.3 Future minimum lease payments at 30 April 2020 were as follows:- 

 Minimum lease payment due 

 
Within 1 year  2 to 5 years  Total 

 RM  RM  RM 

      

Lease payments 2,315,140  3,587,498  5,902,638 

Finance charges (257,500)  (191,024)  (448,524) 

 2,057,640  3,396,474  5,454,114 

      

19.1.4 Lease payments not recognised as a liability 

 

The Group elected not to recognise lease liability for short-term leases (leases with an 

expected term of 12 months or less). Payments made under such leases are expensed on a 

straight-line basis. Certain variable lease payments are not permitted to be recognised as 

lease liabilities and are expensed as incurred.  

 

Variable lease payments expensed on the basis that they are not recognised as a lease liability 

include excess use charges on office equipment. Variable payment terms are used for a 

variety of reasons, including minimising costs for IT equipment with infrequent use. Variable 

lease payments are expensed in the period they are incurred. 

 

 The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:- 

  2020 

  RM 

   

Lease payments not recognised as liability:   

  - Short-term leases   705,829 

  - Variable lease payments   1,045 

   

Total amount recognised in profit or loss  706,874 
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19. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONT’D) 

 

19.1 Group as lessee (cont’d) 

 

19.1.4 Lease payments not recognised as a liability (cont’d) 

 

Each lease generally imposes a restriction that the right-of-use asset can only be used by the 

Group. The Group is prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying leased assets as 

security. For leases over properties, the Group must keep those properties in a good state of 

repair and return the properties in their original condition at the end of the lease.  

 

The table below describes the nature of the Group’s leasing activities by type of right-of-use 

asset recognised on Statement of Financial Position:- 

Type 

Number of 

right-of-use 

assets leased 

Range of  

remaining term 

Number of  

lease with  

extension options 

Properties 2 12 – 46 months 2 

Prepaid land lease payments 1 71 years - 

Plant and equipment 4 3 – 33 months - 

Motor vehicle 1 3 months - 

 

20. BORROWINGS 

 Group 

 2020  2019 

 RM  RM 

    

Current    

Unsecured:-    

Term loan 1 1,314,280  1,241,550 

Term loan 2 3,570,334  3,435,570 

Term loan 3 1,428,576  1,428,576 

Term loan 4 1,474,597  1,408,153 

Bankers’ acceptance 1,396,511  11,498,645 

Revolving credit 33,600,000  34,500,000 

    

Total current 42,784,298  53,512,494 

    

Non-current    

Unsecured:-    

Term loan 1 3,668,704  4,989,584 

Term loan 2 29,773,708  33,285,636 

Term loan 3 6,071,416  7,499,992 

Term loan 4 7,655,086  9,122,980 

    

Total non-current 47,168,914  54,898,192 

    

Total borrowings 89,953,212  108,410,686 
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20. BORROWINGS (CONT’D) 

 

Term loans 

 

The term loans of the Group are obtained by way of corporate guarantee from the Company 

and negative pledge on the subsidiary’s assets.  

The term loans of the Group bear interest at rates ranging from 4.20% to 5.49% (2019: 4.92% 

to 5.49%) per annum. 

 

The term loans of the Group are repayable by monthly installments. 

Bankers’ acceptance  

The bankers’ acceptance of the Group is obtained by way of corporate guarantee from the 

Company and negative pledge on the subsidiary’s assets. 

The bankers’ acceptance bears interest at rates ranging from 4.36% to 4.56% (2019: 4.17% 

to 4.82%) per annum. 

Revolving credit 

The revolving credit of the Group is obtained by way of corporate guarantee from the 

Company and negative pledge on the subsidiary’s assets.  

 

The revolving credit bears interest at rates ranging from 3.97% to 5.13% (2019: 4.77% to 

5.13%) per annum. 

The entire borrowings are denominated in Malaysian Ringgit. 

 

21. TRADE PAYABLES 
 

 Trade payables comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases. The credit terms granted 

to the Group ranged from 30 days to 90 days (2019: 30 days to 90 days). 
 

 Group 

 2020  2019 
 RM  RM 
    

Amount due to a company connected with certain 

Directors  

 

- 

  

148,119 

Trade payables 10,109,611  7,123,009 
    
 10,109,611  7,271,128 
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21. TRADE PAYABLES (CONT’D) 
 

 Group (cont’d) 
 

The currency exposure profile of the trade payables is as follows (foreign currency balances 

are unhedged):- 
 

 Group 

 2020  2019 

 RM  RM 
    

Malaysian Ringgit 8,652,692  6,137,573 

United States Dollar 1,456,919  1,093,817 

Euro -  39,738 
    

 10,109,611  7,271,128 
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 Group  Company 

 2020  2019  2020  2019 

 RM  RM  RM  RM 
        

Amount due to a 

company connected 

with the Directors 

 

 

238,279 

  

 

- 

  

 

- 

  

 

- 

Non-trade payables 6,450,771  8,413,284  25,717  33,120 

Accrual of payroll 2,401,418  2,347,210  15,600  19,350 

Accrual of expenses 4,462,178  6,941,165  17,000  17,000 

Deposit received 2,600  2,000  -  - 
        

 13,555,246  17,703,659  58,317  69,470 
 

Amount due to a company connected with the Directors is unsecured, bears no interest and 

repayable on demand. 

 

The currency exposure profile of the other payables is as follows (foreign currency balances 

are unhedged):- 
 

 Group  Company 

 2020  2019  2020  2019 

 RM  RM  RM  RM 
        

Malaysian Ringgit 12,779,046  16,078,662  58,317  69,470 

United States Dollar 446,286  1,616,510  -  - 

Australian Dollar 41,358  -  -  - 

Singapore Dollar 259,245  -  -  - 

Hong Kong Dollar 8,196  -  -  - 

Euro  21,115  8,487  -  - 
        

 13,555,246  17,703,659  58,317  69,470 
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23. REVENUE 

 Company 

Revenue of the Company represents dividend income from the subsidiary. 

Group  

23.1 Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers 

Revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by major products, primary 

geographical markets and timing of revenue recognition as follows:- 

 

 Group 

 2020  2019 

 RM  RM 

    

Major products    

Manufacturing and trading of:-    

- Plastic products 205,783,295  219,569,286 

- Medical protective equipment 4,699,535  - 

  

210,482,830 

  

219,569,286 

    

Primary geographical markets of the customers    

Africa  299,183    344,965  

Asia  187,698,064    203,676,505  

Australia and Oceania  20,745,738    14,358,110  

Europe  223,954    315,913  

North America  161,784    176,086  

South America  1,354,107    697,707  

 

210,482,830 

  

219,569,286 

    

Timing of revenue recognition    

Products transferred at a point in time 210,482,830  219,569,286 
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24. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 
 

Profit/(Loss) before tax has been determined after charging/(crediting), amongst others, the 

following items:- 
 

 Group  Company 

 2020  2019  2020  2019 

 RM  RM  RM  RM 
        

Auditors’ remuneration  

- statutory 

 

69,000 

  

67,000 

  

10,000 

  

10,000 

- non-statutory 22,000  22,000  7,000  7,000 

- under provision of non-statutory 

     fee in prior year 

 

3,000 

  

4,400 

  

- 

  

- 

Leases/ Rental expenses:-        

- hostel -  36,869  -  - 

- office equipment 1,274  1,140  -  - 

- warehouse 705,600  952,720  -  - 

Realised (gain)/loss on foreign 

exchange (43,288) 

 

102,521 

 

- 

 

- 

Rental income (6,870)  (3,726)  -  - 

 

The estimated monetary value of benefits provided to the Directors of the Company during 

 the financial year by way of usage of the subsidiary’s assets and other benefits 

 amounted to RM67,975 (2019: RM67,975). 
 

The remuneration paid (Group and Company basis) to the Directors of the Company is 

categorised as follows:- 
 

   Other  

 Fees emoluments Total 

 RM RM RM 

Group    

2020    

Executive Directors - 5,172,152 5,172,152 

Non-Executive Directors 63,750 1,000 64,750 
    

Total 63,750 5,173,152 5,236,902 
    

2019    

Executive Directors - 5,106,289 5,106,289 

Non-Executive Directors 75,000 2,400 77,400 
    

Total 75,000 5,108,689 5,183,689 
       

Company    

2020    

Non-Executive Directors 63,750 1,000 64,750 
    

2019    

Non-Executive Directors 75,000 2,400 77,400 
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24. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (CONT’D) 

 

The remuneration paid to the Directors of the Company analysed into bands are as follows:- 

 

 

 

Number of Directors 

 RM100,000 

 to 

<RM100,000 RM1,500,000 

 

2020 

  

Executive Directors - 4 

Non-Executive Directors 6 - 

 

2019 

  

Executive Directors - 4 

Non-Executive Directors 3 - 

 

25. TAX (INCOME)/EXPENSE 

  

 Group  Company 

 2020  2019  2020  2019 

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

        

Current tax expense:        

Current year’s tax expense 1,006,000  17,477  -  - 

Over provision in prior 

financial years 

 

(2,552) 

  

(2,483) 

 

- 

 

- 

        

 1,003,448  14,994  -  - 

 

Deferred tax (Note 17): 

       

Relating to originating and 

reversal of temporary 

differences 

 

 

(2,400,000) 

  

 

3,418,000 

 

- 

 

- 

        

 (1,396,552)  3,432,994  -  - 

 

Malaysian income tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate of 24% (2019: 24%) of the 

estimated taxable profits for the financial year.  
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25. TAX (INCOME)/EXPENSE (CONT’D) 

 

The reconciliations of tax (income)/expense applicable to profit/(loss) before tax at the 

statutory tax rate to the tax (income)/expense at the effective tax rate of the Group and of the 

Company are as follows:- 
 

 Group  Company 

 2020  2019  2020  2019 

 RM  RM  RM  RM 
        

Profit/(Loss) before tax 15,880,054  (1,686,684)  4,050,504  5,136,694 
        

Tax expense at Malaysian 

statutory tax rate of 24% 

(2019: 24%) 

 

 

3,811,213 

  

 

(404,804) 

  

 

972,121 

  

 

1,232,807 
        

Tax effects in respect of:-        

Income not subject to tax (101,850)  (190,665)  (1,032,000)  (1,296,000) 

Expenses not deductible 

   for tax purpose 

 

563,659 

  

807,746 

  

59,879 

  

63,193 

Deferred tax assets not 

   recognised on utilised 

   reinvestment allowances 

   recognised in previous 

   financial year 

 

 

 

 

- 

  

 

 

 

1,680,000 

  

 

 

 

- 

  

 

 

 

- 

Deferred tax assets on 

unabsorbed reinvestment 

allowance not 

recognised 

 

 

 

(3,433,502) 

  

 

 

1,543,200 

  

 

 

- 

  

 

 

- 

Utilisation of previously 

unrecognised capital 

allowance 

 

 

(20,232) 

  

 

- 

  

 

- 

  

 

- 

Utilisation of previously 

unrecognised 

reinvestment allowance 

 

 

(2,213,288) 

  

 

- 

  

 

- 

  

 

- 

Over provision of income 

   tax in prior financial 

   years (2,552) 

 

(2,483) 

 

- 

 

- 
        

Total tax (income)/ 

expense (1,396,552)  3,432,994  -  - 
 

The Group has tax allowances which can be carried forward to offset against future taxable 

profit as disclosed in Note 17 to the Financial Statements. 



88 

 

Annual Report 2020  

26. EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE 

 

(a) Basic earnings per ordinary share 
 

The calculation of basic earnings per ordinary share was based on Group’s profit for the 

financial year attributable to owners of the Company over the weighted average number 

of ordinary shares calculated as follows:- 
 

 Group 

 2020  2019 
    

Profit/(Loss) after tax for the financial year 

attributable to owners of the Company (RM) 17,276,606  (5,119,678) 
    

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 

issue 192,594,921  192,761,041 
    

Basic earnings/(loss) per ordinary share (sen) 8.97  (2.66) 
 

(b) Diluted earnings per ordinary share 
 

There is no diluted earnings per ordinary share as there is no potential dilutive ordinary 

share. 

 
27. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 
 

  Group  Company 

 2020  2019  2020  2019 

 RM  RM  RM  RM 
        

Staff costs 28,811,084  27,923,160  -  - 
 

Employee benefits expense of the Group and of the Company consist of, amongst others, the 

following items:- 
 

 Group  Company 

 2020  2019  2020  2019 

 RM  RM  RM  RM 
        

Directors’ 

remuneration  

   

 

    

- Salary 3,916,800  3,916,800  -  - 

- Allowance 1,000  2,400  1,000  2,400 

- EPF 772,320  786,480  -  - 

- Bonus 480,000  400,000  -  - 

- SOCSO and EIS 3,032  3,009  -  - 

Defined 

contribution plan – 

Staff EPF 

 

 

955,850 

  

 

959,492 

  

 

- 

  

 

- 
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28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

 

(a) The related party transactions of the Group and of the Company during the financial 

year were as follows:- 

 

  Group  Company 

 2020  2019  2020  2019 

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

        

Sales to a company 

connected with 

certain Directors 

 

 

2,475,773 

  

 

2,715,707 

  

 

- 

  

 

- 

        

Purchases from a 

company 

connected with 

certain Directors 

 

 

 

449,277 

  

 

 

418,254 

 

- 

 

- 

        

Dividend income 

from the 

subsidiary  

 

 

- 

  

 

- 

 

4,300,000 

 

 

5,400,000 

 

(b) The outstanding balances arising from related party transactions as at the reporting date 

are disclosed in Notes 10, 21 and 22 to the Financial Statements. 

 

(c) The remuneration of key management personnel is same with the Directors’ 

remunerations as disclosed in Notes 24 and 27 to the Financial Statements. Key 

management personnel is defined as those persons having authority and responsibility 

for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company either directly or 

indirectly and entity that provides key management personnel services to the Company. 

The Company has no other members of key management personnel apart from the Board 

of Directors. 

 

29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 
 

 

 Group 

  2020  2019 

 RM  RM 

    

Authorised but not contracted for:-    

- Equipment, plant and machinery 2,417,190  - 

    

Authorised and contracted for:-    

- Building 108,139  - 

- Motor vehicles 205,900  - 

- Equipment, plant and machinery 351,798  600,298 

 665,837  600,298 
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30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 

Corporate guarantees 

 

 Company 

    2020  2019 

 RM  RM 

Unsecured:-    

Corporate guarantees given to licensed financial 

institutions for credit facilities granted to the 

subsidiary - Limit 

 

 

 

157,774,715 

  

 

 

146,081,415 

Corporate guarantees given to licensed financial 

institutions for bank guarantee given to 

licensed utilities providers for services granted 

to the subsidiary  3,133,285 

 

4,826,585 

 
160,908,000 

 
150,908,000 

 

The corporate guarantees do not have determinable effect on the terms of the credit facilities 

due to the banks requiring guarantee as a pre-condition for approving the credit facilities 

granted to the subsidiary. The actual terms of the credit facilities are likely to be the best 

indicator of “at market” terms and hence the fair value of the credit facilities are equal to the 

credit facilities and contract bond amount received by the subsidiary. As such, there is no 

value on the corporate guarantee to be recognised in the financial statements. 

 

31.  SIGNIFICANT EVENTS 
  

In a bid to contain the spread of the Coronavirus Disease (“COVID-19”) pandemic in the 

country, the Malaysian Government declared and enforced a Movement Control Order 

(“MCO”) from 18 March 2020 to 3 May 2020, followed by the Conditional MCO (“CMCO”) 

from 4 May 2020 to 9 June 2020 and Recovery MCO (“RMCO”) from 10 June 2020 to 31 

August 2020.  

 

Nonetheless, to ensure that important and critical products remained in sufficient supply 

during the MCO period, the Ministry of International Trade and Industry (“MITI”) had 

allowed selected essential services and key economic sectors to operate during the MCO 

period, subject to approval and adherence to health and safety protocols. These included the 

food and beverage (“F&B"), household products, personal protection devices, 

pharmaceutical, packaging and printing, medical device and implant, and oil and gas sectors.  

 

In addition, MITI enforced a 50% manpower reduction requirement, on top of measures 

including daily temperature checks, availability of hand sanitisers and face masks for all 

workers, maintenance of social distancing practices and regular sanitisation of business 

premises.  
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31.  SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (CONT’D) 

 

As the Group produces products that support the essential F&B sector, our operations were 

allowed to operate at 50% workforce in March 2020, and thereafter at full workforce from 

May 2020 onwards during the CMCO. At the same time, the Group pivoted its business 

model to produce personal protective equipment (“PPE”) of face shields in February 2020 

and face masks in May 2020.  

 

The Group’s exports were not impacted by COVID-19, as the distribution network of 

supplying to Singapore clients by land via the Johor causeway and to other countries through 

Johor ports remained intact.  

 

Overall, it is envisaged that the F&B packaging and PPE manufacturing operations would 

sustain the Group going forward.  

 

The management of the Group has assessed the overall impact of the situation on the Group’s 

operations and financial position as at the date of this report, and concluded that there are no 

material adverse effects on the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 

30 April 2020. Nonetheless, as the pandemic has yet to run in full course, the current situation 

is still fluid. The Directors shall continuously assess the impact of COVID-19 on its 

operations as well as the financial position for the financial year ending 30 April 2021. 

 

32. OPERATING SEGMENTS - GROUP 
 

(a) Business segments 
 

The Group is organised on two major operating segments. These operating segments are 

monitored separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and 

performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or 

loss which, in certain respects as explained in the table below, is measured differently 

from operating profit in the consolidated financial statements.  

 

The following summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable 

segments:- 

 

Operating segments Business activities 

  

Manufacturing  Manufacturing and trading of plastic products and medical 

protective equipment. 

  

Investment holding Investment holding. 

 

Transfer prices between operating segments are on negotiated basis. 
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32. OPERATING SEGMENTS – GROUP (CONT’D) 
  

(a) Business segments (cont’d) 

 
 

Manufacturing  

Investment 

holding Eliminations 

 

Notes Consolidated 

 RM RM RM  RM 

2020      

      

Revenue      

      

External revenue 210,482,830 - -  210,482,830 

      

Inter-segment revenue - 4,300,000 (4,300,000) A - 

      

Total revenue 210,482,830 4,300,000 (4,300,000)  210,482,830 

      

Results      

      

Segment profit/(loss) 20,907,470 (249,496) - B 20,657,974 

      

Interest income 77,591 - -  77,591 

      

Finance costs (4,855,511) - -  (4,855,511) 

      

Depreciation and 

amortisation 

 

(14,803,851) 

 

- 

 

- 

  

(14,803,851) 

      

Tax expense 1,396,552 - -  1,396,552 

      

Other non-cash income 31,840 - - C 31,840 

      

2019      

      

Revenue      

      

External revenue 219,569,286 - -  219,569,286 

      

Inter-segment revenue - 5,400,000 (5,400,000) A - 

      

Total revenue 219,569,286 5,400,000 (5,400,000)  219,569,286 

      

Results      

      

Segment profit/(loss) 4,091,432 (263,306) - B 3,828,126 

      

Interest income 69,094 - -  69,094 

      

Finance costs (5,583,904) - -  (5,583,904) 

      

Depreciation and 

amortisation 

 

(14,704,434) 

 

- 

 

- 

  

(14,704,434) 

      

Tax expense (3,432,994) - -  (3,432,994) 

      

Other non-cash expense (667,497) - - C (667,497) 

      

  



93 

 

Annual Report 2020  

32. OPERATING SEGMENTS – GROUP (CONT’D) 

  

(a) Business segments (cont’d) 

 
 

Manufacturing  

Investment 

holding Eliminations 

 

Notes Consolidated 

 RM RM RM  RM 

2020      
      

Assets      
      

Segment assets 298,220,944 134,886,655 (134,693,256) D 298,414,343 
      

Additions to non-

current assets other 

than financial 

instruments  

 

 

 

5,106,329 

 

 

 

- 

 

 

 

- 

 

 

 

E 

 

 

 

5,106,329 

      

Liabilities       
      

Segment liabilities 23,606,540 58,317 - F 23,664,857 

      

2019      

      

Assets      

      

Segment assets 303,083,804 134,868,110 (134,693,256) D 303,258,658 

      

Additions to non-

current assets other 

than financial 

instruments  

 

 

 

14,996,541 

 

 

 

- 

 

 

 

- 

 

 

 

E 

 

 

 

14,996,541 

      

Liabilities       

      

Segment liabilities 24,905,317 69,470 - F 24,974,787 

 

Notes to the nature of adjustments and eliminations to arrive at amounts reported in the 

consolidated financial statements:- 

 

A. Inter-segment revenues are eliminated on consolidation. 

 

B. The following items are added to/(deducted from) segment profit/(loss) to arrive 

at “profit/(loss) before tax” presented in the consolidated profit or loss:- 

     

  2020  2019 

  RM  RM 

     

 Segment profit 20,657,974  3,828,126 

 Interest income 77,591  69,094 

 Finance costs (4,855,511)  (5,583,904) 

     

 Profit/(Loss) before tax 15,880,054  (1,686,684) 
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32. OPERATING SEGMENTS – GROUP (CONT’D) 

  

(a) Business segments (cont’d) 

 

Notes to the nature of adjustments and eliminations to arrive at amounts reported in the 

consolidated financial statements (cont’d):- 

 

C. Other non-cash income/(expenses) consist of the following items as presented in 

the respective notes to the financial statements:- 
     

  2020  2019 

  RM  RM 
     

 Allowance for impairment of receivables (1,005,682)  (711,445) 

 Inventories written down (742,759)  (897,322) 

 Allowance for impairment of receivables 

no longer required 

 

404,666 

  

9,932 

 Gain on disposal of property, plant and 

equipment 

 

450,859 

  

68,500 

 Reversal of inventories written down 897,322  716,007 

 Unrealised gain on foreign exchange 27,864  146,831 

 Property, plant and equipment written off (430)  - 
     

  31,840  (667,497) 

 

D. The following items are added to segment assets to arrive at total assets reported in 

the consolidated statement of financial position:- 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

E. Additions to non-current assets other than financial instruments consist of:- 
  

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 2020 

RM 

 2019 

RM 

    

Segment assets 298,414,343  303,258,658 

Tax recoverable 123,304  6,289,493 

 

Total assets 298,537,647 

 

309,548,151 

 2020 

RM 

 2019 

RM 
    

Property, plant and equipment 4,966,859  14,846,238 

Capital work-in-progress 139,470  150,303 

    

 5,106,329  14,996,541 
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32. OPERATING SEGMENTS – GROUP (CONT’D) 

  

(a) Business segments (cont’d) 

 

Notes to the nature of adjustments and eliminations to arrive at amounts reported in the 

consolidated financial statements (cont’d):- 

 

F. The following items are added to segment liabilities to arrive at total liabilities 

reported in the consolidated statement of financial position:- 

 

 

 

(b) Geographical information 

 

There is no geographical information presented as the Group is predominantly operating 

in Malaysia. 

 

(c) Major customers 

 

The Group does not have any revenue from a single external customer which represent 

10% or more of the Group’s revenue. 

 

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS   

 

Risk management objectives and policies 
 

The Group is exposed to various risks in relation to financial instruments. The Group’s 

financial assets and financial liabilities by category are summarised in Note 3.10 to the 

Financial Statements. The main types of risks are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, 

credit risk and liquidity risk. 

 

Financial risk management policy is established to ensure that adequate resources are 
available for the development of the Group’s business whilst managing its foreign currency 

risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group operates within clearly defined 

policies and procedures that are approved by the Board of Directors to ensure the 

effectiveness of the risk management process. 

 

(a) Foreign currency risk 

 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 

instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. 

 

 2020 

RM 

 2019 

RM 

    

Segment liabilities 23,664,857  24,974,787 

Finance lease creditors -  7,553,014 

Lease liabilities 5,454,114  - 

Borrowings 89,953,212  108,410,686 

Deferred tax liabilities 9,320,000  11,720,000 

    

Total liabilities 128,392,183  152,658,487 
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D) 

 

Risk management objectives and policies (cont’d) 

 

(a) Foreign currency risk (cont’d) 

 

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk mostly on its sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the functional 

currency of the Group. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United States Dollar (“USD”), Singapore Dollar (“SGD”), 

Australian Dollar (“AUD”), European Union (“EURO”), Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”), Chinese Yuan (“CNY”) and New Zealand Dollar 

(“NZD”). 

 

Based on carrying amounts as at the reporting date, foreign currency denominated financial assets and financial liabilities which expose 

the Group to currency risk are disclosed below:-   
 

 USD SGD AUD EURO HKD CNY NZD 

 RM RM RM RM RM RM RM 

        

2020        

Financial assets        

Trade receivables 6,194,393 10,369,200 674,207 - - - - 

Other receivables - 20,823 - - - - - 

Cash and cash equivalents 1,011,085 508,168 11,743 4,450 - 46 13 

        

 7,205,478 10,898,191 685,950 4,450 - 46 13 

        

Financial liabilities        

Trade payables  (1,456,919) - - - - - - 

Other payables (446,286) (259,245) (41,358) (21,115) (8,196) - - 

        

 (1,903,205) (259,245) (41,358) (21,115) (8,196) - - 

        

Net exposure 5,302,273 10,638,946 644,592 (16,665) (8,196) 46 13 
 

 



97 

 

Annual Report 2020  

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)  
 

Risk management objectives and policies (cont’d) 
 

(a)  Foreign currency risk (cont’d) 
 

Based on carrying amounts as at the reporting date, foreign currency denominated 

financial assets and financial liabilities which expose the Group to currency risk are 

disclosed below (cont’d):-   
 

 USD SGD AUD EURO 

 RM RM RM RM 
     

2019     

Financial assets     

Trade receivables 5,346,747 7,051,809 1,030,332 33,817 

Other receivables  167,669  - - - 

Cash and cash equivalents  415,617  1,981,638 - 8,942 
     

 5,930,033 9,033,447 1,030,332 42,759 
     

Financial liabilities     

Trade payables  (1,093,817) - - (39,738) 

Other payables (1,616,510) - - (8,487) 
     

 (2,710,327) - - (48,225) 
     

Net exposure 3,219,706 9,033,447 1,030,332 (5,466) 
 

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis 
 

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of profit/loss in regards to the Group’s 

financial assets and financial liabilities and the RM/USD, RM/SGD, RM/AUD, 

RM/EURO, RM/HKD, RM/CNY and RM/NZD exchange rates with ‘all other things 

being equal’.  
 

It assumes a 2% (2019: 1%) change of the RM/USD, RM/SGD, RM/AUD, 

RM/EURO, RM/HKD, RM/CNY and RM/NZD exchange rates respectively. The 

percentage has been determined based on the average market volatility in exchange 

rates in the previous 12 months. The sensitivity analysis is based on the Group’s 

foreign currency denominated financial instruments held at each reporting date. 
 

If the RM had strengthened against the USD, SGD, AUD, EURO, HKD, CNY and 

NZD by 2% (2019: 1%) respectively, this would have the following impact:- 

 
 Increase/(Decrease) on profit/loss for the financial year 

 USD SGD AUD EURO HKD CNY NZD Total 

 RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM 

         

2020 (106,045) (212,779) (12,892) 333 164 (1) - (331,220) 

         

2019 32,197 90,334 10,303 (55) - - - 132,779 
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)  
 

Risk management objectives and policies (cont’d) 
 

(a) Foreign currency risk (cont’d) 
 

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (cont’d) 
 

If the RM had weakened against the USD, SGD, AUD, EURO, HKD, CNY and NZD 

by 2% (2019: 1%) respectively, then the impact to profit/loss for the financial year 

would be the opposite effect. 
 

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the financial year depending on the 

volume of overseas transactions. Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered to be 

representative of the Group's exposures to foreign currency risk. 
 

(b) Interest rate risk 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s 

financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 
 

The Group’s fixed rate borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in their fair value 

due to changes in interest rates. The Group’s variable rate borrowings are exposed to 

the risk of change in cash flows due to changes in interest rates. Short term 

receivables and payables are not significantly exposed to interest rate risk. 
 

The Group’s interest rate management objective is to manage interest expenses 

consistent with maintaining an acceptable level of exposure to interest rate 

fluctuation.  
 

Interest rate sensitivity analysis 
 

As at 30 April 2020, the Group is exposed to changes in market interest rates through 

bank borrowings at variable interest rates. Other borrowings are at fixed interest rates. 

The exposure to interest rates for the Group’s short term placement is considered 

immaterial. 
 

The interest rate profile of the Group’s significant interest-bearing financial 

instruments, based on carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period is as 

follows:- 
 

 2020  2019 

Group RM  RM 

Fixed rate instruments    

Financial liabilities    

Finance lease creditors -  (7,553,014) 

Lease liabilities (5,454,114)  - 

Bankers’ acceptance (1,396,511)  (11,498,645) 

Revolving credit (33,600,000)  (34,500,000) 

    

Net financial liabilities (40,450,625)  (53,551,659) 

    

Floating rate instrument    

Financial liability    

Term loans, represents net financial liabilities (54,956,701)  (62,412,041) 
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D) 
 

Risk management objectives and policies (cont’d) 
 

(b) Interest rate risk (cont’d) 
 

Interest rate sensitivity analysis (cont’d) 
 

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of profit/loss to a reasonably possible 

change in interest rates of +/- 100 (2019: +/- 25) basis points (“bp”). These changes 

are considered to be reasonably possible based on observation of current market 

conditions. The calculations are based on a change in the average market interest rates 

for each period, and the financial instruments held at each reporting date that are 

sensitive to changes in interest rates. All other variables are held constant. 
 

 2020 2019 

Group RM RM 

   

Effect on profit/loss for the financial year   

   

+100 bp  (2019: + 25 bp) (549,567)  156,030 
   

-100 bp  (2019: - 25 bp) 549,567 (156,030) 

 

(c) Credit risk 

 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Group 

and the Company. The Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk 

is limited to the carrying amount of financial assets recognised at the reporting date, 

as summarised below:- 

 
 Group  Company 

 2020 2019  2020 2019 

 RM RM  RM RM 

Classes of financial 

assets – carrying 

amounts:- 

     

Cash and bank 

balances 4,869,665 8,282,082  172,306 148,187 

Trade receivables 45,898,344 42,478,488  - - 

Other receivables  1,087,858 1,164,085  - - 

      

 51,855,867 51,924,655  172,306 148,187 

 

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, 

identified either individually or by group, and incorporate this information into its 

credit risk controls. Where available at reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or 

reports on customers and other counterparties are obtained and used. The Group’s 

policy is to deal only with creditworthy counterparties.  
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D) 
 

Risk management objectives and policies (cont’d) 
 

(c)      Credit risk (cont’d) 

 

The Group’s management considers that all the above financial assets that are not impaired or past due for each of the report ing dates 

under review are of good credit quality. The Group and the Company do not hold collateral as security. 

An impairment analysis performed at each reporting date using a provision of matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision 

rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by product type and customer 

type). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information 

that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. 

The ageing analysis of trade receivables of the Group is as follows:- 

 

   Allowance for impairment loss  

 Expected  Expected credit loss  

 credit loss Gross carrying Individually Collectively Total  

 rate amount impaired impaired impaired Net 

 % RM RM RM RM RM 

2020       

Within terms 0.24 33,672,836  -  (79,383)  (79,383) 33,593,453  

Past due 1 to 30 days  0.89  7,503,643  -  (66,547) (66,547)  7,437,096  

Past due 31 to 60 days  2.01 2,795,873  -  (56,202) (56,202)  2,739,671  

Past due 61 to 90 days  3.39 980,904  -  (33,221) (33,221)  947,683  

ast due 91 to 180 days  15.51  1,397,171  - (216,730) (216,730) 1,180,441 

Past due more than 180 days  100.00 1,147,889 - (1,147,889) (1,147,889) - 

       

   47,498,316 - (1,599,972) (1,599,972) 45,898,344 
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D) 
 

Risk management objectives and policies (cont’d) 
 

(c)      Credit risk (cont’d) 

 

The ageing analysis of trade receivables of the Group is as follows (cont’d):- 

 
  Allowance for impairment loss  

 Gross Expected credit loss  

 carrying Individually Collectively Total  

 amount impaired impaired  impaired Net 

 RM RM RM RM RM 

2019      

Within terms 35,652,487 - - - 35,652,487 

Past due 1 to 30 days  5,139,287 - - - 5,139,287 

Past due 31 to 60 days  566,679 - - - 566,679 

Past due 61 to 90 days  574,071 - - - 574,071 

Past due 91 to 180 days  303,470 - - - 303,470 

Past due more than 180 

days  

 

1,241,450 (998,956) 

 

- 

 

(998,956) 

 

242,494 

      
 43,477,444 (998,956) - (998,956) 42,478,488 

 

None of the Group's financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit 

enhancements and none of the carrying amount of financial assets whose terms have 

been renegotiated that would otherwise be past due or impaired. 

 

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group is not exposed to any significant 

credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having 

similar characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers in 

various industries and geographical areas. Based on historical information about 

customer default rates, the management consider the credit quality of trade 

receivables that are not past due or impaired to be good. 

 

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the 

counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings. 

 

(i) Financial guarantee contracts 

 

All of the financial guarantee contracts are considered to be performing, have 

low risks of default and historically there were no instances where these 

financial guarantee contracts were called upon by the parties of which the 

financial guarantee contracts were issued to. Accordingly, no loss allowance 

was identified based on 12 months ECL. 
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D) 
 

Risk management objectives and policies (cont’d) 
 

(c)      Credit risk (cont’d) 

 

(i) Financial guarantee contracts (cont’d) 

 

As the Group and the Company do not hold any collateral, the maximum 

exposure to credit risk for each class of financial instruments is the carrying 

amount of that class of financial instruments presented on the statements of 

financial position, except as follows: 

 

    Company 

    2020 2019 

    RM RM 

Corporate guarantee given to licensed 

  financial institution for credit facilities 

  granted to the subsidiary  98,281,841 121,120,629 

 

The Company is exposed to credit risk arising from financial guarantee 

contracts given to banks for subsidiary’s borrowings where the maximum 

credit risk exposure is the amount of borrowings utilised by the subsidiary 

and the interest charged on the borrowings. As at the end of the reporting 

period, there was no indication that the subsidiary would default in payment. 
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D) 

 

Risk management objectives and policies (cont’d) 

 

(d) Liquidity risk 

 

Liquidity risk is the risk arising from the Group and the Company not being able to meet their obligations due to shortage of funds.   

 

In managing their exposures to liquidity risk, the Group and the Company maintain a level of cash and cash equivalents and bank credit 

facilities deemed adequate by the management to ensure that they will have sufficient liquidity to meet their liabilities as and when they 

fall due. 

 

The following table shows the areas where the Group and the Company are exposed to liquidity risk:- 

 
 Group  Company 

 Current  Non-current  Current  Non-current 

  

Less than 1 

year 

  

Between 

1 to 5 years 

  

More than 5 

years 

  

Less than 1 

year 

 Between 

1 to 5 

years 

  

More than 5 

years 

 RM  RM  RM  RM  RM  RM 

2020            

Non-derivative financial liabilities            

Term loans 9,997,529  37,262,105  16,155,483  -  -  - 

Bankers’ acceptance  1,396,511  -  -  -  -  - 

Revolving credit  33,600,000  -  -  -  -  - 

Trade payables 10,109,611  -  -  -  -  - 

Other payables 13,555,246  -  -  58,317  -  - 

Lease liabilities 2,315,140  3,587,498  -  -  -  - 

            

Total undiscounted financial liabilities 70,974,037  40,849,603  16,155,483  58,317  -  - 

            

Financial guarantees* 160,908,000  -  -  -  -  - 
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D) 
 

Risk management objectives and policies (cont’d) 
 

(d) Liquidity risk (cont’d) 
 

The following table shows the areas where the Group and the Company are exposed to liquidity risk (cont’d):- 

 
 Group  Company 

 Current  Non-current  Current  Non-current 

  

Less than 1 

year 

  

Between 

1 to 5 years 

  

More than 5 

years 

  

Less than 1 

year 

 Between 

1 to 5 

years 

  

More than 5 

years 

 RM  RM  RM  RM  RM  RM 

2019            

Non-derivative financial liabilities            

Term loan 10,492,488  40,631,565  24,047,056  -  -  - 

Bankers’ acceptance  11,498,645  -  -  -  -  - 

Revolving credit  34,500,000  -  -  -  -  - 

Finance lease creditors 3,226,910  5,068,335  -  -  -  - 

Trade payables 7,271,128  -  -  -  -  - 

Other payables 17,703,659  -  -  69,470  -  - 

            

Total undiscounted financial liabilities 84,692,830  45,699,900  24,047,056  69,470  -  - 

            

Financial guarantees* 150,908,000  -  -  -  -  - 

 

* This exposure is included in liquidity risk for illustration only. No financial guarantee was called upon by the holders as at the end of 

the reporting period. 

 

The above amounts reflect the contractual undiscounted cash flows, which may differ from the carrying values of the financial liabilities 

at the reporting date. 
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34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 

 

The primary capital management objective of the Group is to maintain a strong capital base 

and safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so as to sustain future 

development of the business. There is no change to the objectives in financial years ended 

2020 and 2019. 

 

The Group manages its capital by regularly monitoring its current and expected liquidity 

requirement and modify the combination of equity and borrowings from time to time to meet 

the needs. Shareholders’ equity and gearing ratio of the Group are as follows:- 

 

 2020  2019 

 RM  RM 

    

Total equity 170,145,464  156,889,664 

    

Borrowings 89,953,212  115,963,700 

Lease liabilities 5,454,114  - 

 

Total debt 

 

95,407,326 

  

115,963,700 

 

Debt-to-equity ratio 

 

0.56 

  

0.74 

 

 

35. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

 

 The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group and of the 

Company as at the reporting date are approximately at their fair values due to their short term 

nature or they are floating rate instruments that are re-priced to market interest rates on or 

near the reporting date.  

 

The Group and the Company have not designated any financial instrument at fair value 

through profit or loss or fair value through other comprehensive income and hence fair value 

hierarchy is not presented.  
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

DATO’ SRI LEE HOCK SENG 

Executive Chairman  

 

MS PATRICIA RANGENE PACKIUM 

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director 

 
DATO’ SRI LEE HOCK CHAI 

Managing Director  

 

MS LIM PENG PENG  

Independent Non-Executive Director 

 
DATO’ SRI LEE HOCK GUAN 

Deputy Managing Director 

 

MS LEE YEE LING 

Independent Non-Executive Director 

 
MR LEE HOCK MENG 

Executive Director 

 

 

 
AUDIT  

COMMITTEE 

 

Ms Lim Peng Peng 

(Chairperson)  

 

Ms Patricia Rangene 

Packium  

 

Ms Lee Yee Ling  

 

 

NOMINATION 

COMMITTEE 

 

Ms Patricia Rangene 

Packium  

(Chairperson)  

 

Ms Lim Peng Peng  

 

Ms Lee Yee Ling  

 

 

REMUNERATION  

COMMITTEE 

 

Ms Lim Peng Peng 

(Chairperson)  

 

Ms Patricia Rangene 

Packium  

 

Ms Lee Yee Ling  
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONT’D) 
 

PRINCIPAL BANKERS 
 
Alliance Bank Malaysia Berhad 
AmBank Islamic Berhad 
AmBank (M) Berhad 
CIMB Islamic Bank Berhad 
Hong Leong Bank Berhad 
Malayan Banking Berhad 
OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad 
Public Bank Berhad 
RHB Bank Berhad 
 

SOLICITORS 
 
Amrik Singh & Co  
Advocates & Solicitors 
No. 37A, Jalan Seruling 2, 
Taman Sri Kulai Baru 2, 
81000 Kulai, Johor 
Tel : 07-662 6730  
 
Chambers Law LLP 
Advocates & Solicitors  
45, North Canal Road,  
#05-01 Lew Building, Singapore 059301  
Tel : (65) 65353 234 
Fax: (65) 65353 502 
   
 

COMPANY SECRETARIES 
 
Lim Seck Wah 
(MAICSA No. 0799845) 
M. Chandrasegaran A/L S. Murugasu 
(MAICSA No. 0781031) 
Ng Chye Huat  
(MIA No. 14186) 
  

DATE AND PLACE OF 
INCORPORATION 
Incorporated in Malaysia on 29 June 2007 
 
REGISTERED OFFICE 
 
Level 15-2, 
Bangunan Faber Imperial Court, 
Jalan Sultan Ismail, 50250 Kuala Lumpur 
Tel : 03-2692 4271 
Fax : 03-2732 5388 
 

SHARE REGISTRAR 
 
Mega Corporate Services Sdn Bhd  
[198901010682 (187984-H)] 
Level 15-2, Bangunan Faber Imperial Court, 
Jalan Sultan Ismail, 50250 Kuala Lumpur 
Tel : 03-2692 4271 
Fax : 03-2732 5388 
 

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS 
 
PTD 109444, Jalan Sengkang, 
Kawasan Perusahaan Sri Sengkang, 
81000 Kulai, Johor 
Tel : 07-652 2288 
Fax : 07-652 2299 
Email : lss@lsspi.com 
Website : www.scgmbhd.com 
                www.plastictray.com  
 

AUDITORS 
 
Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT 
201906003682 & LLP0022494-LCA 
(Member Firm of Grant Thornton 
International Ltd) 
Chartered Accountants (AF 0737) 
Suite 28.01, 28th Floor, Menara Zurich,  
No. 15, Jalan Dato’ Abdullah Tahir, 
80300 Johor Bahru, Johor  
 
 

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING 
 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 
Main Market Stock Name : SCGM 
Stock Code : 7247 
Sector : Industrial Products 
 
A member of the FTSE4Good Bursa 
Malaysia Index 
 

mailto:lss@lsspi.com
http://www.scgmbhd.com/
http://www.plastictray.com/
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Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Seng, Malaysian, aged 69, was appointed as the Executive Chairman / Managing 

Director of SCGM Bhd (“SCGM” or “ the Company”) on 19 December 2007. He was redesignated 

as Executive Chairman on 9 December 2015. He is one of the founders of Lee Soon Seng Plastic 

Industries Sdn. Bhd. (LSSPI) and has been the Managing Director of LSSPI since its incorporation 

on 4 May 1984. In 1995, he completed an external training programme, namely the 7th Asian Factory 

Management Course 1995 in Taipei, Taiwan. Subsequently, in 1997, he completed a course in 

Middle Management Leadership Training Programme in Johor Bahru, Johor. 

 

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Seng started his career in 1969 as a Marketing and Distribution personnel with 

Lee Soon Seng, a distributor and wholesaler for F&N (M) Sdn Bhd. In 1984, he left Lee Soon Seng 

to set up LSSPI. 

 

Presently, he is responsible for the strategic business development and future directions of our 

Group. He frequently travels abroad to keep abreast with the latest developments in the packaging 

industry and to explore new market prospects for our Group. 

 

Furthermore, his responsibilities also include the development and implementation of marketing 

strategies and product distribution. He was awarded the DIMP which carries the title of Dato’ and 

the SSAP which carries the title of Dato’ Sri by the Sultan of Pahang in 2010 and 2012 respectively. 
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Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Chai, Malaysian, aged 58, was appointed as the Executive Director of SCGM 

on 19 December 2007. He is also the Executive Director of LSSPI since 4 May 1984. He is one of 

the founders of LSSPI. He began his career as a Factory Manager with LSSPI in 1984.  

 

In 1998, he was promoted to the position of Operations Manager. His responsibilities include 

developing new products and providing engineering support, machinery and factory facility 

maintenance. 

 

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Chai was promoted to become the Managing Director of SCGM on 9 December 

2015. He is presently responsible to implement and execute the strategic business development plan 

of the Group.  

 

He has more than thirty five (35) years of experience in the field of research and development. He 

was awarded the SSAP which carries the title of Dato’ Sri by the Sultan of Pahang in 2012. 
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Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Guan, Malaysian, aged 59, was appointed as the Executive Director of SCGM 

on 19 December 2007 and was redesignated as Deputy Managing Director on 15 March 2017. He 

has been the Executive Director of LSSPI since 4 May 1984. In 1997, he completed a course in 

Middle Management Leadership Training Programme in Johor Bahru, Johor. 

 

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Guan began his career in 1979 as a Sales Executive in Lee Soon Seng, a 

distributor and wholesaler for F&N (M) Sdn Bhd. 

 

He presently assists the Managing Director in areas which include overall material requirements 

planning, manpower, production capacity, general machinery maintenance and overall safety in 

production activities.  

 

He frequently travels abroad to enhance his knowledge in new technology and automation for 

production. He has more than thirty five (35) years of experience in the field of production. He was 

awarded the SSAP which carries the title of Dato’ Sri by the Sultan of Pahang in 2012. 
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Mr Lee Hock Meng, Malaysian, aged 66, was appointed as the Executive Director of SCGM on 19 

December 2007. He was the Executive Director of LSSPI since 4 May 1984. In 1997, he participated 

in the 9th Seminar on Factory Management and Marketing for Overseas Chinese Businessman. 

 

In 1979, Mr Lee began his career as a Sales Executive with Lee Soon Seng, a distributor and 

wholesaler for F&N (M) Sdn Bhd. 

 

Mr Lee was attached to Lee Soon Seng for approximately eleven (11) years before joining LSSPI in 

1990 as a Logistics Manager. He is presently responsible for overall shipping and logistic 

management for the Group. 
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Ms. Patricia Rangene Packium, Malaysian, aged 45, was appointed as the Independent Non-

Executive Director of SCGM on 16 August 2019. She graduated with an Honours Degree from the 

University of London in 1997 and was later admitted as an Advocate & Solicitor of the High Court 

of Malaya in 2002. 

 

She has thirteen (13) years experience handling conveyancing, banking and corporate matters as 

well as civil litigation matters. 

 

She is currently acting as counsel for more than three (3) legal firms throughout the country and in 

addition she is also running her own legal practice under the name of Patricia Packium & Associates 

since 2015. 

 

She serves as the Chairperson of the Nomination Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and 

Remuneration Committee of the Company. 
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Ms. Lim Peng Peng, Malaysian, aged 39, was appointed as the Independent Non-Executive Director 

of SCGM on 16 August 2019. She graduated from Monash University, Malaysia with a Bachelor of 

Business and Commerce degree in 2002. She is a Chartered Accountant and a member of the 

Malaysian Institute of Accountants and a member of the CPA Australia.  

 

After graduation, she worked in Deloitte KassimChan for 5 years and was promoted to Audit 

Manager in 2006. Subsequently, she worked at Horwath First Trust and Ernst & Young in Singapore 

from 2007 to 2008. She rejoined Deloitte KassimChan and progressed to Audit Director in 2012.  

 

She was the Group Financial Controller of SCGM Bhd from 2016 to May 2017. She is presently the 

Audit Principal of Kudos Ling Chuo & Lim. 

 

She serves as the Chairperson of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, a member of 

the Nomination Committee of the Company. 
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Ms. Lee Yee Ling, Malaysian, aged 35, was appointed as the Independent Non-Executive Director 

of SCGM on 16 August 2019. She graduated from University of Bradford (UK) with Bachelor of 

Science (Honours Degree) in Business and Management studies in 2006. She began her career as a 

Production Planning Executive with Hitachi Koki (M) Sdn Bhd from 2006 to 2008. Subsequently, 

she joined a metal component manufacturer as a Marketing Executive where she was given the 

opportunity to be involved in the formulation of marketing strategy, operation management, resource 

planning and financial planning. She has over 11 years working experience in the metal component 

manufacturing company and is presently its General Manager and Executive Director. 

 

She serves as the member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination 

Committee of the Company.  

  



116 

 

Annual Report 2020  

OTHER INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS 
 

Notes to the Directors’ Profile: 

 

1) Save as disclosed above, Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Seng, Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Chai, Dato’ Sri Lee 

Hock Guan and Mr Lee Hock Meng are siblings and substantial shareholders of SCGM by virtue 

of their direct and indirect interests in SCGM.  

 

2) Ms Patricia Rangene Packium, Ms Lim Peng Peng and Ms Lee Yee Ling were appointed as 

Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company on 16 August 2019. They do not have any 

family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholders of the Company. The details of 

Directors’ Shareholdings in the Company are disclosed on page 153 of this Annual Report 2020.  

 

3) None of the Directors hold any directorship in other public company and public listed companies. 

 

4) None of the Directors have any conflict of interest with the Company. 

 

5) None of the Directors has been convicted of any offences within the past five (5) years and has 

not been imposed with any public sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory bodies during 

the financial year ended 30 April 2020, other than traffic offences, if any. 

 

6) The details of Directors’ attendance of Board Meetings during the financial year ended 30 April 

2020 are disclosed on page 123 of this Annual Report 2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

[The rest of this page is intentionally left blank] 
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PROFILE OF KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
 

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Seng is the Executive Chairman. (The details of his profile are disclosed on page 

109 of this Annual Report 2020.) 

 

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Chai is the Managing Director. (The details of his profile are disclosed on page 

110 of this Annual Report 2020.) 

 

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Guan is the Deputy Managing Director. (The details of his profile are disclosed 

on page 111 of this Annual Report 2020.) 

 

Mr Lee Hock Meng is the Executive Director. (The details of his profile are disclosed on page 112 

of this Annual Report 2020.) 

 

Save as disclosed above, Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Seng, Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Chai, Dato’ Sri Lee Hock 

Guan and Mr Lee Hock Meng are siblings and substantial shareholders of SCGM by virtue of their 

direct and indirect interests in SCGM.  

 

None of them hold any directorship in other public company and public listed companies. 

 

None of them have any conflict of interest with the Company. 

 

None of them have been convicted of any offences within the past five (5) years and have not been 

imposed with any public sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial 

year ended 30 April 2020, other than traffic offences, if any. 

 

Mr Ng Chye Huat is the Group Financial Controller. He graduated in 1995 with a Bachelor of 

Business degree (major in Accounting) from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology, 

Australia. He is a member of the CPA Australia and a member of the Malaysian Institute of 

Accountants. He started his career in an international public accounting firm as Audit Assistant and 

thereafter worked with several manufacturing companies before joining the Group in 2017. He has 

extensive experience in finance and accounting fields. He was appointed as Group Financial 

Controller on 21 June 2017 and is currently responsible for the overall administration of financial 

and management reporting of the Group. 

 

He does not have any family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder of the 

Company. He does not hold any directorship in any other public company and public listed 

companies, nor does he have any conflict of interest with the Company. He has not been convicted 

of any offences within the past five (5) years and has not been imposed with any public sanction or 

penalty by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year ended 30 April 2020, other than 

traffic offences, if any.  
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT 
 

The Board of SCGM Bhd (“SCGM” or “Company”) will endeavour to comply with all the key 

Principles and Best Practices of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2017 (“the Code”) 

in its effort to observe high standards of transparency, accountability and integrity. SCGM is 

committed to practice high standard of corporate governance to ensure effective self-regulatory 

corporate governance to protect stakeholders’ interests. 

 

The following paragraphs describe how SCGM has applied the Principles of the Code and how the 

Board has complied with the Recommendations set out in the Code for the financial year ended 30 

April 2020. 

 

A.  THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

1.   The Board and its Responsibilities 

 

The Board is responsible for the overall corporate governance, strategic direction, formulation of 

policies and overseeing the businesses of SCGM and its subsidiaries (“the Group”). The Board leads 

and supervises the management of the business and affairs of the Group, ensure necessary resources 

are in place in enhancing long term shareholders’ value and sustaining the stakeholders’ interests.  

 

a) Board Composition 

 
The Board consists of seven (7) members comprising the Executive Chairman, Managing Director, 
Deputy Managing Director, one (1) Executive Director and three (3) Independent Non-Executive 
Directors. The present Board composition complies with the Main Market Listing Requirements 
(“Listing Requirements”) of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Malaysia”) 
 
The profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 109 to 115 in this Annual Report. 
 
The Board comprises of business entrepreneurs and professionals drawn from various backgrounds, 
with a diverse range of know-how, experiences and knowledge; provide the relevant skills, expertise 
and experience for making sound investment decisions and manage the Group's business operations. 
With the diversified and vast experiences of the board members, the Board is competent to discharge 
its duties and responsibilities and safeguard shareholders’ value. 
 
The Board composition is based on merits, experience and their commitment and contribution to the 
Group. The Board from time to time undertakes a review of its composition to determine areas to 
strengthen and improve opportunities.  
 
The Board acknowledges the importance of gender diversity in terms of age, gender, culture, 
nationality, ethnicity and recognises the benefits of this diversity. The Board also recognises that 
having a range of different skills, backgrounds, experience and diversity is essential to ensure a broad 
range of viewpoints to facilitate optimal decision making and effective governance. 
 
Currently, the Board has three (3) female Directors, represent 43% of the total Board members. They 
are part of the Board’s gender diversity that serves to bring value to the Board discussions from 
different perspectives and approaches from gender diversity. 
 
All Directors shall retire from office once at least in each 3 years, but shall be eligible for re-election. 

One-third (1/3) of the Directors shall retire from office at the Annual General Meeting and shall be 

eligible for re-election. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT 

(CONT’D) 
 
A.  THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d) 
 
1.   The Board and its Responsibilities (cont’d) 
 
b) Goals and Responsibilities 
 
The positions of Executive Chairman and Managing Director are held by different individuals. The 
roles of the Executive Chairman and Managing Director are separate with clear division of 
responsibilities between them to ensure balance of power and authority. 
 
The Board recognises the key role it plays in charting the strategic direction of the Company and has 
assumed the following principal responsibilities in discharging its fiduciary and leadership 
functions: 
▪ reviewing and adopting a strategic plan for the Company, addressing the sustainability of the 

Group’s business;  
▪ overseeing the conduct of the Group’s business and to lead its direction;  
▪ identify principal business risks faced by the Group and ensuring the implementation of 

appropriate internal controls and mitigating measures to address such risks;  
▪ ensuring that all candidates appointed to senior management positions are of sufficient calibre, 

including the orderly succession of senior management personnel; 
▪ overseeing the development and implementation of a shareholder communications policy, 

including an investor relations programme for the Group; and  
▪ reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the Group’s internal control and management 

information systems. 
 
To assist in the discharge of its stewardship role, the Board has established Board Committees, 
namely the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee, to examine 
specific issues within their respective terms of reference as approved by the Board and report to the 
Board with their recommendations. The ultimate responsibility for decision making, however, lies 
with the Board. 
 
Executive Chairman  
 
The Executive Chairman is responsible for the Group’s future business and strategy plan, setting 
goal to achieve the mission and vision. He provides leadership and governance of the Board, 
ensuring its effectiveness and assumes the formal role as the leader in chairing all Board meetings 
and shareholders’ meetings. He leads the Board in overseeing Management and principally ensures 
that the Board fulfils its obligations as required under the relevant legislations and instilling good 
corporate governance practices. 
 
Some of the specific responsibilities of the Executive Chairman include to:- 
i) Manage Board meetings and boardroom dynamics by promoting a culture of openness and 

debate where Directors are encouraged to provide their views; 
ii) Work closely with the Managing Director to ensure provision of accurate, timely and clear 

information to facilitate the Board to perform effectively, able to make informed decisions 
and to monitor the effective implementation of the Board’s decisions;  

iii) To provide his view and decision objectively;  
iv) Set goals, direction to vision and mission of the Group; 
v) Ensure meetings of the shareholders are conducted in an open and proper manner with 

appropriate opportunity for them to ask questions; and 
vi) As Group’s official spokesperson. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT 
(CONT’D) 
 
A.  THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d) 
 
1.   The Board and its Responsibilities (cont’d) 
 
b)   Goals and Responsibilities (cont’d) 

 

Managing Director 

 

The Managing Director is responsible for the management of the Group’s business and marketing 

strategy to meet the Group’s budget and target sales, organisational effectiveness and 

implementation of Board strategies, policies and decisions.  

 

Deputy Managing Director 

 

To work hand in hand with the Managing Director and Executive Director, to assist the Managing 

Director to improve efficiency of the Group. 

 

Executive Director 

 

The duty of Executive Director includes implementation of decisions and policies approved by 

Board, overseeing and running the Group's day to day business, and also coordinating business and 

strategic decisions. Each Executive Director is responsible for the respective business unit that there 

is no overlapping of each role and duty. 

 

Independent Directors 

 

The Non-Executive Directors are independent from management and are free from any business or 

other relationships that could materially interfere with the exercise of independent judgment. They 

scrutinize the decision taken by the Board, and provide constructive opinions and objectively 

challenge the management’s proposal and decision. While the Board is responsible for creating the 

framework and policies within which the Group should be operating, the management is accountable 

for the execution of the expressed policies and attainment of the Group’s expressed corporate 

objectives. This demarcation reinforces the supervisory role of the Board. 

 

The Board also assumes various functions and responsibilities that are required of them by regulatory 

authorities, as specified in guidelines and directives issued from time to time. 

 

c) Board Charter 

 

The Board has formalized and uploaded its Board Charter in the Company’s website at 

www.scgmbhd.com. The Board will review and update the Board Charter on an annual basis. The 

Board Charter was last reviewed on 29 June 2020.  

 

The Board Charter sets outs the respective roles and responsibilities of the Board, Board 

Committees, individual directors and management. The Board is the Company’s decision-making 

body, significant issues and decisions are reserved for the Board’s decision. 
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(CONT’D) 

 
A.  THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d) 
 

1.   The Board and its Responsibilities (cont’d) 
 

d) Independence 

 

The Group measures the independence of its Directors based on the criteria prescribed under the 

Listing Requirement in which a Director should be independent and free from any business or other 

relationship that could interfere with the exercise of independent judgement or the ability to act in 

the best interests of the Company. Objective assessment of the independence of Directors based on 

the provisions of the Listing Requirements is carried out before the appointment of Directors and re-

affirmed annually. 

 

One of the recommendations of the Code states that the tenure of an independent director should not 

exceed a cumulative term of over 9 years. To be in line with the Code, none of the Independent 

Director has served the Company for more than 9 years. As of to date, the three Independent 

Directors have served the Board for 1 year. 

 

The Board considered the current size and composition of the Board a balanced mix of professionals 

and entrepreneurs who have a diverse range of know-how and experiences in relevant fields. The 

Board is of the view that with the current Board size, diversity and gender, there is a balance of 

power and authority on the Board between the Non-Independent and Independent Directors. The 

Board is assisted by the Nomination Committee to review the Board size and composition annually. 

 

e) Code of Conduct and Ethics  

 

The Code of Conduct and Ethics will be reviewed periodically and published on the Company’s 

website at www.scgmbhd.com. 

 

The Code of Conduct and Ethics was last reviewed on 29 June 2020.  

 

(f)  Whistleblowing Policy 

 

The Whistleblowing Policy will be reviewed periodically and published on the Company’s website 

at www.scgmbhd.com. 

 

The Whistleblowing Policy was last reviewed on 29 June 2020.  

 

g)  Anti-Bribery And Corruption Policy 

 

SCGM Group has adopted the Anti-Bribery And Corruption Policy on 30 March 2020 and the said 

Policy will be reviewed periodically. 

 

The Anti-Bribery And Corruption Policy is available and published on the Company’s website at 

www.scgmbhd.com.  
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(CONT’D) 
 
A.  THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d) 
 

1.   The Board and its Responsibilities (cont’d) 
 

h)  Schedule of Matters Reserved for Board 

 

Append below is a list of matters reserved for Board and Board Committee, where there is doubt 

regarding a matter/an issue, it shall be referred to the Chairman:  

 

i. Business plan and changes thereon;  

ii. Introduction of new business or termination of existing business;  

iii. Budget and significant capital expenditure;  

iv. Quarterly results, unaudited and audited financial statements;  

v. Proposed dividend/Dividend policy; 

vi. Approval of significant changes in accounting policies and practices;  

vii. Remuneration of auditors;  

viii.    Recommendations for appointment, reappointment and dismissal of auditors; 

ix.    External and internal audit plans;  

x.    Report and findings of auditors;  

xi.    Property, plant and equipment written off and/or disposals; 

xii.    Bank borrowings;  

xiii.    Changes in the mode of operations of bank accounts;  

xiv.    Debt, loan agreements and working capital facilities for the Group; 

xv.    Financial instruments and derivatives;  

xvi. Increase in issued and paid up share capital, share buy-back, capitalisation of reserves; 

xvii. Related party transactions;  

xviii. Directors’ remunerations and fees;  

xix. Changes in organisational and management structure; 

xx. Misconduct and disciplinary matters;  

xxi. Actual or potential conflict of interest matters; 

xxii. Anti-bribery and corruption matters; 

xxiii. Anti-money laundering; 

xxiv. Changes in key positions;  

xxv. Appointment of power of attorney; 

xxvi. Risk management framework; 

xxvii. Internal control systems;  

xxviii. Board committees’ terms of reference and changes thereto;  

xxix. Whistleblowing policy, Board Charter, Code of Conduct and Ethics and Anti-Bribery And 

Corruption Policy; 

xxx. Convening Annual General Meeting/Extraordinary General Meeting; 

xxxi. Key statements of Annual Report; 

xxxii. Business and operational policy, Board Charter, Code of Conduct and Ethics; 

xxxiii. Appointment and termination of Company Secretary and/or Share Registrars;  

xxxiv. Change of registered office; 

xxxv. Change of Company’s name; 

xxxvi. Accounting policy. 
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(CONT’D) 
 
A.  THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d) 

 

2.   Board Meetings 

 

Board meetings are scheduled in advance at the beginning of the new financial year to enable 

Directors to plan ahead and fix the scheduled meetings. The Board meets at least four times a year. 

Special Board meetings to deliberate on any ad hoc or urgent issues which require the Board’s 

consideration and decision will be held as and when necessary. Financial and operation plan will be 

reviewed and discussed at each regular scheduled meeting. 

 

Other items reviewed would include business performance of the Group, against plan previously 

approved by the Board, review and approve quarterly and annual financial statements, corporate 

exercises and other proposals that require the approval of the Board. Senior management and 

advisers may be invited to attend Board meetings, where necessary, to provide additional 

information and insights on the relevant agenda items tabled at Board meetings. 

 

The Board is satisfied with the level of time commitment given by the Directors towards fulfilling 

their roles and responsibilities as Directors. In any given circumstances, in accordance with the 

provision of the Listing Requirements, members of the SCGM Board are expected to serve in no 

more than five public listed companies. 

 

The Board met four (4) times during the financial year ended 30 April 2020. Details of each 

director’s attendance for the financial year ended 30 April 2020 are as follows:- 

 

Name       Attendance 

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Seng     4/4 

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Chai     4/4 

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Guan     4/4 

Lee Hock Meng      4/4 

Patricia Rangene Packium (appointed on 16.8.2019)             2/3 

Lim Peng Peng (appointed on 16.8.2019)   2/3 

Lee Yee Ling (appointed on 16.8.2019)    3/3 

Wong Tun Boon (resigned on 16.8.2019)   1/1 

Tang Nai Soon (resigned on 16.8.2019)   1/1 

Amrik Singh Harcharan Singh (resigned on 16.8.2019) 1/1 
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(CONT’D) 
 
A.  THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d) 

 

3.   Supply of Information 

 

The Board meeting agenda and meeting papers are distributed 5 days prior to the meetings of the 

Board to ensure that Directors have sufficient time to deliberate the matters and effective discussion 

at the meetings. The Board members are supplied with full and timely information to enable them 

to discharge their duties. 

 

Presentations to the Board are prepared and delivered in a manner that ensures clear and adequate 

presentation of the subject matter. For accessibility and more effective administration of the board 

papers, it is made accessible electronically through secured means. All issues raised, discussions, 

deliberations, decisions and conclusions including dissenting views made at Board meetings with 

clear actions to be taken by responsible parties are recorded in the minutes. 

 

All Directors have full access to the information and support from the management. Directors may 

also interact directly with, or request further explanation, information or update on any aspects of 

the Group’s operations from the management.  

 

In addition, the Board also has access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary who is 

responsible for ensuring that Board Meeting procedures are followed and that applicable rules and 

regulations are complied with. The proceedings and resolutions reached at each Board meeting are 

recorded in the Minutes Book kept at the registered office by Company Secretary. Besides Board 

meetings, the Board also exercises control on matters that requires its approval through the 

circulation of Directors’ resolutions. 

 

As the Group’s quarterly results is one of the regular annual schedule of matters which is tabled to 

the Board for approval at the quarterly Board meetings, notices on the closed period for trading in 

SCGM’s securities are also circulated to remind Directors, key management personnel and principal 

officers who are privy to any sensitive information and knowledge in advance of whenever the closed 

period is applicable based on the targeted date of announcement of the Group’s quarterly results. 

This is to comply with the Listing Requirements and the Capital Markets & Services Act 2007 

requirements where key management personnel and principal officers of the Group are prohibited 

from trading in securities or any kind of property based on price sensitive information which has not 

been publicly announced within 30 calendar days before the targeted date of announcement of the 

quarterly results up to the date of announcement.  

 

The Board will seek for independent professional advice, if necessary, at the Company's expense 

from time to time to enable the Board to discharge its duties in relation to matters being deliberated. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT 

(CONT’D) 
 
A.  THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d) 

 

4.   Nomination Committee 

 
The composition of the Nomination Committee and their attendance records of Nomination 

Committee meetings are as follows:- 

 

Name of Director 

 

Position Meeting 

Attendance 

Ms. Patricia Rangene Packium (appointed on 16.8.2019) 

(Senior Independent Director) 

 

Chairperson - 

Ms. Lee Yee Ling (appointed on 16.8.2019)   

(Independent Director) 

 

Member - 

Ms. Lim Peng Peng (appointed on 16.8.2019)  

(Independent Director) 

 

Member  - 

Mr. Tang Nai Soon (resigned on 16.8.2019) 

(Independent Director) 

Chairman 1/1 

Amrik Singh Harcharan Singh (resigned on 16.8.2019) 

(Independent Director) 

 

Member 1/1 

Mr. Wong Tun Boon (resigned on 16.8.2019)  

(Senior Independent Director) 

 

Member  1/1 

 

The Nomination Committee comprise exclusively of Independent Non-Executive Directors and is 

chaired by Senior Independent Director. The Nomination Committee annually review the required 

mix of skills, experience, diversity and other qualities, including core competencies and 

effectiveness of the Board, as a whole, the Board Committee and the contribution of each individual 

director. On top of that, the Nomination Committee also annually review the term of office and 

performance of the Audit Committee and each of its members. 

 

The Nomination Committee will hold a meeting at least once a year, additional meetings can be 

scheduled if necessary or upon request by any of its members. The minutes of the meeting of the 

Nomination Committee are circulated to all the members and it is properly kept at the registered 

office by the Company Secretary. 

 

The terms of reference of Nomination Committee was last reviewed on 29 June 2020 and is available 

on the Company’s website at www.scgmbhd.com. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT 

(CONT’D) 
 
A.  THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d) 

 

4.   Nomination Committee (cont’d) 

 

Activities of the Nomination Committee for the financial year 

 

The members of the Committee reviewed the composition, mix of skills, expertise, experience, size, 

diversity and independence of the Board. There is a process in place to review the balance Board 

composition, Directors’ evaluation and effectiveness of the Board annually. The Board composition 

comprises of professional such as laws, accountant, business entrepreneur, a mix of knowledge, 

skills and various expertise such as factory management, manufacturing and operation. 

 

The Nomination Committee review annually the performance of the Audit Committee and each of 

its members, assess the Audit Committee whether it has carried out its duties in accordance with the 

Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference. The Audit Committee composition comprises accountant, 

legal practitioner and business entrepreneur. 

 

The Nomination Committee assess the respective Director through the Director Evaluation Forms 

covering the criteria of integrity and ethics, governance, strategic perspective, adding value, 

judgment and decision-making, teamwork, communication and commitment. The assessment of the 

Board is based on specific criteria, covering areas such as the Board structure, Board operations, 

roles and responsibilities of the Board, the Board Committee and the Chairman’s role and 

responsibilities. 

 

The respective Director will abstain from evaluating their own Board performance. The Nomination 

Committee will rate the Board performance evaluation based on the consensus amongst the 

Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee Chairman will make the appropriate 

recommendation to the Board. The final decision is with the Board. 

 

The Company has replaced the 3 independent directors who have served for 9 years with 3 female 

Directors during the financial year. The selection is based on merits, experience, diversity, gender 

and their commitment and contribution to the Company. The Board will continue to provide equal 

opportunity to competent candidates. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT 

(CONT’D) 
 
A. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d) 
 
5. Directors' Training 
 
The Board members shall appraise and keep abreast with the developments in the regulations and 
statutes relevant to the industry and to further enhance their skills and knowledge by attending the 
relevant seminars, training programmes, conferences, etc, from time to time. 
 
Description of the type of trainings attended by the Directors for financial year ended 30 April 2020 
are as follows:- 
    
Name of Director Seminar/Training Programme Date 

 
Dato’ Sri Lee Hock 
Seng 

Seminar Technology Update - Biodegradable 
Plastic - The Technology And Potential 
 
Industry4WRD Seminar Grants, Incentives and 
Financing Solutions 
 

5 September 2019 
 
 

25 September 2019 

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock 
Chai 

Seminar Technology Update - Biodegradable 
Plastic - The Technology And Potential 
 
Tax Seminar on Budget 2020 
 

5 September 2019 
 
 

4 November 2019 

Dato’ Sri Lee Hock 
Guan 

Seminar Technology Update - Biodegradable 
Plastic - The Technology And Potential 
 

5 September 2019 

Lee Hock Meng Seminar Technology Update - Biodegradable 
Plastic - The Technology And Potential 
 

5 September 2019 

Patricia Rangene 
Packium 

Evaluating Effective Internal Audit Function – 
Audit Committee’s Guide On How To 
 
Mandatory Accreditation Programme (MAP) 
 

17 October 2019 
 
 

21-22 November 2019 

Lee Yee Ling Evaluating Effective Internal Audit Function – 
Audit Committee’s Guide On How To 
 
Mandatory Accreditation Programme (MAP) 
 

17 October 2019 
 
 

21-22 November 2019 

Lim Peng Peng Fraud – What Keeps You Up at Night? 
 
MFRS 15 Impact To Construction Contracts and 
Property Development Activities 
 
Evaluating Effective Internal Audit Function – 
Audit Committee’s Guide On How To 
 
Implementation of ISQC 1 
 
Mandatory Accreditation Programme (MAP) 

11 October 2019 
 

16 October 2019 
 
 

17 October 2019 
 
 

29 October 2019 
 

21-22 November 2019 

 

The Board of Directors will continue to evaluate and determine the training needs that will assist the 

Directors in discharging their duties. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT 

(CONT’D) 
 
A. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d) 
 

6. Qualified and competent Company Secretaries 

 

The Directors have unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company Secretaries to 

enable them to discharge their duties effectively. The Board is regularly updated and advised by the 

Company Secretaries who are qualified, experienced and competent on statutory and regulatory 

requirements, and the resultant implications of any changes therein to the Company and Directors 

in relation to their duties and responsibilities. The Company Secretaries advise the Board on matters 

relating to corporate governance, compliance with the Listing Requirements, Capital Markets and 

Services Act 2007 and Companies Act 2016, preparation and conduct of the Board, Board 

Committees and General Meetings. 

 

 

B. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 

 

1. The Level and Make-up 

 

The remuneration policy of the Group for the Executive Chairman and the Executive Directors are 

structured to link rewards to corporate and individual performance in order to retain staff with the 

relevant skills and experience to meet the challenges of the Group. For Non-Executive Directors, the 

level of remuneration shall reflect the experience and level of responsibilities undertaken by the 

particular Non-Executive Director concerned. 

 

2. Remuneration Committee  

 

The Remuneration Committee is authorised by Board to establish formal and transparent 

remuneration policies and procedures to attract and retain directors as well as senior key 

management. 

 

In line with Guidance 6.2 of the Code with regard to the governance of the Remuneration Committee, 

the Remuneration Committee membership comprises of all Independent Non-Executive Directors. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT 

(CONT’D) 
 

B. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (cont’d) 

 

2. Remuneration Committee (cont’d) 

 

The composition of Remuneration Committee and their attendance records of Remuneration 

Committee meeting are as follows: 

 

Name of Director 

 

Position Meeting 

Attendance 

Ms. Lim Peng Peng (appointed on 16.8.2019) 

(Independent Director) 

 

Chairperson - 

Ms. Lee Yee Ling (appointed on 16.8.2019)   

(Independent Director) 

 

Member - 

Ms. Patricia Rangene Packium (appointed on 16.8.2019)  

(Independent Director) 

 

Member  - 

Mr. Wong Tun Boon (resigned on 16.8.2019) 

(Independent Director) 

Chairman 1/1 

Amrik Singh Harcharan Singh (resigned on 16.8.2019) 

(Independent Director) 

 

Member 1/1 

Mr. Tang Nai Soon (resigned on 16.8.2019)  

(Independent Director) 

 

Member  1/1 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT 

(CONT’D) 
 

B. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (cont’d) 

 

2. Remuneration Committee (cont’d) 

 

The duties of Remuneration Committee are as follows:  

i) Set, review, recommend and advise the policy framework on all elements of the remuneration 

such as reward structure, fringe benefits and other terms of employment of Executive 

Chairman, Managing Director and Executive Directors having regard to the overall Group 

policy guidelines/framework. 

ii) Advise the Board on the performance of the Executive Directors and the Managing Director 

and an assessment of his/her entitlement to performance related pay. The Remuneration 

Committee should also advise the Managing Director on the remuneration and terms and 

conditions (and where appropriate, severance payments) of senior staff (defined as the small 

group of staff who report directly to the Managing Director). 

iii) Review the history of and proposals for the remuneration package of the Company’s 

Committees. 

 

The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee will be reviewed periodically and was last 

reviewed on 29 June 2020.  

 

The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee is published on the Company’s website at 

www.scgmbhd.com. 

 

The remuneration policy of the Group for all Executive Directors and senior management shall be 

recommended by the Remuneration Committee for the Board’s approval with the Directors 

concerned abstaining from deliberations and voting on decisions in respect of their individual 

remuneration. 

 

The fees and benefits payable to the Directors shall be recommended by the Board, subject to the 

approval of shareholders at Annual General Meeting. 

 

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year, additional meetings can be scheduled if 

necessary. No Director shall take part in decisions pertaining to his own remuneration. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT (CONT’D) 
 
B. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (cont’d) 
 
3. Disclosure 
 

The following table outlines the remuneration and benefits paid/payable to the Directors during the financial year ended 30 April 2020 : 
 

NO. NAME OF 
DIRECTORS 

FEE (RM) SALARY (RM) BONUS (RM) ALLOWANCE (RM) BENEFITS (RM) TOTAL 
AMOUNT 

(RM) 
SCGM SUBSIDIARY SCGM SUBSIDIARY SCGM SUBSIDIARY SCGM SUBSIDIARY SCGM SUBSIDIARY 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS           
1 Dato’ Sri Lee 

Hock Seng 
- - - 1,032,000 - 120,000 - - - 28,000 1,180,000 

2 Dato’ Sri Lee 
Hock Chai 

- - - 992,400 - 120,000 - - - 13,325 1,125,725 

3 Dato’ Sri Lee 
Hock Guan 

- - - 992,400 - 120,000 - - - 13,325 1,125,725 

4 Lee Hock Meng - - - 900,000 - 100,000 - - - 13,325 1,013,325 

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS           
5 Lim Peng Peng 

(appointed on 
16.8.2019) 

15,000 - - - - - 200 - - - 15,200 

6 Patricia Rangene 
Packium 
(appointed on 
16.8.2019) 

15,000 - - - - - 400 - - - 15,400 

7 Lee Yee Ling 
(appointed on  
16.8.2019) 

15,000 - - - - - 400 - - - 15,400 

8 Tang Nai Soon  
(resigned on 
16.8.2019) 

6,000 - - - - - - - - - 6,000 

9 Wong Tun Boon  
(resigned on 
16.8.2019) 

6,750 - - - - - - - - - 6,750 

10 Amrik Singh 
Harcharan Singh 
(resigned on 
16.8.2019)  

6,000 - - - - - - - - - 6,000 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT 

(CONT’D) 
 

C. RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS 

 

The Board maintains an effective communication policy that enables both the Board and the 

management to communicate effectively with its shareholders, stakeholders and the public. The 

Group placed importance on feedback from customers, stakeholders and its members, which would 

be factored into the Group's business decision. 

 

The Executive Chairman is the authorised person to speak and release the public information for and 

on behalf of the Group. 

 

The Board communicates information on the operations, activities and performance of the Group to 

the shareholders, stakeholders and the public through the following: 

 

i) The Annual Report, which contains the financial and operational review of the Company and 

the Group's business, corporate information, financial statements and information on Audit 

Committee and Board of Directors;  

ii) Announcements made to the Bursa Malaysia, which includes announcements on quarterly 

financial results, circular and various announcements made via Bursa Link in full compliance 

with regulatory authorities’ disclosure requirements;  

iii) Annual General Meeting, the primary engagement platform between the Board and 

shareholders of the Group;  

iv) Quarterly results and Investors’ Briefing, SCGM holds the investors’ briefing which is 

chaired by the Chairman immediately after the release of quarterly results to Bursa Securities 

to facilitate timely publication and/or dissemination of analysts’ reports to the investing 

community;  

v) Corporate Governance Report announcement made to Bursa Malaysia;  

vi) The Company’s website - www.scgmbhd.com; and 

vii) Media release. 

 

All the Company’s announcements made to Bursa Malaysia are available at Bursa Malaysia’s 

website:- www.bursamalaysia.com and the Company’s website at www.scgmbhd.com. 

 

The General Meeting serves as a platform to interact with shareholders. Notice of the Annual 

General Meeting and Annual Reports are sent to shareholders twenty-eight (28) days prior to the 

meeting.  

 

At each Annual General Meeting, the Board presents the performance and progress of the Group 

and provides shareholders with the opportunity to raise questions and seek clarification on the 

business activities pertaining to the Group, agenda of the meetings and its proposed resolutions. The 

Chairman and the Board will respond to the questions raised by the shareholders during the Annual 

General Meeting. The Board ensures each item of special business included in the notice will be 

accompanied by an explanatory statement on the effects of the proposed resolution. 

 

At the Company’s Annual General Meeting, Directors were present in person to engage directly 

with, and be accountable to the shareholders for their stewardship of the Company. The Directors, 

the Chairman of Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, 

Management and external auditors were in attendance to respond to the shareholders’ queries. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT 

(CONT’D) 
 

C. RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS (cont’d) 

 

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the Company’s Directors, the Chairman of Audit 

Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee, Management and external 

auditors will be attending the Annual General Meeting and provide response to questions. The 

Company will allocate sufficient time to shareholders and their proxies for questions and answers 

session. 

 

In line with good corporate governance and Listing Requirements, all resolutions tabled at general 

meetings are voted by way of poll. 

 

Matters reserved for shareholders’ approval at Annual General Meeting include the following:- 

i) Distribution of final dividends; if any; 

ii) Re-election of Directors; 

iii) Payment of Directors’ fees and benefits; and 

iv) Appointment/re-appointment of external auditors and their remuneration. 

 

 

D. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT 

 

The Board aims to present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company and the 

Group's position and prospect through the annual financial statements and quarterly announcements 

of results to the Bursa Malaysia. The Directors are responsible in ensuring that the annual financial 

statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2016 and applicable 

approved accounting standards in Malaysia. 

 

1. Audit Committee 

 

The Board is assisted by the Audit Committee in supporting oversight functions of the Board on the 

Group’s financial reporting, risk management and internal control systems and ensuring high 

corporate governance practices. 

 

The members of the Audit Committee are as follows: 

 

a. Ms. Lim Peng Peng (Chairperson)  

b. Ms. Patricia Rangene Packium  

c. Ms. Lee Yee Ling   

 

The terms of reference of Audit Committee will be reviewed periodically. The last review was on 

29 June 2020. 

 

The terms of reference of Audit Committee is published on the Company’s website at 

www.scgmbhd.com. 

 

Details of the composition and the summary of work of the Audit Committee during the financial 

year are set out in the Audit Committee Report included in this Annual Report. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT 

(CONT’D) 
 

D. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (cont’d) 

 

2. Financial Reporting 

 

The Directors are committed to ensure the Group has adopted appropriate accounting policies, 

consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates and all 

applicable approved accounting standards for the preparation of the audited financial statements and 

quarterly announcement of results. In this respect, the Board through the Audit Committee oversees 

the process and the integrity and quality of financial reporting, annually and quarterly. The Audit 

Committee, in this respect, assists the Board by reviewing the financial statements and quarterly 

announcements of results to ensure completeness, accuracy and adequacy before recommending the 

same for the Board’s approval. 

 

The Directors, in preparation of the financial statements, have requested the Auditors to take 

whatever steps and to undertake whatever inspections they consider to be appropriate to enable them 

to render their audit report. The Directors are responsible to ensure the annual financial statements 

are prepared in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act 2016 and applicable approved 

accounting standards in Malaysia, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

Group and the Company. 

 

A statement by the Directors of their responsibilities in preparing the financial statements is set out 

separately on page 137 of this Annual Report. The details of the Company’s and Group’s financial 

statements for the financial year ended 30 April 2020 can be found on pages 18 to 105 of this Annual 

Report. 

 

 

3. Relationship with Auditors 

 

The Audit Committee manages and maintains a transparent and professional relationship with its 

external auditors and internal auditors on behalf of the Board. The Audit Committee considers the 

re-appointment, remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors and internal auditors 

annually.  

 

The Audit Committee meets with the external and internal auditors to discuss their audit plans, audit 

findings and other special matters that require the Board’s attention and the financial statements.  

The external auditors and internal auditors attend Audit Committee Meetings of the Company 

whenever requested to do so.  

 

Assessment of Suitability and Independence of External Auditors 

 

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the suitability and independence of the external auditors. 

The external auditors have confirmed that they were, and have been, independent throughout the 

conduct of the audit engagement in accordance with the terms of all relevant professional and 

regulatory requirements. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT 

(CONT’D) 
 

D. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (cont’d) 

 

3. Relationship with Auditors (cont’d) 

 

The external auditors can be engaged to perform non-audit services if there are clear efficiencies and 

value-added benefits to the Group and a detailed review of non-audit fees paid to the external 

auditors is undertaken by the Audit Committee. These procedures are in place to ensure that neither 

their independence nor their objectivity is put at risk, and steps are taken to ensure that this does not 

impede the external auditors audit works. The Audit Committee remains confident that the 

objectivity and independence of the external auditors are not in any way impaired by reason of the 

non-audit services provided to the Group. 

 

The Audit Committee would meet the external auditors to review the scope of audit process, the 

audit findings and the audited financial statements, without any presence of the Executive Director 

and the Management. The external auditors are invited to attend the Annual General Meeting of the 

Group and are available to the shareholders’ questions on the conduct of the statutory audit and the 

preparation and contents of their audit report. 

 

Details of statutory audit, audit-related and non-audit fees paid/payable in the financial year ended 

30 April 2020 to the external auditors are set out below:- 

 

Fees paid/payable to Grant Thornton 

Malaysia PLT 

Company 

(RM) 

Subsidiary 

(RM) 

Total 

(RM) 

Audit Fees 

Audit Related Fees1 

Tax and tax related services2 

10,000 

7,000 

- 

59,000 

- 

16,000 

69,000 

7,000 

16,000 

 
1 Fees incurred in connection with performance of review of consolidation accounts and review on Statement on Risk Management and Internal 

Control 

2 Fees incurred for assisting the Group in connection with tax compliance and advisory services 

 
4. Internal Control 
 
The Board recognises the importance of sound internal control for good corporate governance. As 
such, an internal audit function is continuously reviewed and strengthened. The internal audit 
function was outsourced to an independent professional firm to assist the Audit Committee in 
reviewing the state of internal control of the Group and to highlight areas for management and 
operational improvement. 
 
The state of internal control of the Group is explained in greater detail on pages 143 to 152 of this 
Annual Report. 
 
 
Statement of Compliance with Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2017 (“the Code”) 
 
The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate governance throughout the 
Group and to the highest level of integrity and ethical standards in all its business dealings. The 
Board considers that it has complied with most of the main principles and recommendations of the 
Code that are applicable to the Company throughout the financial year.  
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

1. Material Contracts involving Directors’ and Major Shareholders’ Interest 

 

There were no material contracts entered into by the Company and its subsidiary involving the 

Directors’ and major shareholders’ interest during the financial year. 

 

2. Status of Corporate Proposals / Utilisation of Proceeds 

 

The Company did not undertake any fund raising exercise during the financial year under review. 
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES  
 

In accordance with the requirements in Paragraph 15.26 (a) of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 

Main Market Listing Requirements, the Board of Directors are required to issue a statement 

explaining their responsibility for preparing the annual audited financial statements. 

 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as to 

give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International 

Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. 

 

In ensuring the preparation of these financial statements, the Directors have: 

• Selected and applied the appropriate and relevant accounting policies on a consistent basis; 

• Made judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent in the 

circumstances; and 

• Prepared the annual audited financial statements on a going concern basis. 

 

The Directors are accountable to keep all the accounting and other statutory records for a requisite 

statutory period of time. The Directors have also a general responsibility to safeguard the assets of 

the Group and establishment of system of internal control for the prevention and detection of fraud 

and other irregularities which is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 

OVERVIEW 

 

The objective of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its 

responsibilities for the accounting and internal control systems, the financial reporting procedures, 

the audit process and compliance with Main Market Listing Requirement (“Listing Requirements”) 

of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”). 

 

The Audit Committee is committed to its role of supporting oversight functions of the Board of 

Directors on the Group’s financial reporting, risk management and internal control systems and 

ensuring high corporate governance practices. 

 

1. COMPOSITION AND ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS 

 

The details of the Audit Committee members and meetings held during the financial year 

ended 30 April 2020 are as follows:- 

 

Name of Audit Committee Members Membership 

Numbers of Audit 

Committee Meeting 

Attended Held 

Ms. Lim Peng Peng  

(appointed on 16.8.2019) 

Independent Non-Executive Director 

Chairperson 2 3 

Ms. Lee Yee Ling  

(appointed on 16.8.2019) 

Independent Non-Executive Director 

Member  3 3 

Ms. Patricia Rangene Packium  

(appointed on 16.8.2019) 

Independent Non-Executive Director 

 Member 2 3 

Mr Wong Tun Boon  

(resigned on 16.8.2019) 

Independent Non-Executive Director 

Chairman  1 1 

Mr Tang Nai Soon  

(resigned on 16.8.2019) 

Independent Non-Executive Director 

Member  1 1 

Mr Amrik Singh Harcharan Singh  

(resigned on 16.8.2019) 

Independent Non-Executive Director 

 Member 1 1 

 

The composition of Audit Committee is in compliance with the paragraph 15.09 of Listing 

Requirements, where the Audit Committee consist of three (3) Independent Non-Executive 

Directors. The former Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Wong Tun Boon (resigned on 

16.8.2019) and Ms Lim Peng Peng (appointed on 16.8.2019), both are members of the 

Certified Practicing Accountant (“CPA”) Australia and members of the Malaysian Institute of 

Accountants (“MIA”) which fulfils the requirement under paragraph 15.09(c)(i) and 

paragraph 7.1 of Practice Note 13 of Listing Requirements. In compliance with Practice 8.1 of 

Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (“MCCG”), the Audit Committee Chairperson is 

not the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company. 
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (CONT’D) 
 

1.      COMPOSITION AND ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS (cont’d) 

 

None of the Audit Committee is former key audit partners. All members of the Audit 

Committee (including the Chairperson of the Audit Committee) are independent directors and 

no alternate director is allowed as member of the Audit Committee. 

 

The profile of the members are presented on pages 113 to 115 of this Annual Report. 

 

1.1 Quorum and Frequency of Meetings 

 

a) The Audit Committee meetings shall be held at least four (4) times a year with a 

minimum quorum of two (2) members of whom shall be Independent Directors.  

 

b) Additional meetings may be called at any time at the discretion of the Audit 

Committee. 

 

1.2 Attendance of Meetings 

 

a) The Corporate Affairs Manager and Group Financial Controller normally be invited 

to attend the Audit Committee meetings. The Executive Chairman, Managing 

Director, Deputy Managing Director, Executive Director and Internal Auditors / 

External Auditors may be invited to attend the Audit Committee meetings; and 

 

b) The External Auditors shall attend the Audit Committee meeting to deliberate the 

audited financial statements and such other meetings as determined by the Audit 

Committee. 

 

c) The Internal Auditors will be invited to present the internal audit planning, internal 

audit findings and follow up report. 

 

1.3 Reporting Procedures 

 

a) The Chairperson of the Audit Committee reports to the Board of Directors on matters 

deliberated during the Audit Committee meetings. Minutes of each meeting are 

circulated to each member of the Board;  

 

b) The books containing the minutes of the proceedings of meetings of the Audit 

Committee are kept in the registered office of the Company and are available for 

inspection. 

 

 

2. TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 

The terms of reference of Audit Committee was last reviewed on 29 June 2020 and published 

on the Company’s website at www.scgmbhd.com. 
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (CONT’D) 
 

3. SUMMARY OF WORK OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE DURING THE FINANCIAL 

YEAR 

 

The Audit Committee has carried out the following activities in accordance with the Terms of 

Reference during the financial year ended 30 April 2020:- 

 

a) Reviewed the Group’s unaudited quarterly financial results before recommending the 

same for the Board of Directors’ approval and subsequently releasing it to Bursa 

Securities;  

b) Reviewed the related party transactions that were entered into by the Group to ensure 

that they are properly conducted as well as the adequate and proper disclosure of these 

procedures and items of the related party transactions;  

c) In considering the external audit plan for annual audit with the external auditors, the 

Audit Committee received written confirmation through their Audit Approach 

Memorandum that they are independent and they had conducted themselves in 

accordance with the terms of all relevant professional and regulatory bodies; 

d) Reviewed the external audit plan, nature and scope of work, evaluation of the system of 

internal controls and audited financial statements with external auditors for the financial 

year ended 30 April 2020 before recommending the same to the Board of Directors for 

its approval; 

e) Discussed and obtained feedback from external auditors without presence of Executive 

Directors and management; 

f) Assessed the suitability and competency of the outsourced internal audit function and 

made recommendations to the Board of Directors for the continuance of internal audit 

function; 

g) Reviewed and discussed the internal audit function, the internal audit plan, scope of 

works and audit follow up report; 

h) Reviewed and deliberate the internal audit findings and internal control 

recommendations, and management response. 

i) Ensured that the transactions entered into by the Company and the Group are of arm’s 

length transaction, observe the Group’s standard operating procedure, to conform to 

requirements of Bursa Securities, Securities Commission and other regulatory bodies; 

and 

j) Reviewed and ensured the Group adopts and adhere to the Malaysian Financial Reporting 

Standards.  
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4. INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION  

 

The internal audit function is independent of the activities or operations it audits. The principal 

role of the internal audit function is to undertake regular and systematic reviews of the systems 

of internal control in order to provide reasonable assurance that such systems continue to 

operate satisfactorily and effectively. It is ultimately the responsibility of the internal audit 

function to provide the Audit Committee with independent and objective reports on the state 

of internal controls of the various operating units within the Group and the extent of 

compliance of the units with the Group’s established policies and procedures as well as 

relevant statutory requirements. 

 

During the financial year under review, the Group outsourced its internal audit function to an 

independent professional firm, Messrs NeedsBridge Advisory Sdn Bhd, to undertake the 

internal audit functions to facilitate the Audit Committee to discharge their duties. The internal 

audit function is led by Mr. Pang Nam Ming, a Certified Internal Auditor accredited by the 

Institute of Internal Auditors Global and a professional member of the Institute of Internal 

Auditors Malaysia. The internal audit function is governed by the engagement letter which 

states the purpose and scope of works, accountability, independence, the internal audit 

function’s responsibilities and the authority accorded to the internal audit function. Internal 

audits are carried out by the professional firm in accordance with the International Professional 

Practices Framework established by the Institute of Internal Auditors Global. 

 

The Audit Committee ensures the adequacy of the internal audit scope. The Audit Committee 

is to review the proposed internal audit plan on its adequacy of coverage and scope in relation 

to the key business risk exposure and risk appetite of the Group prior to its approval for 

execution. The approved internal audit plan was duly executed by the outsourced internal audit 

function with any subsequent changes to the plan reviewed and approved by the Audit 

Committee. The internal audit function tabled the results of its review to the Audit Committee 

during Audit Committee meetings, highlighting its findings, recommendations, areas of 

improvement opportunities, management response and action plans.  

 

In addition, the internal audit function also carries out the follow up reviews to ascertain the 

status of implementation of agreed management action plans. The results of the follow up 

reviews were reported to the Audit Committee for their review and deliberation. 

 

The Audit Committee ensured the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal audit function, 

including their competency and resources allocated to the internal audit function through the 

review of the resources in term of qualification and experience/exposure and continuous 

professional development for the employees of the outsourced internal audit function which 

were tabled by the internal audit function at the Audit Committee meetings during the financial 

year under review. 

 

  



142 

 

Annual Report 2020  

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (CONT’D) 
 

4. INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION (cont’d) 

 

Based on the formal evaluation of internal audit function and review of the works performed 

and deliverables by the outsourced internal audit function during the financial year, the Audit 

Committee and the Board are satisfied: 

 

• the scope, functions (including independence), competency, resources, authorities granted 

to the outsourced internal audit function as well as internal audit plan and processes are 

adequate to provide the Audit Committee with reasonable assurance that governance, risk 

and control structures and processes of the Group are adequate and effective; 

• with the internal audit plan, processes and the results of the internal audit and/or 

investigation undertaken are adequately communicated to the Audit Committee and 

appropriate actions are taken on the recommendations of the outsourced internal audit 

function; and    

• the internal audit function had undertaken continuous professional development in order 

to equip themselves with the relevant knowledge and skills to discharge their 

responsibilities. 

 

The Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control which provides an overview of the 

state of internal controls within the Group is set out on pages 143 to 152 of this Annual Report. 

 

The total cost incurred for the internal audit service for the financial year ended 30 April 2020 

was RM30,000.00 (2019 : RM30,000.00). 

 

A summary of the work of the internal audit function is disclosed on pages 149 to 151 of this 

Annual Report 2020.  
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL 

CONTROL 
 

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of SCGM Bhd (“the Company”) (collectively with its 

subsidiary, “the Group”) is pleased to provide the following Statement on Risk Management and 

Internal Control on the state of the risk management and internal controls of the Group for the 

financial year under review and up to the date of approval of this statement, which is made pursuant 

to paragraph 15.26(b) and Practice Note 9 of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Main Market 

Listing Requirements, the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance and guided by the Statement 

on Risk Management and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers (“Guidelines”). 

The scope of this Statement includes the Company and its operating subsidiary. 

 

RESPONSIBILITY    

 

The Board recognises the importance of a sound system of internal control and effective risk 

management practices to good corporate governance. During the financial year, the Board continues 

to enhance the system of internal control and risk management to safeguard shareholders’ 

investments and the assets of the Group. 

 

The Board affirms its overall responsibility for maintaining sound systems of internal control within 

the Group covering strategic management, financial control, operational control, compliance control 

and risk management, and reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of such systems within the 

Group regularly. The Board, in the discharge of its stewardship responsibilities, is committed to 

establish risk appetite of the Group and to identify key risks in which companies within the Group 

are exposed and will introduce appropriate systems progressively to manage such risks. 

 

The Board delegates the duty of identification, assessment and management of key business risks to 

the Risk Management Committee (“RMC”), led by Managing Director. The Board delegates its 

review role to the Audit Committee, through terms of reference approved by the Board, in order to 

provide assurance to the Board on the adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk and control 

structures and processes of the Group. 

 

Notwithstanding that, there are, however, limitations inherent in any system of internal control, and 

such system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk that may impede the achievement 

of business objectives. The system of risk management and internal control can only provide 

reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement of management or financial 

information or financial losses or frauds.  

 

The internal audit adopts a risk-based approach in developing its audit plan which addresses the core 

auditable areas of the Group. Scheduled internal audits shall be carried out by the internal audit 

function based on the audit plan presented to and approved by the Audit Committee to provide 

independent and objective reports on the state of internal control of the operating units.  The audit 

focuses on areas with higher risk as well as areas identified with inadequate controls to ensure the 

effectiveness of the controls in mitigating those risks. The internal audit function will follow up with 

the management in the implementation of action plans recommended to improve areas where control 

deficiencies identified during the internal audits. 

 

The Board affirms that it is ultimately responsible for the adequacy and integrity of the Group’s 

systems of risk management and internal control, which includes the establishment of an appropriate 

control environment and reporting framework.  
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CONTROL (CONT’D) 
 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM 

 

a) Control Environment 

 

The control environment sets the tones for the Group by providing fundamental discipline and 

structure. Key elements of control environment of the Group include:  

 

• Integrity and ethical values 

 

The Board and Senior Management set the tone at the top corporate behaviour and corporate 

governance. The tone from the top on integrity and ethical value are enshrined in formal 

Code of Ethics and Conduct established and approved by the Board. This formal code forms 

the foundation of integrity and ethical value for the Group. All employees of the Group shall 

adhere to the policies and guidelines which set out the principles to guide employees in 

carrying out their duties and responsibilities when dealing with external parties.  

 

Integrity and ethical value expected from the employees are incorporated in the Employee 

Handbook whereby the ethical behaviours expected with the customers, suppliers, 

employees, society and environment are stated. Codes of conduct expected from employees 

to carry out their duties and responsibilities assigned are also established and formalised in 

Employee Handbook.   

 

• Board of Directors and Board Committees 

 

The role, functions, composition, operation and processes of the Board are guided by formal 

Board Charter whereby roles and responsibilities of the Board, the Executive Chairman and 

the Managing Director are specified to preserve the independence of the Board from the 

Management. Clear roles of the Board are stated under the Corporate Governance Overview 

Statement section of this Annual Report.  

 

Board Committees (i.e. Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nominating 

Committee) are established to carry out duties and responsibilities delegated by the Board, 

governed by written terms of reference.  

 

Meetings of Board of Directors and respective Board Committees are carried out on 

scheduled basis to review the performance of the Group, from financial and operational 

perspective. Business plans and business strategies are proposed by the Managing Director 

for the Board’s review and approval, after taking into risk consideration and responses. 
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CONTROL (CONT’D) 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM (cont’d) 
 
a)  Control Environment (cont’d) 
 

• Organisation Structure, Accountability and Authorisation Procedures 
 
An organisational structure with defined line of responsibilities, proper segregation of duties 
and delegation of authority limits are in place.  
 
A process of hierarchical reporting has been established, which provides for a documented 
and auditable trail of accountability. The procedures include the establishment of relevant 
limits of authority across the Group’s operations and provide for continuous assurance at 
increasingly higher levels of management, and finally to the Board.  
 
Management is committed to employ suitable qualified staff to ensure operation efficiency 
and appropriate level of authorities and responsibilities are delegated while accountability of 
performance and controls are assigned accordingly to competent staffs.  
 
Operation meetings are formal platforms for Management to set its tone on control culture 
and emphasise on Group’s strategic directions as agreed upon by the Board. 
 

• Budgetary Control 
 
Budgets are prepared to evaluate the feasibility and viability of the Group’s business and to 
ensure that the Group’s business plan is in line. The actual performances are closely 
monitored against budgets to identify significant variances for prompt actions to be taken. 
 

• Food Safety, Policy and Procedure 
 

The Group has documented policies and procedures that are periodically reviewed and 
updated to ensure its relevance to regulate key operations in compliance with its International 
Organisation for Standardisation (“ISO”) Quality Standards, Food Safety System 
Certification, SIRIM Eco-Label Licence as well as internal control requirements. 
 

• Human Resource Policy 
 
Guidelines on the human resource management are in place to ensure the Group’s ability to 
operate in an effective and efficient manner by employing and retaining adequate competent 
employees possessing necessary knowledge, skill and experience in order to carry out their 
duties and responsibilities assigned effectively and efficiently. 
 
Performance evaluations are carried out for all levels of staff to identify performance gaps, 
for training needs identification and talent development. 
 

• Training and Development 
 
Trainings are conducted at all levels of employees so that all employees will be able to 
perform well in their present jobs and also to develop employees who have potential to 
perform duties with wider responsibilities. Management ensure that employees receive 
continuous training in various areas of work such as knowledge, compliances of rules and 
regulations, health and safety, technical training, leadership and new product development. 
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL 
CONTROL (CONT’D) 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM (cont’d) 
 
a)   Control Environment (cont’d) 

 

• Information and Communication  
 
Management promotes good working relationship at all levels of employees by ensuring 
information and communication channels are open and sinuous. Relevant information is 
shared both downwards (from Management to employees) and upwards (from employees to 
Management) for proper attention and further action. The Group has in place effective and 
efficient information and communication infrastructures and channels, i.e. computerized 
enterprise resources planning systems, secured electronic mail system and modern 
telecommunication, so that operation data and management information can be 
communicated timely and securely to dedicated personnel within the Group for decision 
making and for communication with relevant external stakeholders for execution and 
information collection. 

 
Regular management meetings are conducted by all heads of departments to discuss and 
resolve issues or challenges faced with regard to operational and administrative matters. The 
proceedings of these meetings are minuted for further action and reference.  

 
The Board recognises the needs of communication across the Group and investors. Going 
forward, more dialogues with investors and analysts as well as with the media will be held. 
Investor relations activities are held at least on a quarterly basis. 
 

• Monitoring and Review 
 
The “hands on” management style by the Executive Directors contributed to timely 
identification and rectification of risks and issues arising from business operations and other 
related issues.  
 
At operational level, key performance indicators are formulated to monitor the performance 
of key divisions/departments against targets established for prompt management action to be 
taken for unsatisfactory operational performance. Management maintains close monitoring 
of the Group’s operations through submission of monthly reports and constant 
communication or regular meetings with the heads of departments. Management also 
constantly monitors the highlighted issues through the conduct of follow-up audits which 
show its commitment to improve on current processes and internal controls. During the 
financial year, the Board and Audit Committee have diligently continued in its oversight role 
of internal controls and monitors performances of the Group’s quarterly financial results. 

 
Internal audit function acts as an ongoing monitoring process, which provides a degree of 
assurance as to validity of the system of internal control. Planned corrective actions are 
independently monitored for timely completion. 

 
The monitoring of compliance with relevant laws and regulations are further enhanced by 
review of specific areas of safety, health and environment by independent consultants 
engaged by the Group. Periodic and annual audit reviews by internal and external quality 
auditors were conducted to ensure compliance with and continuous improvement of the ISO 
Quality Standards certification as assurance to the quality standards of products and services 
provided by the Group. 
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CONTROL (CONT’D) 
 

b) Risk Management 

 

The Board and RMC are aware of its overall responsibility in managing the Group’s Risk 

Management Policy and recognises the need for an effective risk management practice and to 

maintain a sound system of internal control as all areas of the business activities of the Group 

involve certain risks. The Board had put in place a structured Risk Management Policy, as the 

governance structure and processes for the risk management on enterprise wide, in order to 

embed the risk management practice into all level of the Group and to manage key business 

risks faced by the Group as well as to optimize key business opportunities available to the Group 

adequately and effectively as second-line-of-defence.  

 

The Board recognise that risk management can become a strategic competitive advantage if it 

is used to identify specific actions that enhance performance and optimise opportunity. It can 

also influence business strategy by identifying potential adjustments related to previously 

unidentified opportunities and risks. As much as risks give rise to the need for controls, the 

Board consciously look out for opportunities for improvement arising from risks and 

uncertainties. Risk management has been adopted also as a strategic tool in strategy formulation, 

investment and resource allocation. 

 

The objectives of the Risk Management Policy are: 

• To systemise a continuous process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant 

risks faced by the Group; 

• To provide a platform for communication, of risk and control profiles and the management 

action plans to manage the risks, between Senior Management and the Board; 

• To nominate key management personnel to prepare action plans to address any risk and 

control issues; 

• To inculcate an organisation-wide culture of risk awareness and management and embed 

internal controls and risk management further into the operations of the Group’s business; 

and  

• To establish a documented process of control monitoring and improvement plans. 

 

The Board has assigned the Group’s risk management function to RMC, which comprises of 

Senior Management and Head of Departments of the Group. RMC is primarily responsible to 

identify, evaluate, and manage significant risks faced by the Group as well as report to the Board 

on a regular basis.   
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CONTROL (CONT’D) 
 

b)   Risk Management (cont’d) 

 

The following depicts the key parties and their principal risk management roles and 

responsibilities: 

  

a. The Board 

 

• Maintains a sound system of risk management and internal control;  

• Evaluate the adequacy of the system of risk management and internal control; and 

• Approve risk management policy and governance structure. 

 

b. RMC 

 

• Discuss and meet regularly to identify and manage risks to a manageable level;  

• Identify and evaluate the significant risks faced by the Group;  

• Assist the Board in implementing the objectives outlined in the risk management policy;  

• Establish, formulate, recommend and manage sound and best practice risk management 

programs for the Group;  

• Continuously monitor and execute appropriate actions to address any change in existing 

risks or new risks identified as part of an on-going proactive control measure;  

• Report to the Board on any major changes to the identified risk requiring immediate 

attention/ notification 

• Inculcates risk awareness within the Group. 

 

c. Head of Departments 

 

• Primarily responsible for managing risk on a day-to-day basis; and 

• Promote risk awareness within their operations and introduce risk management 

objectives into the business and operations. 

 

The principles, practices and process of Risk Management Policy established by the Board are, in 

material aspects, guided by ISO 31000:2018 – Risk Management Guidelines.  

 

The risk identification process is done on an ongoing-basis and entails all key factors within the 

Group’s business operations.  

 

Identifying, evaluating and managing any significant risks faced by the Group is undertaken by 

various parties, such as, RMC, Heads of Department as risk owners, internal audit function, External 

Auditors and Audit Committee, which assesses and analyses any findings of the internal audit 

function and External Auditors and reports to the Board.  

 

At operational level, the Board’s function within the Risk Management Policy is exercised and 

managed primarily by Executive Directors through their participation in the operations and regular 

meetings with managerial levels to ensure the efficiency of the system of internal control and risk 

management. The process of identifying and evaluating the significant risks affecting the business 

is carried out by all Heads of Departments on a continuous basis, and the controls and procedures 

by which these risks are managed accordingly. 
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b) Risk Management (cont’d) 

 

At the strategic level, business plans, business strategies and investment proposals with risks 

consideration are formulated by the Executive Directors and presented to the Board for review and 

deliberation to ensure that the proposed plans and strategies are in line with the Group’s risk appetite. 

In addition, specific strategic and key operational risks are highlighted and deliberated by the Audit 

Committee and the Board during the review of the financial performance of the Group in the 

scheduled meetings. 

 

The Group’s financial risk management policy seeks to ensure that adequate resources are available 

to mitigate risks including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The 

Board assumes overall responsibility for the Group’s Risk Management Policy and formulates 

policies and procedures for the management of these risks. 

 

During the financial year under review, the Board has identified, evaluated and managed the 

significant risks faced by the Group through monitoring of the Group’s operational efficiency and 

performance at its Board Meeting. The Board has assigned to the Audit Committee the duty of 

reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management processes. At operation 

levels, risks were discussed on needs basis during the periodic management operations meetings. 

 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION 

 

The Board recognises the need for an internal audit function, and has engaged the services of an 

independent professional firm, Messrs Needsbridge Advisory Sdn Bhd (“NASB”) to review the 

efficiency and effectiveness as well as the adequacy and integrity of the Group’s internal control and 

risk management processes implemented by the management to manage key business risks and 

internal control system.  

 

The internal audit function is reporting to the Audit Committee directly and the engagement director, 

Mr. Pang Nam Ming, is a Certified Internal Auditor accredited by the Institute of Internal Auditors 

Global and is accorded with Certification in Risk Management Assurance by the same professional 

body. He is also a professional member of the Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia. The internal 

audits are carried out, in material aspects, in accordance with the International Professional Practices 

Framework established by the Institute of Internal Auditors Global. The internal audit function is 

manned by one (1) engagement director, three (3) senior managers/managers and eight (8) senior 

consultants/consultants/associate consultants as at the date of this statement. 

 

The audit engagement of the internal audit function is governed by the engagement letter with key 

terms include purpose and scope of works, accountability, independence, the internal audit 

function’s responsibilities, the management’s responsibilities, the authority accorded to the internal 

audit function, limitation of scope of works, confidentiality, proposed fees and engagement team. 

The appointment and resignation of the internal audit function as well as the proposed audit fees are 

subject to review and approval by the Audit Committee for its reporting to the Board for ultimate 

approval. 
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CONTROL (CONT’D) 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION (cont’d) 

 

In addition, the oversight of the internal audit functions by the Audit Committee is enhanced by the 

review by the Audit Committee of resources of the outsourced internal audit function in term of 

qualification and experience/exposure and continuous professional development of the employees 

of the internal audit function tabled by the internal audit function during the financial year under 

review. To preserve the independence and objectivity, the internal audit function is not permitted to 

act on behalf of Management, decide and implement management action plan, perform on-going 

internal control monitoring activities (except for follow up on progress of action plan 

implementation), authorize and execute transactions, prepare source documents on transactions, 

have custody of assets or act in any capacity equivalent to a member of the Management or the 

employee.  

 

The internal audit function is accorded unrestricted access to all functions, records, property, 

personnel, Audit Committee and other specialized services from within or outside the Group and 

necessary assistance of personnel in units of the Group where they perform audits.  

 

Risk-based internal audit plan in respect of financial year ended 30 April 2020 was drafted by the 

internal audit function, after taking into consideration existing and emergent key business risks 

identified in the key risk profile of the Group, the management’s assessment of business processes 

and risks and previous internal audits performed, and was reviewed and approved by the Audit 

Committee prior to execution. The internal audit plan, which reflects the risk profile of the Group’s 

major business sectors is routinely reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee if amendment 

to the internal audit plan is required. Each internal audit cycles within the internal audit plan are 

specific with regard to audit objective, key risks to be assessed and scopes of the internal audit. 

 

The internal audit function provides the Audit Committee with an independent assessment of the 

effectiveness, efficiency and adequacy of the internal control systems of the Group. This is achieved 

by reviewing and reporting on any material deviations and non-compliances of policies and control 

procedures implemented by the Management and the Board based on the approved internal audit 

plan. During financial year ended 30 April 2020, in accordance to the internal audit plan approved 

by the Audit Committee, the internal audit function conducted review of production management,  

procurement management and user access management for its key operating subsidiary in Malaysia. 

 

As third-line-of-defence, the internal control review procedures performed by the internal audit 

function are designed to understand, document and evaluate risks and related controls to determine 

the adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk and control structures and processes and to 

formulate recommendations for improvement thereon. The internal audit procedures applied 

principally consisted of process evaluations through interviews with relevant personnel involved in 

the process under review, review of the Standard Operating Procedures and/or process flows 

provided and observations of the functioning of processes in compliance with results of interviews 

and/or documented Standard Operating Procedures and/or process flows. Thereafter, walk-through 

tests for the respective audit areas through the review of the samples selected based on sample size 

calculated through the use of predetermined formulation, subject to the nature of testing and 

verification of the samples. 
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INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION (cont’d) 

 

Upon completion of the internal audit review based on detailed audit program, the internal audit 

report is presented to Audit Committee for review and consideration. The internal audit report 

includes the audit findings and internal auditors’ recommendations as well as management responses 

and action plans for improvement and to resolve any issue arises. In assessing the adequacy and 

effectiveness of the system of internal controls and risk management processes of the Group, the 

Audit Committee reports to the Board on its activities, significant audit results or findings and the 

necessary recommendations or actions needed to be taken by management to rectify those issues. 

Update on the status of action plans as identified in the previous internal audit reports are presented 

at subsequent Audit Committee meeting for review and deliberation. 

 

The cost incurred in maintaining the internal audit function for the financial year ended 30 April 

2020 amounted to RM30,000.00.  

 

During the financial year under review, the Audit Committee met once with the internal audit 

function without the presence of the Executive Directors and Management where they are given the 

opportunity to raise any concern or professional opinion and thus, to be able to exert its functions 

independently. 

 

Based on the review of the works performed and deliverables by the internal audit function during 

the financial year, the Audit Committee and the Board are satisfied: 

 

• that the internal audit function is free from any relationships or conflicts of interest which could 

impair their objectivity and independence; 

• with the scope of the internal audit function;  

• that the internal audit function possesses relevant experience, knowledge, competency and 

authority to discharge its functions effectively, possesses sufficient resources and has unrestricted 

access to employees and information for the internal audit activities; and 

• with the internal audit plan, processes, the results of the internal audit plan, processes or 

investigation undertaken, if any. 

 

ASSURANCE PROVIDED BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR AND GROUP FINANCIAL 

CONTROLLER 

 

In accordance with the Guidelines, the Managing Director, being the highest-ranking executive in 

the Company and the Group Financial Controller being the person primarily responsible for the 

management of the financial affairs of the Company have provided assurance to the Board that the 

Group’s risk management and internal control system operated adequately and effectively, in all 

material aspects, to meet the Group’s objectives during the financial year under review. 
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OPINION AND CONCLUSION 

 

Based on the review of the risk management results and process, results of the internal audit 

activities, monitoring and review mechanism stipulated above coupled with the assurance provided 

by the Managing Director and the Group Financial Controller, the Board is of the opinion that the 

systems of risk management and internal controls is operating adequately and effectively, in all 

material aspects and have not resulted in material losses, contingencies or uncertainties that would 

require separate disclosure in the annual report during the year under review and up to the date of 

approval of this statement for inclusion in the annual report. The monitoring, review and reporting 

arrangements are in place to give reasonable assurance that the structure and operation of controls 

are appropriate for the Group. The Board is of the view that the process of risk management and 

internal control system is sound and sufficient to safeguard the interest of shareholders and the 

Group’s assets.  

 

REVIEW OF THE STATEMENT BY THE EXTERNAL AUDITORS 

 

As required by paragraph 15.23 of the Main Market Listing Requirement of Bursa Malaysia 

Securities Berhad, the external auditors have reviewed this Statement on Risk Management and 

Internal Control for inclusion in the Annual Report of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2020. 

The limited assurance review was performed in accordance with Malaysian Approved Standard on 

Assurance Engagements, ISAE 3000, Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Review of 

Historical Financial Information and Audit and Assurance Practice Guide (“AAPG”) 3, Guidance 

for Auditors on Engagements to Report on the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control 

included in the Annual Report. 

 

Based on their procedures performed, the external auditors have reported to the Board that nothing 

has come to their attention which causes them to believe that this Statement is not prepared, in all 

material respects, in accordance with the disclosures required by paragraph 41 and 42 of the 

Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers, nor 

is factually inaccurate. 

 

This statement has been approved by the Board of SCGM Bhd on 18 August 2020.  
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS 

AS AT 30 JULY 2020 
 
Total Number of Issued Shares 193,599,641 

Class of Shares Ordinary shares  

Voting Right One vote per Ordinary share 

 

ANALYSIS BY SIZE OF HOLDING 

 No. of  No. of 

 Shareholders Shares Held        % 

Less than 100 shares  114 4,463 0.00 

100 to 1,000 shares 1,763 1,218,561 0.63 

1,001 to 10,000 shares 3,802 16,738,296 8.65 

10,001 to 100,000 shares 1,024 29,418,105 15.20 

100,001 to less than 5% of Issued Shares 132 66,104,496 34.14 

5% and above of Issued Shares 5 80,115,720 41.38 

Total 6,840  193,599,641  100.00 

 

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 30 JULY 2020 

 

 

No. 

 

Name 

Direct Indirect 

No. of Shares 

Held 

Percentage 

(%)# 

No. of Shares 

Held 

Percentage 

(%)# 

1. Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Seng 17,785,748 9.24 30,615,333* 15.90 

2. Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Chai 12,821,238 6.66 30,615,333* 15.90 

3. Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Guan 12,821,244 6.66 30,615,333* 15.90 

4. Lee Hock Meng 11,857,905 6.16 30,615,333* 15.90 

 
* deemed interested by virtue of his shareholding in SCGM Lee Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016 (“Act”). 
  

# percentage computed based on 192,561,041 shares (excluding 1,038,600 shares bought back and retained as treasury shares from 

the total number of issued shares of 193,599,641 as at 30 July 2020) 

 
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 30 JULY 2020 

 

 

No. 

 

Name 

Direct Indirect 

No. of Shares 

Held 

Percentage 

(%)# 

No. of Shares 

Held 

Percentage 

(%)# 

1. SCGM Lee Sdn Bhd 30,615,333 15.90 - - 

2. Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Seng 17,785,748 9.24 30,615,333* 15.90 

3. Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Chai 12,821,238 6.66 30,615,333* 15.90 

4. Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Guan 12,821,244 6.66 30,615,333* 15.90 

5. Lee Hock Meng 11,857,905 6.16 30,615,333* 15.90 

 
* deemed interested by virtue of his shareholding in SCGM Lee Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 8 of the Act. 

  

# percentage computed based on 192,561,041 shares (excluding 1,038,600 shares bought back and retained as treasury shares from 

the total number of issued shares of 193,599,641 as at 30 July 2020) 
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS (CONT’D) 
 

THIRTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 30 JULY 2020 

 
NO. NAME OF SHAREHOLDERS NO OF SHARES 

HELD 
PERCENTAGE 

(%)# 

 

1. SCGM LEE SDN BHD 
 

30,615,333 
 

15.90 
 

2. DATO’ SRI LEE HOCK GUAN  
 

12,821,244 6.66 

3. DATO’ SRI LEE HOCK CHAI  
 

12,821,238 6.66 

4. DATO’ SRI LEE HOCK SENG  
 

12,000,000 6.23 

5. LEE HOCK MENG 
 

11,857,905 6.16 

6. KUMPULAN WANG PERSARAAN  
(DIPERBADANKAN) 
 

7,915,366 4.11 

7. DATO’ SRI LEE HOCK SENG  
 

5,785,748 3.00 

8. AMANAHRAYA TRUSTEES BERHAD 
- PMB SHARIAH GROWTH FUND 
 

3,450,000 1.79 

9. CHAI SIEW MOOI 
 

3,275,700 1.70 

10. CHEN JIA YI 
 

3,248,966 1.69 

11. AMANAHRAYA TRUSTEES BERHAD 
- PUBLIC ISLAMIC OPPORTUNITIES FUND 
 

2,130,900 1.11 

12. CITIGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN 
BHD-EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND BOARD 
(PHEIM) 
 

1,723,700 0.90 

13. CARTABAN NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD 
- EXEMPT AN FOR BARCLAYS CAPITAL 
SECURITIES LTD (SBL/PB) 
 

1,580,700 0.82 

14. AMANAHRAYA TRUSTEES BERHAD 
- PB ISLAMIC SMALLCAP FUND 
 

1,447,600 0.75 

15. HSBC NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD 
- J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES PLC 
 

1,373,000 0.71 

16. MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN 
BHD-ETIQA FAMILY TAKAFUL BERHAD 
(DANA EKUITI) 
 

1,000,000 0.52 

 

# percentage computed based on 192,561,041 shares (excluding 1,038,600 shares bought back and retained as treasury shares from 

the total number of issued shares of 193,599,641 as at 30 July 2020) 
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS (CONT’D) 
 
THIRTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 30 JULY 2020 (cont’d) 

 
NO. NAME OF SHAREHOLDERS   NO OF SHARES   

HELD 
PERCENTAGE 

(%)# 

 

17. MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN 
BHD-ETIQA LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD 
(PREM EQUITY) 
 

976,400                 0.51 

18. RHB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
- PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR BEH 
AH BAB 
 

900,000 0.47 

19. ALLIANCEGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) 
SDN BHD-PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT 
FOR GOH KONG WANG 
  

899,100 0.47 

20. AMANAHRAYA TRUSTEES BERHAD 
- PUBLIC EMERGING OPPORTUNITIES FUND 
 

685,000 0.36 

21. MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN 
BHD-PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR 
TEO PUI MENG 
 

666,600 0.35 

22. ALLIANCEGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) 
SDN BHD-PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT 
FOR NG GIM MENG  
 

664,500 0.35 

23. LOH HON ANN 
 

630,266 0.33 

24. CHEAW YIT MING 
 

619,000 0.32 

25. TOKIO MARINE LIFE INSURANCE 
MALAYSIA BHD 
 

600,200 0.31 

26. CIMB GROUP NOMINEES (ASING) SDN. 
BHD.-EXEMPT AN FOR DBS BANK LTD  
 

593,366 0.31 

27. AMANAHRAYA TRUSTEES BERHAD 
- PUBLIC ISLAMIC ASEAN GROWTH FUND 
 

579,000 0.30 

28. MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN 
BHD-ETIQA LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD  
 

572,900 0.30 

29. ALLIANCEGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) 
SDN BHD-PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT 
FOR TEO PUI MENG  
 

555,500 0.29 

30. WONG KIM LENG 
 

554,000 0.29 

 
# percentage computed based on 192,561,041 shares (excluding 1,038,600 shares bought back and retained as treasury shares from 

the total number of issued shares of 193,599,641 as at 30 July 2020) 



156 

 

Annual Report 2020  

NOTICE OF THIRTEENTH 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 

 
[Company No.: 200701021012 (779028-H)] 

 

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

  

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Thirteenth Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company 

will be held at PTD 109444, Jalan Sengkang, Kawasan Perusahaan Sri Sengkang, 81000 Kulai, Johor on 

Monday, 28 September 2020 at 2.00 pm for the purpose of transacting the following businesses: - 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. To receive the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended 30 April 2020 together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon. 
 

 

2. To approve the payment of a Final Single Tier Dividend of 0.35 sen per ordinary 
share in respect of the financial year ended 30 April 2020. 

Ordinary 
Resolution 1 

 

3. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees and benefits up to RM63,000 from this 
AGM until the next AGM of the Company. 
 

Ordinary 
Resolution 2 

4. To re-elect the following Directors retiring pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s 
Constitution and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election: - 
 

 

 (i) Mr. Lee Hock Meng   
 

Ordinary 
Resolution 3 

 (ii) Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Guan Ordinary 
Resolution 4 

   

5. To re-appoint Messrs Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT as Auditors of the Company to 
hold office until the conclusion of the next AGM and to authorise the Directors to 
fix their remuneration. 
 
 
AS SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 
To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following 
Resolutions: - 

Ordinary 
Resolution 5 

  
6. AUTHORITY TO ISSUE SHARES  
   
 “THAT pursuant to Section 75 and 76 of the Companies Act 2016 (“Act”) and 

subject to the approvals from the relevant governmental and/or regulatory 
authorities, the Directors be and are hereby empowered to issue shares in the 
Company from time to time and upon such terms and conditions and for such 
purposes as the Directors may in their absolute discretion deem fit, provided that the 
aggregate number of shares issued pursuant to this resolution does not exceed twenty 
(20) per cent of the total number of issued shares of the Company at the time of 
submission to the authority AND THAT the Directors be and are also hereby 
empowered to obtain the approval from the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 
(“Bursa Securities”) for the listing of and quotation for the additional shares so 
issued AND THAT such authority shall continue in force until the conclusion of the 
next AGM of the Company.” 

Ordinary 
Resolution 6 
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NOTICE OF THIRTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

(CONT’D) 
 

7. PROPOSED RENEWAL OF SHARE BUY-BACK AUTHORITY 

 

 

 “THAT subject to compliance with all applicable rules, regulations and orders made 
pursuant to the Act, provisions in the Company’s Constitution, the Listing 
Requirements of Bursa Securities and any other relevant authorities, the Company 
be and is hereby authorised to purchase such number of ordinary shares of the 
Company (“Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back”) as may be determined by the 
Directors of the Company from time to time through Bursa Securities upon such 
terms and conditions as the Directors may deem fit and expedient in the interest of 
the Company PROVIDED THAT:- 
 
(i) the aggregate number of shares purchased or held does not exceed ten per 

centum (10%) of the total number of issued shares of the Company as quoted 
on Bursa Securities as at the point of purchase; 

 
(ii) the maximum fund to be allocated by the Company for the purpose of 

purchasing such number of ordinary shares shall not exceed the 
unappropriated profit of the Company. As at the latest financial year ended 30 
April 2020, the audited unappropriated profit of the Company stood at 
RM4,698,189; 

 
(iii) the authority conferred by this resolution will commence immediately upon 

passing of this resolution and will continue to be in force until:- 
 

(a) at the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company following the 
general meeting in which the authorisation is obtained, at which time it 
shall lapse unless by ordinary resolution passed at that meeting, the 
authority is renewed either unconditionally or subject to conditions; or 

 
(b) the expiration of the period within which the next AGM of the 

Company is required by law to be held; or 
 

(c) revoked or varied by ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of 
the Company in a general meeting,  

 
whichever occurs first; 
 
AND THAT upon completion of the purchase(s) of the ordinary shares of the 
Company, the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to deal with 
the ordinary shares so purchased in the following manners:- 
 
(a) to cancel the ordinary shares so purchased; or 
 
(b) to retain the ordinary shares so purchased as treasury shares for distribution as 

dividend to shareholders and/or resell on Bursa Securities or subsequently 
cancelled; or 

 
(c) to retain part of the ordinary shares so purchased as treasury shares and cancel 

the remainder; or 
 
(d) in any other manner prescribed by the Act, rules, regulations and orders made 

to the Act, the Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities and any other relevant 
authorities for the time being in force.  

Ordinary 
Resolution 7 
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NOTICE OF THIRTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
(CONT’D) 
 

 AND THAT the Board of the Company be and are hereby authorised to take all 

such steps as are necessary or expedient to implement, finalise or to effect the 

aforesaid share buy-back with full powers to assent to any conditions, 

modifications, variations, and/or amendments as may be required or imposed by 

the relevant authorities and to do all such acts and things (including executing all 

documents) as the Board may deem fit and expedient in the best interest of the 

Company.” 

 

 

8.   

 

To transact any other business which may properly be transacted at an AGM for 

which due Notice shall have been given. 

 

 

 

By Order of the Board  

 

 

Lim Seck Wah (MAICSA 0799845) 

M. Chandrasegaran A/L S. Murugasu (MAICSA 0781031) 

Ng Chye Huat (MIA No.14186) 

Company Secretaries 

Kuala Lumpur 

 

28 August 2020 

 
Notes:-    

 

1. For the purpose of determining a member who shall be entitled to attend, speak and vote at the Thirteenth AGM, the 

Company shall be requesting the Record of Depositors as at 23 September 2020. Only a depositor whose name appears 
on the Record of Depositors as at 23 September 2020 shall be entitled to attend the said meeting or appoint proxies to 

attend, speak and vote on his/her behalf.  
 

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a maximum of two proxies to attend and vote 

in his/her stead, and that a proxy need not be a member of the Company. 
 

3. The appointment of two (2) proxies shall be invalid unless the proportion of the shareholding to be represented by each 
proxy is specified. 

 

4. If the appointer is a corporation, either under seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised. 
 

5. Where a member of the Company is an authorized nominee as defined in accordance with the Securities Industry (Central 

Depositories) Act, 1991, it may appoint at least one proxy but not more than two proxies for each securities account which 
it holds and the shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said securities account. 

 
6. Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for 

multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies 

which the exempt authorized nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.  
 

7. The Form of Proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at Level 15-2, Bangunan Faber Imperial 

Court, Jalan Sultan Ismail, 50250 Kuala Lumpur not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or any 
adjournment thereof. 
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NOTICE OF THIRTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

(CONT’D) 
 
Explanatory Notes on Special Business 

 

Ordinary Resolution 6 – Authority to Issue Shares 

 

The Company wishes to renew the mandate on the authority to issue shares pursuant to Section 75 and 76 of the Act at 

the Thirteenth AGM of the Company. 

 
Bursa Securities had vide its directive letter dated 16 April 2020, allowed a listed corporations to seek higher general 

mandate under paragraph 6.03 of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities from the existing 10% to not 
more than 20% of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares) (“20% General Mandate”) until 31 

December 2021, subject to compliance with applicable legal requirements and the Company’s Constitution. 

 
 The Company continues to consider opportunities to broaden its earnings potential. If any of the expansion/diversification 

proposals involves the issue of new shares, the Directors would have to convene a general meeting to seek approval of the 

shareholders. 
 

In order to avoid any delay and costs involved in convening a general meeting to approve such issue of shares, it is thus 
considered appropriate that the Directors be empowered to issue and allot shares at any time to such persons/corporations 

in their absolute discretion for the purpose of funding future investment(s), working capital and/or acquisitions. The 

Directors are of the view that the 20% General Mandate is in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders as it 
will enable the Company to raise higher fund more speedily during this challenging period. 

 
The Company did not issue any new shares under the previous mandate granted by the shareholders at its Twelfth AGM 

held on 24 September 2019, hence, no proceeds was raised therefrom. 

 
Ordinary Resolution 7 - Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority 

 

The Company has at the Twelfth AGM on 24 September 2019, seek for shareholders’ mandate to exercise the power to 
buy-back its’ shares during the financial year. The mandate will be expired at the conclusion of the Thirteenth AGM. 

 
The Board would like to seek for shareholders’ mandate at the Thirteenth AGM. 

 

This resolution will empower the Directors of the Company to purchase the Company’s shares up to ten per centum 
(10%) of the total number of issued shares of the Company by utilising the funds allocated which shall not exceed the 

total unappropriated profit of the Company. This authority, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, will expire at 

the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company. 
 

The details on the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back are set out in the Share Buy-Back Statement dated 28 August 
2020 which is in the Company’s Annual Report 2020. 
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SHARE BUY-BACK STATEMENT IN RELATION TO THE PROPOSED RENEWAL OF 

SHAREHOLDERS’ APPROVAL FOR SHARE BUY-BACK BY THE COMPANY 

(“PROPOSED RENEWAL OF SHARE BUY-BACK’)   

 
  

1. DISCLAIMER STATEMENT 

 

If you are in any doubt as to the course of action to be taken, you should consult your 

stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other independent adviser immediately. 

 

Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) has not perused this Share Buy-Back 

Statement (“Statement”) prior to its issuance as it is an exempt statement. Bursa Securities 

takes no responsibility for the contents of this Statement, makes no representation as to its 

accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss 

howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this 

Statement.    

 

 

2. INTRODUCTION  

  

On 24 August 2020, SCGM Bhd (“SCGM” or “the Company”) announced that the Company 

proposes to seek shareholders’ approval for the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back at the 

forthcoming Thirteenth Annual General Meeting (“13th AGM”) of the Company.  

   

The purpose of this Statement is to provide you with the relevant information on the Proposed 

Renewal of Share Buy-Back and to seek your approval for the Ordinary Resolution to be 

tabled at the forthcoming 13th AGM of the Company to be held at PTD 109444, Jalan 

Sengkang, Kawasan Perusahaan Sri Sengkang, 81000 Kulai, Johor Darul Takzim on 

Monday, 28 September 2020 at 2.00 p.m..  

   
SHAREHOLDERS OF SCGM ARE ADVISED TO READ THE CONTENTS OF 

THIS STATEMENT CAREFULLY BEFORE VOTING ON THE RESOLUTION TO 

GIVE EFFECT TO THE PROPOSED RENEWAL OF SHARE BUY-BACK.  

  

3. DETAILS OF THE PROPOSED RENEWAL OF SHARE BUY-BACK  

  

3.1 At the Twelfth Annual General Meeting (“12th AGM”) of the Company held on 24 
September 2019, the Company had obtained the shareholders’ approval for the 
authority to purchase up to ten per centum (10%) of the total number of issued shares 
of the Company as quoted on Bursa Securities at any point in time and it is subject to 
Section 127 of the Companies Act 2016, the Listing Requirements and any prevailing 
laws, guidelines, rules and regulations issued by the relevant authorities at the time 
of purchase (“the Mandate”). 

 
3.2 The Board proposes to seek approval from the shareholders for renewal of the 

Mandate at the forthcoming 13th AGM of the Company. 
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SHARE BUY-BACK STATEMENT (CONT’D) 
 

3. DETAILS OF THE PROPOSED RENEWAL OF SHARE BUY-BACK (cont’d) 

  

3.3 The Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back will allow the Board to exercise the power 
of the Company to purchase its own shares not exceeding 10% of the total number of 
issued shares of the Company at any time and it would be effective immediately upon 
the passing of the Ordinary Resolution for the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back 
at the forthcoming 13th AGM and shall be valid until:-   

  
(a) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company 

following the general meeting in which the authorisation is obtained, at which 
time it shall lapse unless by ordinary resolution passed at the meeting, the 
authority is renewed either unconditionally or subject to conditions; or  

  
(b) the expiration of the period within which the next AGM of the Company is 

required by law to be held; or  

  
(c) revoked or varied by ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders in a 

general meeting;  

  

       whichever occurs first.   

  
3.4 As at 30 July 2020, being the latest practicable date, the total issued share capital of 

the Company is RM132,439,820 comprising 193,599,641 ordinary shares (“SCGM 
Shares” or “Shares”). Please refer to the illustration below:- 

 

 

  No. of Shares 

 

Existing total number of issued shares as at 30 July 2020# 193,599,641  

10% shares allowed to be purchased under the Proposed 

Share Buy-Back  

19,359,964 

 

Less : Shares purchased and held as treasury shares  (1,038,600) 

Number of shares that may be further purchased 18,321,364 

 
Note: 

#   The total number of issued shares stated above is inclusive of the 1,038,600 treasury shares held by the Company as at 30 

July 2020, none of which are cancelled. 

 
3.5 Pursuant to the provisions of Paragraph 12.17 of the Main Market Listing 

Requirements of Bursa Securities (“Listing Requirements”), the Company may only 
purchase its own Shares at a price which is not more than fifteen per centum (15%) 
above the weighted average market price of SCGM Shares for the five (5) market 
days immediately preceding the date of the purchase.   
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SHARE BUY-BACK STATEMENT (CONT’D) 
 

3. DETAILS OF THE PROPOSED RENEWAL OF SHARE BUY-BACK (cont’d) 

 

3.6 Pursuant to the provisions of Paragraph 12.18 of the Listing Requirements, the 
Company may only resell the purchased Shares held as treasury shares on the Bursa 
Securities at:-  

  
(a) a price which is not less than the weighted average market price of SCGM 

Shares for the five (5) market days immediately prior to the date of resale; or  

  
(b) a discounted price of not more than five per centum (5%) to the weighted 

average market price of SCGM Shares for the five (5) market days 
immediately prior to the resale provided that:-  

  
(i) the resale takes place not earlier than thirty (30) days from the date of 

purchase; and 

  
(ii) the resale price is not less than the cost of purchase of the shares being 

resold.   

 

  

4. TREATMENT OF SHARES PURCHASED  

 

In accordance with Section 127 of the Act, the Directors are able to deal with any SCGM 

Shares that may be purchased pursuant to the Proposed Share Buy-Back (hereinafter known 

as “Purchased SCGM Shares”) in the following manner:- 

 

(a)  to cancel the shares so purchased; or 

 

(b)  to retain the shares so purchased in treasury shares either for distribution as share 

dividends, transfer the shares for the purposes of or under an employees’ share scheme 

that has been approved by the shareholders, transfer the shares as purchase 

consideration and/or to resell on Bursa Securities; or 

 

(c)  to combine both (a) and (b). 

 

As at the date of this Statement, the Board has yet to decide on the treatment of the Shares 

so purchased and will take into consideration the effects of such treatment on the Company 

in arriving at its decision. An immediate announcement will be made to Bursa Securities 

upon each purchase, cancellation and/or resale of Shares pursuant to the Proposed Share 

Buy-Back. 

 

If such Purchased SCGM Shares were held as Treasury Shares, the rights attaching to them 

in relation to voting, dividends and participation in any other distribution or otherwise will 

be suspended. 

 

The Treasury Shares would not be taken into account in calculating the number or percentage 

of Shares or a class of Shares in the Company for any purposes including the determination 

of substantial shareholdings, take-overs, notices, the requisitioning of meetings, the quorum 

for meetings and the result of a vote on resolution(s) at meetings. 
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SHARE BUY-BACK STATEMENT (CONT’D) 
 

5. RATIONALE, POTENTIAL ADVANTAGES AND DISADVANTAGES   

  

The Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back will enable the Company to utilise any of its 

surplus financial resources to purchase its own Shares from the market.   

  
(1) Potential advantages of the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back are:-  

  
(a) The Company may be able to stabilise the supply and demand, as well as the price 

of the Shares, thereby support the fundamental value of SCGM Shares.  

  
(b) The Purchased SCGM Shares could be retained as treasury shares or resold on 

Bursa Securities at a higher price with the intention of realising potential capital 
gain for the Company without affecting the total number of issued shares of the 
Company. In the event that the treasury shares are distributed as share dividends, 
it will serve to reward the shareholders of the Company.   

  
(c) The Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back would effectively reduce the number 

of Shares carrying voting and participation rights and such, the Earnings Per 
Share (“EPS”) of the Company would be increased.  

  

If the Shares so purchased are subsequently cancelled, the Company expects to strengthen 

the EPS of the Company and benefit the shareholders of the Company. Shareholders may 

enjoy an increase in the value of their investment in the Company arising from the consequent 

increase in EPS; and  

  
(2) Potential disadvantages of the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back are:-  

  
(a) It will reduce the financial resources of the Company and its subsidiary (“SCGM 

Group” or “the Group”), and hereby may result in the Company foregoing future 
investment opportunities that may emerge in the future or deprive the Company 
of interest income that can be derived from funds utilised for the Proposed 
Renewal of Share Buy-Back; and  

 
(b) The Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back if implemented may result in a lower 

amount of cash reserves available for distribution in the form of cash dividends 
to shareholders.  

  

Nevertheless, the Board will be mindful of the interest of the Company and its shareholders 

in undertaking the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back and the subsequent resale of 

treasury shares on Bursa Securities.  
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SHARE BUY-BACK STATEMENT (CONT’D) 
 

6. FUNDING  

  
(1) Paragraph 12.10(1) of the Listing Requirements stipulates that purchase by the 

Company of its own Shares is restricted to the amount of its unappropriated profits.  

  

The unappropriated profit of the Company was RM4,698,189 based on the latest 

audited financial statements as at 30 April 2020 and RM4,730,568 based on the 

Company’s latest unaudited management account made up to 31 July 2020. The 

Board will ensure that the unappropriated profit of the Company will be sufficient to 

effect the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back.  

  
(2) The Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back will be funded from internally generated 

funds and/or external borrowings, the proportion of which will depend on the 
quantum of SCGM Shares to be purchased, the purchase consideration as well as the 
availability of funds of SCGM Group at the time of purchase(s).   

  

In the event that the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back is to be financed by 

external borrowings, the Company shall ensure that it has sufficient financial 

capability to repay the bank borrowings and that the bank borrowings will not have 

any material impact on the cash flow of SCGM Group.  

  
(3) The actual number of Shares to be purchased, the aggregate funds to be utilised, 

impact on cash flow and the timing of the purchase(s) will depend on amongst others, 
the prevailing equity market conditions, sentiments of the stock market, the available 
financial resources of the Company and other relevant cost factors at the time of the 
purchase(s).  

  

 

 

 

 

[The rest of this page is intentionally left blank] 
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7. FINANCIAL EFFECTS OF THE PROPOSED RENEWAL OF SHARE BUY-BACK  

  

Based on the assumption that the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back is carried out in full, 

the effect of the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back on the share capital, net assets per 

share, working capital, earnings and dividends are set out below:-  

  

7.1  Share Capital  

  

The Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back will not have any effect on the issued and 

paid-up share capital of the Company if all the Shares purchased are to be retained as 

treasury shares, resold or distributed to shareholders.   

  

In the event that the maximum number of shares authorised under the Proposed 

Renewal of Share Buy-Back are purchased and cancelled, the effects on the total 

number of issued shares are illustrated as follows:-  

   

   No. of 

 ordinary shares  

Total number of issued shares as at 30 July 2020#  193,599,641  

10% shares allowed to be purchased under the 

Proposed Share Buy-Back  

19,359,964 

 

Less: Treasury Shares as at 30 July 2020 (1,038,600) 

Less: Maximum number of SCGM Shares which may be 

further purchased and cancelled pursuant to the 

Proposed Share Buy-Back 

(18,321,364) 

Resultant total number of issued shares after the 

Proposed Share Buy-Back  

174,239,677 

 
Note: 

#   The total number of issued shares stated above is inclusive of the 1,038,600 treasury shares held by the Company as at 30 July 2020, 

 none of which are cancelled. 
 

If all the SCGM Shares so purchased are to be retained as treasury shares, the total 

number of issued shares of SCGM will not be reduced but the rights attached to the 

treasury shares as to voting, dividends and participation in other distributions or 

otherwise will be suspended.   

  

The said treasury shares shall not be taken into account in calculating the number or 

percentage of shares in the Company for any purpose nor for substantial 

shareholdings or takeovers, notice of general meeting and the right to requisite 

meetings, to be counted for quorum purposes and the result of a vote on a resolution 

at a general meeting.  
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7. FINANCIAL EFFECTS OF THE PROPOSED RENEWAL OF SHARE BUY-BACK 

(cont’d) 

 

7.2 Net Assets (“NA”)  

  

The effects of Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back on the consolidated NA per 

share of the Group will depend on the purchase price in comparison to the NA per 

share of the Group at the time that the purchase is made.   

  

In the event that the SCGM Shares purchased under the Proposed Renewal of Share 

Buy-Back are cancelled by the Company, the consolidated NA per share of SCGM 

would improve if the purchase price of such SCGM Shares is below the NA per share 

of the Company and vice-versa.   

  

If the treasury shares are resold in the open market, the consolidated NA per share of 

SCGM may increase if the Company realises a gain from the resale, and vice-versa. 

If the treasury shares are distributed as share dividends, the NA of SCGM Group 

would be accordingly decreased by the cost of acquisition of the treasury shares.   

  

7.3  Working Capital  

    

The Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back, if exercised, will result in an outflow of 

cash and thereby reduce the working capital of SCGM Group, the quantum of which 

is dependent on the purchase price of SCGM Shares and the number of SCGM Shares 

to be purchased and the funding cost, if any. However, the working capital and cash 

flow of the Company will increase upon reselling the Purchased SCGM Shares which 

are retained as treasury shares. Again, the quantum of the increase in the working 

capital and cash flow will depend on the actual selling price of the treasury shares 

and the number of treasury shares resold.   

  

7.4  Earnings   

  

The effect of the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back on the earnings of the SCGM 

Group will depend on the purchase price and the number of Shares purchased. If the 

Shares so purchased are treated as treasury shares, the extent of the effect on the 

earnings of the SCGM Group will depend on the actual selling price, the number of 

treasury shares resold and the effective gain or interest savings arising therefrom.   

   

7.5  Dividends  

  

The Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back is not expected to have any effect on the 

policy for the Board in recommending dividends for the year ending 30 April 2021. 

The decision to declare and pay dividends in the future would depend on, amongst 

others, the profitability and cash flow position of the Company.   
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8. SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS  
  

Based on the Records of Depositors as at 30 July 2020 and assuming that the Company 
acquires the full amount of SCGM Shares authorised under the Proposed Renewal of Share 
Buy-Back and there is no change in the number of shares held by the Directors and/or 
substantial shareholders of SCGM as at 30 July 2020 and with the assumption that the 
Company does not purchase the Directors’ and/or major shareholders’ shares, for the purpose 
of illustration only, the effect will be as follows:-  
  
 

Before the Proposed Renewal of Share 
Buy-Back Authority as at 30 July 2020 

After the Proposed Renewal of Share 
Buy-Back Authority assuming 10% of the 
share capital was bought back and 
cancelled  

Direct Interest  Deemed Interest  Direct Interest  Deemed Interest  
No. of 
Shares 

% # No. of Shares  % # No. of 
Shares 

 % * No. of Shares % * 

Name of 
Substantial 
Shareholders  

                

SCGM Lee 
Sdn Bhd  
 

30,615,333  15.90   -  -  30,615,333  17.57 -  - 

Dato' Sri Lee 
Hock Seng  
 

17,785,748  9.24  30,615,333(1)  15.90  17,785,748  10.21 
 
 

30,615,333(1)  17.57  

Dato' Sri Lee 
Hock Chai  
 

12,821,238  6.66  30,615,333(1)  15.90  12,821,238  7.36 
 
 

30,615,333(1)  17.57  

Dato' Sri Lee 
Hock Guan  
 

12,821,244  6.66  30,615,333(1)  15.90  12,821,244  7.36 
 
 

30,615,333(1)  17.57  

Lee Hock 
Meng  
 

11,857,905  6.16  30,615,333(1)  15.90  11,857,905  6.81 
 
 

30,615,333(1)  17.57  

Name of 
Directors  

                 

Dato' Sri Lee 
Hock Seng  
 

17,785,748  9.24  30,615,333(1)  15.90  17,785,748  10.21 30,615,333(1)  17.57  

Dato' Sri Lee 
Hock Chai  
 

12,821,238  6.66  30,615,333(1)  15.90  12,821,238  7.36  30,615,333(1)  17.57  

Dato' Sri Lee 
Hock Guan  
 

12,821,244  6.66  30,615,333(1)  15.90  12,821,244  7.36  30,615,333(1)  17.57  

Lee Hock 
Meng  

11,857,905 6.16  30,615,333(1)  15.90  11,857,905  6.81  30,615,333(1)  17.57  

 
 Note: 

 # Percentage computed based on the total number of outstanding shares in issue of 192,561,041 shares (excluding 1,038,600 shares  

bought back and retained as treasury shares from the total number of issued shares of 193,599,641 as at 30 July 2020)  

* Percentage computed based on the assumption that a total of 19,359,964 shares (being the maximum number of shares authorised 

to be bought back pursuant to the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back i.e. 10% of the existing total number of issued shares) 
bought back and retained as treasury shares and the resultant number of outstanding shares in issue after the full exercise of the 
Proposed Share Buy-Back of 174,239,677 shares as at 30 July 2020.  

 (1)        Deemed interested by virtue of his shareholding in SCGM Lee Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016 (“Act”).  
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9. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDINGS SPREAD  

  

As at 30 July 2020, the public shareholdings spread of the Company has 55.39% in the hand 

of 6,834 shareholders. Assuming that the Proposed Share Buy-Back is carried out in full and 

SCGM Shares so purchased were all cancelled, the public shareholdings of the Company 

would be reduced to approximately 50.70%. The Board is mindful and will endeavour to 

ensure that it will not purchase its own Shares which will result in SCGM’s public 

shareholdings spread falling below the minimum requirement of twenty five per centum 

(25%) of its total listed Shares.   

  

  
10. PURCHASE OR RESALE OR CANCELLATION OF TREASURY SHARES 

DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020  

 

During the financial year ended 30 April 2020 and up to 30 July 2020, the Company had 

purchased 200,000 ordinary shares of its issued share capital from the open market as 

follows:- 

 

Date  No. of 

Shares 

Purchased 

Purchase price per 

share (RM) 

Average 

price per 

share 

(RM) 

Total 

Consideration* 

RM 
Lowest Highest 

2.7.2019 200,000 0.835 0.855 0.85 169,584.11 

 

Note : 

* including transaction costs 

 

The Purchased SCGM Shares are held as treasury shares in accordance with the requirement 

of Section 127 of the Companies Act 2016. There was no resell or cancellation of treasury 

shares during the financial year ended 30 April 2020 and up to 30 July 2020. 

  

 
11. IMPLICATIONS RELATING TO THE MALAYSIAN CODE ON TAKE-OVER AND 

MERGERS, 2016    

  

The Malaysian Code on Take-Over and Mergers, 2016, as amended from time to time 

including any re-enactment thereof (“Code”) requires a person, together with persons acting 

in concert with him, holding more than 33% but less than 50% of the voting shares of a 

Company and who as a result of a purchase by the Company of its own shares, increase his 

holding in any period of 6 months by an additional 2% or more of the voting shares of the 

Company to undertake a mandatory offer on the balance of the shares not already owned.   

  

SCGM does not intend to undertake the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back such that it 

will trigger any obligation to undertake a mandatory offer pursuant to the Code, assuming 

the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back is implemented in full within a period of 6 months.  
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12. APPROVALS REQUIRED FOR THE PROPOSED RENEWAL OF SHARE BUY-

BACK  

  

The Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back is subject to the approval of the shareholders of 

SCGM at the forthcoming Thirteenth AGM.  

  

  

13. DIRECTORS’ AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS  

  

Save for the inadvertent increase in percentage of shareholdings and/or voting rights of 

shareholders of the Company as a result of the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back, none 

of the Directors, substantial shareholders of SCGM and/or persons connected to them have 

any interest, direct or indirect, in the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back or the resale of 

treasury shares, if any.   

 

  

14. DIRECTORS’ RECOMMENDATION  

  

The Board, having considered all aspects of the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back, are 

of the opinion that the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back is fair, reasonable and in the 

best interest of the Company and its shareholders. Therefore, the Board recommends that 

you vote in favour of the Ordinary Resolution pertaining to the Proposed Renewal of Share 

Buy-Back at the forthcoming Thirteenth AGM of the Company. 

 

 
15. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

  

This Statement has been seen and approved by the Board and they collectively and 

individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information given and confirm 

that after having made all reasonable enquiries and to the best of their knowledge and belief, 

there are no other facts, the omission of which would make any information, data or 

statement herein misleading. 

 

 

16. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION 

  

The following documents are available for inspection at the Company’s registered office at 

Level 15-2, Bangunan Faber Imperial Court, Jalan Sultan Ismail, 50250 Kuala Lumpur 

during normal business hours from Mondays to Fridays (except on public holidays) from the 

date of this Statement up to and including the date of the forthcoming Thirteenth AGM:- 

 

i) the Constitution of the Company; and 

ii) the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 30 

April 2019 and 2020. 

 

 

 

 

This Share Buy-Back Statement is dated 28 August 2020. 
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Appendix I – Further Information 

 

HISTORICAL SHARE PRICES 

 

The monthly high and low market price of SCGM Shares as traded on Bursa Securities for 

the last twelve (12) months form August 2019 to July 2020 are as follow:- 

 

Month Market Price Per SCGM Share ^ 

High (RM) Low (RM) 

2019 
  

August 0.805 0.745 

September 1.230 0.775 

October 1.330 1.100 

November 1.470 1.230 

December 1.630 1.320 

2020 
  

January 1.670 1.370 

February 1.640 1.290 

March 1.490 0.755 

April 1.570 1.200 

May 1.930 1.400 

June 2.040 1.590 

July 3.180 1.920 

 

The last transacted market price for SCGM Shares on 17 August 2020 was RM2.94. ^ 

 

^ Source: www.rhbtradesmart.com 
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Landed Properties Owned by Our Group  
 

 

The summary of the information on landed properties owned by our Group as at 30 April 2020 are 

set out below: 
 

Registered 

Owners 

 

Title/Location/ Postal 

Address 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date of 

Acquisition 

Description/ 

Existing Use 

 

Approximate 

Land/Built-

up Area 

(sq ft) 

 

Tenure 

(years) 

 

Approximate 

Age of 

Buildings/ 

Date of 

Issuance of 

Certificate of 

Fitness 

 

Net Book Value 

at 30 April 2020 

RM’000 

 

LSSPI H.S. (M) 1728, Lot 

3304, Batu 24, Jalan Air 

Hitam-Johor Bahru, 
Mukim Senai, Daerah 

Kulai, Negeri Johor 

Darul Takzim  

02-09-1991 Manufacturing / 

Industrial Land / 

Factory and 
Warehouse 

136,397 / 

70,000 

Leasehold 

(99 years 

expiring on 
09-08-2090) 

17 years/ 

Certificate of 

Fitness  
for 

Occupation  

dated  

10-07-2002 

2,830 

LSSPI Geran 777, Lot 3316, 

Batu 24, Jalan Johor 

Bahru-Ayer Hitam, 
Mukim Senai-Kulai, 

Daerah Kulai, Negeri 

Johor Darul Takzim 

16-01-2004 Manufacturing /  

Industrial Land / 

Single Storey 
Factory, 

Warehouse, Double 

Storey Office and 

TNB substation 

138,026 / 

94,613 
Freehold 12 year/  

Certificate of 

Fitness  
for 

Occupation  

dated  

28-03-2007 

4,521 

LSSPI GM 795,  

Lot 3303, Mukim Senai, 

Daerah Kulai, Negeri 

Johor Darul Takzim 

06-08-2009 Freehold 

agricultural land 

(Conversion to 

industrial land) / 
Factory, Office and 

TNB substation 

 

132,041 / 

99,836 

Freehold 9 years 9,676 

LSSPI Geran Mukim 487 

Lot 852 and 

Geran Mukim 497 
Lot 853 

(PTD 109444) 

Sengkang, Mukim 

Senai, Daerah Kulai, 
Negeri Johor Darul 

Takzim 

18-04-2016 Manufacturing / 

Industrial Land / 

Double Storey 
Factory with 3 

Storey Office and 

TNB substation 

386,551 / 

325,627 

Freehold 2 year / 

Certificate of 

Completion 
and 

Compliance 

dated  

24-04-2018 

72,172 

LSSPI Geran Mukim 486 

Lot 869 

(PTD 112812), 
Sengkang, Mukim 

Senai, Daerah Kulai, 

Negeri Johor Darul 

Takzim 

18-04-2016 Manufacturing / 

Industrial Land / 

Double Storey 
Warehouse, Canteen 

and 5 Storey 

Worker Hostel 

271,814 / 

274,457 

Freehold 2 year / 

Certificate of 

Completion 
and 

Compliance 

dated  

24-04-2018 

45,211 
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[Company No. 200701021012 (779028-H)] 

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

FORM OF PROXY     
(please refer to the notes below) 
 

I/We ______________________________________  I.C No./Co. No./CDS No.: _____________________________________ 
(Full name in block letters) 

 

of ____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
(Full address) 

being a member/members of SCGM BHD (“Company”) hereby appoint the following person(s):- 

 

Name of Proxy(ies)  NRIC No./ 
Passport No. 

Phone 
Number 

Email Address No. of 
shares or % 

Proxy 1      

      

Proxy 2      

      

 

or failing him/her, the Chairman of the Meeting as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Thirteenth Annual 
General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company to be held at PTD 109444, Jalan Sengkang, Kawasan Perusahaan Sri Sengkang, 

81000 Kulai, Johor on Monday, 28 September 2020 at 2.00 pm. My/our proxy is to vote as indicated below:- 
 

RESOLUTIONS:- FIRST PROXY SECOND PROXY 

For Against For Against 

1)  Approve final single tier dividend of 0.35 sen per ordinary share      

2)  Directors’ fees and benefits up to RM63,000 from this AGM 

until the next AGM  

    

3)  Re-election of Mr. Lee Hock Meng as Director      

4)  Re-election of Dato’ Sri Lee Hock Guan as Director      

5)  Re-appointment of Messrs Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT as 
Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix 

their remuneration  

    

6)  Authority to issue shares     

7)  Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority     

(Please indicate with a “” or “X” in the space provided how you wish your vote to be cast. If no instruction as to voting is given, 
the proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his/her discretion. All votings will be conducted by way of poll.) 

 

 

Dated this …....….. day of  ……………..……  2020                                                                         ………………………… 

                                                                                                                                                                Signature/Common Seal 
Notes:-    

 
1. For the purpose of determining a member who shall be entitled to attend, speak and vote at the Thirteenth AGM, the Company shall be requesting the 

Record of Depositors as at 23 September 2020. Only a depositor whose name appears on the Record of Depositors as at 23 September 2020 shall be entitled 
to attend the said meeting or appoint proxies to attend, speak and vote on his/her behalf.  

 
2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a maximum of two proxies to attend and vote in his/her stead, and that a proxy 

need not be a member of the Company. 
 
3. The appointment of two (2) proxies shall be invalid unless the proportion of the shareholding to be represented by each proxy is specified. 
 
4. If the appointer is a corporation, either under seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised. 
 
5. Where a member of the Company is an authorized nominee as defined in accordance with the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991, it may 

appoint at least one proxy but not more than two proxies for each securities account which it holds and the shares of the Company standing to the credit of 
the said securities account. 

 
6. Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one 

securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorized nominee may appoint in respect of each 
omnibus account it holds.  

 
7. The Form of Proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at Level 15-2, Bangunan Faber Imperial Court, Jalan Sultan Ismail, 50250 

Kuala Lumpur not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof. 

No. of ordinary shares held 
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